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Disclaimer: This document contains statements about expected future events and
financials of Metropolis Healthcare Limited, which are forward-looking. By their
nature, forward-looking statements require the Company to make assumptions
and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is significant risk that the
assumptions, predictions, and other forward-looking statements may not prove

to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements as a number of factors could cause assumptions, actual future
results and events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking
statements. Accordingly, this document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified

in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors referred to in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.

Our Approach to Reporting

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report is aligned with the International Integrated Reporting
Council's (IIRC) globally accepted framework. Through this document,
Metropolis Healthcare Limited (‘Metropolis’ or ‘the Company’) aims

to strengthen its communication with the stakeholders with respect

to material activities, value creation process, business highlights and
future prospects. This Report follows and adopts guidelines, as laid out
by SEBI with respect to Annual Report.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This Annual Report comprises all the relevant aspects of operations
of Metropolis. It also consists of the desired statutory disclosures and
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021. All the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial

information.

FRAMEWORKS
The content and structure of this Annual Report is guided by the
framework endorsed by the Integrated Reporting <IR> Council.
Besides, the Company fully complies with the NSE and BSE listings as
well SEBI Compliances. It is committed to embracing best practices in
reporting to ensure transparency and better stakeholder engagement.

ASSURANCE

I

Metropolis’ Board of Directors and its subcommittees have reviewed
the Report and satisfied themselves on the materiality, accuracy,
and balance of disclosures in this Report. The Board has not sought
independent assurance of the Report, other than for the annual
financial statements.
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2020 was all about the fight
between overarching challenges
and their possible solutions.

Ayear that highlighted the power of endurance and prudence was also the year that underlined the
importance of precautions, promptness, and accuracy when it came to containing the spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The outbreak of COVID-19 reasserted the essential role of diagnostics in fighting pandemics. At a time
when the world is battling a grave health crisis, if frontline warriors are the heroes, diagnostic centers
are inarguably the essential support crew.

At Metropolis, we understand that effective diagnostic is vital for timely responding to the outbreak.
We realise the role we play in generating a roadmap for the global good.

We are aware of the responsibility we must shoulder to take the world towards a safer tomorrow.

WE KNOW WE ARE THE ONES WHERE
THE CONCEPT OF 'BREAK THE CHAIN'
BEGINS!I AND THIS, IS OUR STORY!

i METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD ANNUAIEB'EPORT 2020-21 i
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Our revenue

COVID and Non-

COVID business (%)
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Due to higher test volumes and value per test, COVID-19 Tests contributed a significant portion of our
revenue in Q1 and Q2FY21, whereas Non-COVID business continued to rebound in Q3FY21 strongly.

Non-COVID business grew significantly year on year in Q4FY21. While the number of COVID-19 tests
increased in Q4FY21 but revenue contribution decreased with the Government's decision of lower pricing.

Q1FY22 witnessed COVID-19 infections increasing again which was soon followed by lockdown restrictions.
In the medium term, as the vaccination campaign gains traction, the Non-COVID industry is expected to
thrive. Going ahead, we anticipate increased revenue from COVID-19 allied tests in FY22.

FOR THE FIRST TIME, 8 LAKH NEW CUSTOMERS USED METROPOLIS FOR
COVID TESTS. IN H2FY21, WE SAW A HEALTHY CONVERSION RATE OF 10%
OF CUSTOMERS WHO TRIED METROPOLIS FOR A NON-COVID TEST. WE
ANTICIPATE HIGHER CONVERSION RATES IN THE COMING QUARTERS.

Our Non-COVID business
over the last year

2998 Crores, up 17 %

\

Revenue in FY21 and Percentage
FY20 REVENUE Growth as Compared to FY20

(&

Q1 FY20 moesssssssssssssm = 203
Q2 FY20 NI 224
Q3 FY20 M 224
Q4 FY20 s 206

T 288 crores

EBIDTA

8

FY21 NON-COVID REVENUE z 1 83 Crores, up 44 %
Q1 FY21 102 S

Q2 FY27 NI 189 PAT in FY20 and Percentage
Q3 FY27  AIIRIIIIITIIIIIIIR 223 Growth as Compared to FY20
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58 %, up 200 bps
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Percentage Revenue Share
of B2C in Focus Cities

2 9.8 wiliion

N

\

-

Patient Visits

1 9.0 Million
EBIDTA: Earnings Before Interest,
Depreciation, Taxes and Amortisation

PAT: Profit after Tax Tests Conducted
B2C: Business to Customers in FY2020-21
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Indian diagnostic space Vision Our Values
To be a respected healthcare

Incepted in Ithe year 1980, Metropolis is'among the Igading diagnostics playgrs in India, with a dorlni.nant sharein E;i;i:?;?ji:;{(j:g@i:;’ EMPATHY ACCURACY

the country's western and southern region. Metropolis offers a comprehensive range of 4,000+ clinical laboratory » ) , o -

) - ) ) . Positively impact lives is in our isin our

tests and profiles as one of the market leaders. These tests are used for prediction, early detection, diagnostic ) ) ,

of patients in their most BLOOD DNA

screening, confirmation and/or monitoring of different diseases. Additionally, the Company also offers analytical
and support services to clinical research organisations for their clinical research projects. Growing strength by
strength the Company has spread its footprints across 19 Indian states and 210 cities.

35

Years Of Credible
Operations

125

Clinical Laboratories

20

Presence Across
Indian States

~220

Presence across
Indian Cities

498

Assisted Referral
Centres (ARC)

25

NABL Accredited Labs

All figures as on 31 March 2021

i METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

2,555

Patient Service
Centres

~4,000

Tests and Profiles

10,000+

Patients Touchpoints

~9,000

Pick-up Points

Why Metropolis?

Conclusive diagnosis with
extensive test menu backed by
highest standards of quality

Customer-focussed services with
convenience and test accuracy at
the core of service standard

Wide and unparalleled service
network with pan India presence

Consistency in operations at every
single visit from seamless blood
collection, hygienic collection
setup to timely report delivery

¢ KK’

N

Certified

Mumbai Lab is CAP accredited since 2005

NABL accreditation

More than 75% reports are
generated by accredited labs

NABL Accreditation follows ISO-15189
Standard and is recognised by ILAC & APLAC

*CAP: College of American Pathologists
*NABL: National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories

anxious times and turn their
anxiety in to assurance.

Mission Statement

Helping people stay healthy,
by accurately revealing their
inner health
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

WE ARE PROUD OF THE RESILIENCE
METROPOLIS HAS SHOWN IN

THIS DIFFICULT TIME TO ENSURE
PERSONAL SAFETY AND AT THE SAME
TIME, RUNNING THE OPERATIONS
WITH LIMITED INTERRUPTIONS,
WHICH LED TO A SUSTAINED
PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

»
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The year 2020-21 was undoubtedly a year we will never
forget. As individuals, as a Company and as a global
community, we've had to navigate significant challenges
and recalibrate our lives in big and small ways to manage
through the COVID-19 pandemic. For Metropolis, the year
will also stand out as one of our finest moments - for the
way we supported society when it needed us most. | am
grateful to the frontline healthcare workers and other
support teams who are selflessly and fearlessly serving
humanity during these challenging times. The silver lining
is the success of large-scale vaccination in controlling the
pandemic that is giving hope to humanity today.

e h

India was relatively successful in managing the first wave
of the pandemic. However, with the second wave, the
virus spread at a much more rapid pace across India. This
second wave also engulfed the rural areas which were
relatively less impacted in the first wave. We are cautious
and hopeful that with an all-out effort, we will be able to
overcome the challenging situation the country is facing.

I'm very proud of how we responded and are responding
to the pandemic. We successfully managed to surf through
a challenging environment, while also accelerating the
execution of our growth strategy to create an even
brighter future for our Company.

We are proud of the resilience Metropolis has shown

in this difficult time to ensure personal safety and at

the same time, running the operations with limited
interruptions, which led to a sustained performance during
the year.

LIVING BY OUR VALUES

Of course, our social impact begins at home, right at
Metropolis with the kind of environment we create for our
colleagues - who represent nearly every race, ethnicity,
background, gender and orientation. While there's always
more we can do, we've come a long way in building an
inclusive culture where our colleagues know their unique
backgrounds and perspectives are valued, and they are
inspired to bring their best every day. This mindset is what
drives continuous improvement for our Company and new
solutions for our customers.

Driven by our inner force, we continued our path to
success. Our aspirations can be strongly sensed from
our vision and long-term strategies. This also showcases
our resilience during the year and also during our fight
with COVID-19. Our strategies depict our emergence as
a stronger player - the prime guiding force behind our
success during the year.

In FY21, we continued to build upon our strength in the

Indian diagnostics industry. We made significant progress
executing our strategies as mentioned below:

> Continued expanding through inorganic means to
reinforce our market position

[B> Continued building our digital capabilities to engage
with consumers and doctors

B> Continued automating processes and systems to
handle future scale

B> Continued getting ready with efficiencies and
productivity in system to manage costs better in future

ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that acting responsibly and sustainably
includes a duty to be a good steward of our planet.

We've taken many steps over the years to reduce our
environmental impact, both in our operations and in the
services that we deliver to our customers. We are working
towards a goal to reduce our impact on environment
through energy efficiency and environmental stewardship.

GOVERNANCE

Our corporate governance structure supports
accountability and transparency, with a strong, diverse
board of directors; best practice internal and external; and
leading diversity disclosure practices. All of this is not just
right thing to do, but it also makes good business sense.
Our culture and our leading social and environmental
practices help us recruit top talent and strengthen our
industry leadership, while helping to make the world a
better place.

Going forward, | believe it is the need of the hour to
deliver medical solutions right now, even as we develop
innovations for the future. We are passionate about
Metropolis philosophy of customer centricity in everything
we do. We are courageous in both decision and action.
And we believe that good business means a better world.
For me, it is a matter of pride to see the commitment and
dedication that our employees displayed during this year
to serve our clients. | am extremely grateful to them, our
clients, the leadership team, our Board members, and all
our well-wishers, who have supported us with their trust
and guidance through this unusual year.

Warm regards,
Dr. Sushil Shah
Founder & Chairman

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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LETTER FROM MD'S DESK
MD’'s Communique

Dear Shareholders,

India continues to battle a virulent second wave of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the healthcare infrastructure is
straining to cope with the load of new cases. Aiding them
in this strenuous task, right from the beginning, are
medical laboratories which have undertaken the job of
responsible testing and diagnosis. We were one of the first
few labs to be commissioned for COVID-19 testing, and we
are proud to be at the forefront of this health crisis battle.
The COVID-19 pandemic bought along a fight never
witnessed by humanity. For Metropolis, we were able

to quickly fill with COVID facilities and fill the gap that

came with the disruption in the healthcare services. We
remained strong and unshaken, we found strategies for
doing business and | am sure we have now become more
confident and are ready to grow with strong determination
in future.

At Metropolis, resilience is in our DNA
and the entire Metropolis family is
working together with a deep sense
of urgency, passion, and commitment
to surf through this storm. The only
goal for our experienced team of
doctors and scientific team is to help
patients and doctors get a reliable
diagnosis as quickly as possible.

n METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

WE WERE THE FIRST PRIVATE LAB IN
THE COUNTRY TO START TESTING

FOR COVID-19. WITH THE BEST

TURN AROUND TIME, CONTINUOUS
MEDICAL ENGAGEMENT WITH
DOCTORS AND GOVERNMENT
AUTHORITIES, STRONG BRANDING
AND CUSTOMER EQUITY, WE

WERE SUCCESSFUL IN CHURNING

OUT COVID-19 RELATED TESTS g9

Most of the unorganised diagnostic sectors were
negatively affected this year as regular patients resisted
going to doctors and therefore diagnostic labs were
affected. Since these labs did not qualify to the COVID
testing, they were less visible and experienced by patients
during this time.

OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Besides a being successful year for us in terms of taking
care of patients, I'm happy to announce it was also a year
of business for us as a Company. We recorded highest
ever yearly revenue, EBITDA and PAT in 2021. For FY21
revenue stood at ¥ 998 Crores as compared to ¥ 856
Crores in FY20, up by 17% YoY. Non-COVID revenue
contributed 77% of this revenue while COVID contributed
the rest 23% of the revenue in FY21. EBIDTA before CSR
and ESOP in FY21 stood at ¥ 301.1 Crores as compared

to ¥ 233.4 Crores in FY20, up by 29% YoY. EBITDA margin
before CSR and ESOP for FY21 expanded by 290 basis
points YoY to 30.2%. Margin expansion was attributable to
operating leverage benefits playing out due to increased
scale of business, better text mix and cost optimisation
initiative undertaken during FY21.

Our COVID-19 business via the B2C channel in focus and
seeding cities contributed 63%, while the revenue share of
non-COVID increased from 56% to 58% in FY21. We see a
big opportunity going into the next few years. The revenue

contribution of specialty test for non-COVID increased
from 37% a year before to 42% in FY21, increasing revenue
per test and making us even more relevant to patients'
treatment.

During the year, there was an expansion of home care
services owing to pandemic related lockdowns. This
resulted in revenue from non-COVID home care to
increase by 22% YoY to ¥ 80 Crores in FY21. When we
include COVID in the equation, our revenue from home
testing more than doubles to over % 136 Crores.

When it comes to our customers, we have always believed
in servicing with sheer dedication. And to improve
customer experience, we revamped our app, website,
digital presence optimisation, and marketing efforts. As

a result, we saw 15x increase in website traffic, a 10x
increase in call volume, and faster growth and revenue
from home visits. For FY21, we reported patient visits of
9.8 Million, which was a down growth by 2% on YoY basis.
About 8 Lakh new customers experienced the service of
Metropolis for the first time to COVID tests. Out of which,
about 10% have already come back to Metropolis for
non-COVID tests. Our home visit business also helped us
move towards our increased B2C KPI and enjoy the better
market profile enhancing the overall profitability of the
Company.

We were the first private lab in the country to start testing
for COVID-19. With the best turn around time, continuous
medical engagement with doctors and government
authorities, strong branding and customer equity, we were
successful in churning out COVID-19 related tests. During
the year, our NACO contract was extended, a prestigious
PPP contract for us that enforces our confidence in our
scientific and on-ground execution capability.

Further, as a part of the inorganic growth strategy, we at
Metropolis try to acquire the unorganized players in the
market. However, sometimes we face issues with respect
to certain areas such as Due diligence, Compliance, etc. of
the entity being proposed to be acquired which forces us
to abandon such plans.

However, as a Company, we have had maximum
experience in inorganic growth and integration of
acquisitions and shall continue to make thoughtful
decisions of what entity to acquire and at what terms,
without any pressure to acquire for the sake of it.

OUR NETWORK EXPANSION STRATEGY

In the event of network expansion, we would do so in two
ways, one, in states such as Maharashtra and Guijarat,
where we have a strong brand and believe we can expand
into tier-2 or tier-3 towns.

Secondly, in states where we have generated some
revenue through franchising and now want to expand
our presence with our own labs. Madhya Pradesh, Uttar

Pradesh, Odisha, Jharkhand, Telangana, and Andhra
Pradesh would be among these states. This expansion
strategy is expected to reduce the EBITDA margin by 75
to 100 basis points in the first year. However, as a result,
various cost-cutting measures have already been taken
and we expect to be neutral on overall consolidated
margins as a result of this expansion.

Thirdly, the increase in volume and revenue contributions
from a profitable specialised work and lastly reducing
overhead costs as a result of digital integration, resulting in
increased productivity and efficiency.

GROWTH DRIVERS FOR FY22 AND BEYOND

(B> Metropolis is increasing the number of collection
centres from 300 in 2016 to 2500 by 2021. In addition,
we have announced plans to establish a new research
and development centre in with a focus on hygiene and
productivity.

[B> Over the next three years, we plan to add 90 more stat
labs and about 1,800 service collection centres. The
expected CAPEX investment would be approximately
% 30 Crores to % 35 Crores over a three-year period. We
are looking at 100 to 150 more cities in India.

In our view, the way forward for COVID-19 is
expected to be as follows:

[B> Safety and hygiene will become very important,
and so we will use this as an opportunity to use our
professional services to gain market share

B> More point of care testing will emerge for testing at
home - and we are evaluating how we can participate
in this opportunity

[> People may want more home visits rather than walk
into centers. We are scaling this up and expect this to
be an opportunity for organised and trusted brands to
gain more market share. It will also allow rationalisation
of front-end network and cost savings.

I' would like to conclude by saying that we at Metropolis
remain very optimistic about the business and believe
that the journey of market share shift to organised
players will accelerate in the short to medium term. We
continue to look for interesting and organic opportunities
that align with our strategic vision. | am grateful to the
4,500-member Metropolis family, our shareholders,
and our board of directors, you all have helped to make
Metropolis what it is today, thanking you for all your
support. We are here to only serve humanity and also
strengthen the Metropolis front.

Yours truly,
Ameera Shah
Managing Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 H
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CREATING VALUE
Breaking the chain by going beyond promises

INPUTS

Includes our monetary resources, obtained through
our business activities and from external sources.
Funding mechanism, such as equity and debt, are the
primary sources of our financial capital.

Our state-of-the-art laboratories and service labs
network enables us to deliver best-in-class service at
optimum cost.

Our organisational and knowledge-based intangible
assets and ethos are critical to sustain and grow the
business.

Includes our monetary resources, obtained through
our business activities and from external sources.
Funding mechanism, such as equity and debt, are the
primary sources of our financial capital.

Constructive interaction makes our day-to-day
operations more effective, ensuring we remain socially
relevant in the communities where we operate.

Our role as a good global citizen, understanding the
impact and responsibility to reduce our environmental
footprint.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

PROCESS

VISION

FOCUS AREAS:

>

VALUES

> Improve realisation per patient
[> Increase share of speciality business

> Grow organically and inorganically

RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES

> Increase productivity
of young network

> Improve revenue
diversification

Regulations

> OUTPUT

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

> Revenue from Operations amounted to ¥ 998 Crores
> Turnover increased by 17%

> EBITDA increased by 24%

> PAT increased by 44%

SERVICE CAPITAL

> More than ~4,000+ tests & profiles

> 19 Milion tests & 9.8 Million patient visit in FY21
> Over 10,000 patient touchpoints

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
> Digital transformation to increase efficiency

> Introducing Mobile App TruHRA with advanced features to enable ease of
access

> Maintaining globally compliant quality standards

HUMAN CAPITAL

> Young, energetic and motivated team with over 60% of workforce
belonging to the millennial generation

> 4,500+ highly skilled and motivated member base.

> Strong work culture and equal opportunity workplace

N [ §:>__\\ /—_1:=}_—\ /’_<:>_“\ /__1Iu}__\

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

> Metropolis has been at the forefront of organising impactful camps and
leading numerous workshops for various segments of society.

> To make a difference in the lives of those we touch, we collaborate with
societies, corporate groups, educational institutions, government bodies,
NGOs, wellness foundations, and a variety of other organisations.

> Metropolis Healthcare Ltd identified four distinct areas to contribute and
truly make a difference through well-designed programmes.

NATURAL CAPITAL

> LED lights have replaced traditional lights in all of our corporate offices
and labs to save energy.

B> Our largest lab (The Global Reference Lab in Mumbai) has a sewage water
plant, and treated water is used for toilet flushing and gardening.

> Metropolis employs a Pollution Control Board-approved agency to collect
biomedical waste from our labs, and we adhere to the guidelines issued
by local municipal governing bodies in various cities and states.

> Metropolis maintains a power factor (PF) of up t0.97 (unit).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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CASH & CASH
ACHIEVING EXPONENTIAL GROWTH ——
111 223 421.41 8.9 10 9.8

Breaking the chain by outdoing ourselves

At Metropolis, we drive growth through continuous investment in state-of-the-art technologies, consistent
network expansion, and prudent optimisation of surplus funds. We use our financial capital to build excellence
and cash reserves. Thus, ensuring value creation for all stakeholders and long-term business sustainability.

Performance Highlights

REVENUE % Crores

760 856 998

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

PAT % Crores

124 128 196

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

EBIDTA % Crores

200 232 288

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

PAT BEFORE CSR, ONE-
TIME SHARE-BASED AND
OTHER EXPENSES ¥ Crores

129 147 196.39

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

NUMBER OF TESTS Millions

17 19.62 19

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

REVENUE PER TEST g

447 436 524

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

REVENUE PER PATIENT g

854 856 1,015

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

3 429 Crores

B2C Sales Contribution

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 i
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SERVICE CAPITAL

REINFORCING OPERATIONAL

EXCELLENCE

Breaking the Chain by growing with technology

We are in a business that involves offering world-class quality services with easy and fast accessibility, conclusive diagnosis,

and comprehensive test profiles to our customers. This necessitates using state-of-the-art technology and automated
processes to deliver quick and accurate diagnostic results. In our continuous endeavours, we are consistently finding new

ways and exploring newer horizons to achieve greater

Our Test Categories

ROUTINE TESTS
Blood chemistry analyses, Blood cell counts, Urine examination
SEMI-SPECIALISED

Thyroid function tests, Viral and Bacterial cultures, Histology, Cytology,
Infectious disease tests

SPECIALISED TESTS
Coagulation studies, Autoimmunity tests, Cytogenetics, Molecular diagnostics

VOl En I aea)E  Value Mix (%)

O D)

22 56 01 06
| |
ROUTINE SEMI- SPECIALISED WELLNESS
SPECIALISED TESTS

Metropolis - Test Mix

Our widely varied and extensive tests menu enables us to serve and cater
to every customer profile for routine to complex to even specialised tests.
FY21 witnessed an increase in the volume contribution of Specialised Tests,
including COVID-19 as well as excluding COVID-19 tests in FY2020-21.

Network Expansion Strategy

I Focus on asset light model to achieve geographic expansion with high
scalability

[> The A-PSC and D-APSC model allows us to grow our revenues by
providing management and branding support while concentrating on
increased penetration in our PSCs.

[B> Better leverage of our existing infrastructure by establishing a wider
geographic reach to enable customer base expansion and improvement
in profitability matrix

[B> Establish strategic partnerships with 3rd Party Patient Service Centers in
India, Africa and Middle East to boost our geographic reach

i METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

How we maintain quality?
Strict quality protocols
following global standards

Best medical talent trained
in the ‘Metropolis’ way

Excellent quality of USFDA or
CE marked materials used

Credible patient experience
score of 91% as per NPS

Ethical philosophy of putting

patient first

K@@@@@

4,000+

Test Profiles

Geographies

> Gujarat [> Maharashtra
> Rajasthan > Punjab

> Uttarakhand B> Delhi

> Bihar [>> Uttar Pradesh
B> jharkhand [> Assam

[>> West Bengal ~ [B> Chhattisgarh
> Telangana [> Andhra Pradesh
B> Karnataka > Kerala

> Goa &> Tamil Nadu

> Madhya Pradesh [ Jammu and Kashmir

Widespread Network
and Facilities

20 Indian States &

""200 Cities
4,500+

Highly Skilled and
Motivated Member Base

2,555

Service Network

47

Express Laboratories;
5 outside India

64

Satellite Laboratories;
1 outside India

67%

Of the Existing Individual
Patients Touchpoints Added
during the Period 2017-21
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METROP@LIS STATUTORY REPORTS
The Pathology Specialist
- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

HARNESSING OPPORTUNITIES
Breaking the chain by expanding our network

a n d Se rvi ces Our quality assurance system enables a process-oriented approach to ensure quality testing through use of
standard operating procedures, management of documents and records, implementation of quality control,

external quality assessment (including proficiency testing) and robust internal audits. Our quality assurance
system covers the entire value chain of our laboratory operations. Besides core laboratory operations and
front-end services, our quality assurance system extends to physical infrastructure, procedures for purchase
and inventory management, equipment maintenance, customer service, human resource management and
process improvement.

Globally compliant quality standards

We understand, in our business, how essential it is to constantly enhance our knowledge and skills. We
are always looking for opportunities to upgrade towards advanced tests and technologies to improve our
service network in turn. This helps us strengthen our intellectual capital. Our persistent focus on in-house
R&D and innovation provides us a greater competitive advantage in the global arena. This approach
helps us harness prospective opportunities using the digital strategy as we drive growth into the future.

Our team of proficient scientists and doctors are always in pursuit of knowledge and latest key
developments in pathology across the world. Our R&D team customises each test before introducing it @ Mumbai Lab is CAP accredited since 2005 @ More than 75% reports are generated
to the test menu. Thus, helping us stay ahead of the curve while consistently upgrading. *(College of American Pathologists, global by accredited labs. Many of our doctors
gold standard in laboratory accreditations). are assessors, lead assessors for NABL.
. . . . . NABL Accreditation follows ISO-15189 Some senior doctors are committee
Digital Transformation to Improve Efficiency A Standard and is recognised by ILAC & APLAC A embers of NABL WHO, Government
- GRL and 11 RRLs have NABL accreditation. & NGO committees.

N

MOBILE APPLICATIONS LAUNCHED DIGITAL TRANSFORMATIONS

[> Customised Check-ups We have extensively invested in information technology to .. “_

I Expert TruHealth Risk Assessment integrate and automate processes ranging from registration, [ —

> TruHRA bar-coding, and billing of specimens to analysis and reporting - ‘

I> Booking Appoi of test results. This helps us:
ooking Appointments

[> See, Share & Store Reports

[> Fitness Tracker Inner Health Tracking
Parameters

[> Achieve standardisation across our operations
[> Reduce incidence of errors due to human intervention
[> Monitor technical operations through enhanced IT systems

[> Medication Tracker Doctor's, Hospital's [> Track our key performance metrics closely

& Metropolis Nearby [> Provide convenience to our patients and customers,

by allowing them to book appointments, complete
registration, and access test reports online

IT SYSTEMS

[> IBM Watson Campaign Automation allows us to improve leads generation, tracking, and
conversion. The data analytics model on customer data will improve cross-sell and upsell
[> Payment platform to improve control in cash management process ‘

[> Zero Data Loss helps in 100% data replication in remote location

[> Sample tracking process to improve visibility of customers and turn around time (TAT) of reports
[> Automated HR processes through HRMS for better tracking and possible productivity

[> Learning Management System to train and develop employees

[> Automated Quality System to track quality standards across the group

[> Mobility applications for consumer’s ease of access

[> Service CRM implementation to help improve NPS

[> Feedback management for instant feedback and rating

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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HUMAN CAPITAL

BUILDING CAPABILITIES Diversity

B rea ki ng th e C h a i n by e m powe ri ng peo p I e At Metropolis, our continuous endeavour is to build an inclusive culture. As a Company with a global

presence, we strive to encompass people from diverse backgrounds. We consciously monitor our

Our business demands us to evolve and upgrade constantly, and we have undergone tremendous commitments towards diversity inclusion with policies framed to promote equality for all. We aim to have a
transformation in our services, processes, and customer practices over time. Last year we experienced an gender-balanced proportion of the workforce and promote diversity in a true sense.
extremely fast-paced up-gradation. We saw an increased number of home visits that required specialised skill &

sets. To promptly respond to these changes and prepare our people for the same, we focussed on honing their
capabilities. The idea was to fortify the backbone of our business and be ready to leap into our growth story.

We are continuously aligning our human resource practices with the growing business expectations of a smart
workplace and smarter organisation.

Skilful and
Diverse Workforce

4,500+

Highly Skilled and
Motivated Member Base

Wellbeing and Development

Employee wellbeing is fundamentally vital at
Metropolis. We continuously invest in various
programmes aimed at improving and strengthening
employee engagement across our areas of
operations. During FY21, we conducted several
training and development programs aimed to
empower the employee skill sets. We aim to create
a competent workforce to improve customer
satisfaction while contributing to overall profitability.

41:59

Female: Male Ratio

60% +

Part of the Workforce
is Millennial, Young

58 216

No. of training modules

for employees Doctors

5,510 2,600+

Scientific and
Technical Team

No. of trainings conducted

31,214

Total man hours
of training

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

WORKING FOR THE
BETTERMENT OF SOCIETY

Breaking the chain by nurturing communities

As a Company, social capital is of paramount importance for our efficiency and coherent existence. Our
promise to serve the nation’s cause, states, the local communities, and the surrounding ecosystem drives us as
a responsible organisation. In our endeavours to conduct our business mindfully, we consciously take charge
of our social accountability and respect the law where we operate and regard human dignity with utmost
sincerity.

Our approach to Corporate Social Responsibility is based on a simple principle that awareness leads to
empowerment. In its numerous compositions, awareness equips and inspires us to make better decisions. As
we provide the highest quality of pathology services to our customers with a sense of integrity and empathy,
we also actively seek opportunities to contribute to the wellbeing of the communities we operate within.

For the past 3 decades, Metropolis has been at the forefront conducting impactful camps and driving
numerous workshops for different sections of the society. We partner with societies, corporate groups,
educational institutions, government bodies, NGOs, wellness foundations and a host of other organisations to
make a difference in the lives we touch.

We have identified four different areas to contribute and truly make a difference through

B o ke Bt e s e
B v L

=

our well-designed programs.

Too Shy To Ask

Our app for adolescent and reproductive
sexual health education titled TOOSHYTOASK'
reached over 80,000+ installs. Our regular
education column in Mumbai's daily, MidDay,
reached over 1,50,000+ every week. In
addition, our experts answered over 20,000
queries between the period April 2020 to
March 2021.

MedEngage

We awarded 90+ scholarships worth ¥50
Lakhs to medical students in FY21 under our
flagship initiative ' MEDENGAGE'. Over 1200
students applied for Medengage benefits
from 200+ institutes across the country.

H METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Methealth

We reached out to over 25000+ women

through 'METHEALTH' - our initiative for health
awareness and education - and facilitated online
doctor consultations during lockdown. We also
conducted 25+ live Instagram sessions for PCOS

in collaboration with the PCOS Society of India. We
helped build online tools for PCOS management to
assist women with PCOS amidst the pandemic.

Empoweress

Our initiative to empower women business
owners ‘Empoweress’ included fortnightly

focus group chats between entrepreneurs. We
facilitated 15+ live leadership talks to help women
business owners tide over the challenges posed
by the pandemic.

COVID-19
Response

Nutrition Box Project

We delivered Nutrition Boxes to doctors and healthcare workers
posted in COVID Care Centers, Municipal Corporations and
COVID Hospitals with the help of WE Foundation.

COVID Testing Projects

Project Ummeed

We completed 1.25 Lakhs RT-PCR Tests in 22 municipal
corporations across Maharashtra in association with Citibank &
CIPLA Foundation and the United Way of Mumbai. Additionally,
we collaborated with the DBS Bank and ICICI Prudential for the

COVID-19 testing of underprivileged citizens and frontline workers.

This included bus drivers, sanitisation workers and police officers.

Millions of tests across 15+ COVID-approved labs were conducted.

We also tied up with HUL and MSL driveline for Vaccination.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 i
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NATURAL CAPITAL

BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE WORLD

Breaking the chain by being
aware and responsible

The need for mitigating climate change has never been greater than now. As an aware organisation, we have
aligned ourselves with the UN Sustainability Development Goals to make our operations more sustainable.
Our actions contribute to a better world, protecting natural capital. These initiatives also help make our
services more resource-efficient and resilient.

We accord the highest priority to energy conservation and are committed to energy conservation measures,
including regular review of energy consumption and effective control on utilisation of energy. Our facilities are
designed with the objective of minimum energy loss in mind. We have actively undertaken all the required
steps to save energy in our workplaces by educating and training the employees for the same.

We have inverter ACs installed in areas where we operate for extended hours. We also have energy-saving LED
lights installed at various laboratories and collection centres. Every year, we conduct an energy audit at the
Central Laboratory of our Company. This audit is carried out by an independent and professional agency. We
use Pollution Control Board-authorised agency for collecting biomedical waste from our labs. We also follow
the guidelines issued by the local municipal governing bodies of different cities and states. We maintain power
factor (PF) up to .97 (unity). SWP installed at our biggest lab (The Global Reference Lab in Mumbai) and use
treated water to flush the toilet and for gardening. Changed from conventional lights to LED as a part of our
energy-saving exercise at all our corporate offices and laboratories.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 i



CORPORATE OVERVIEW

METROP@LIS STATUTORY REPORTS
The Pathology Specialist
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SETTING HIGHER BENCHMARKS
Breaking the chain by leading with experience

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah

Designation: Chairman & Executive Director

Quialification: Bachelor's degree in Medicine and Surgery and Ph.D Medicine in Pathology
and Bacteriology from the University of Bombay

Experience: More than three decades of experience in pathology

Sushil Kanubhai Shah was one of the partners of Metropolis Healthcare Services and
Metropolis Lab. He was awarded the Maharashtra Gaurav Award by the Government of
India and the Lifetime Achievement Award at the Six Sigma Healthcare Excellence Awards.
He was also awarded the Rajiv Gandhi Excellence Award by the Indian Solidarity Council
and the Rashtriya Chikitsak Ratna Award by the National Education & Human Development
Organisation. He has been a Director on our Board since 2005.

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah

Designation: Managing Director

Qualification: Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the University of Texas,
Austin, completed the Owner-President Management Programme from Harvard Business
School, Harvard University.

Experience: More than two decades of experience in pathology business

Ameera Sushil Shah was one of the partners of Metropolis Healthcare Services and
Metropolis Lab. She was featured by the Forbes Asia as one among the Asia’s Women to
Watch in 2015 and was also recognised by the Fortune India as one of the Most Powerful
Women in 2017, 2018 and 2019 and by Business Today in 2018 and 2019. She was also
awarded the Women in Leadership Award by Bloomberg and UTV and was recognized
as one of the Inspiring Business Leaders of India and 40 under forty-India’s Respected

Business Leaders by the Economic Times. Additionally, she was also awarded the Corporate

Championship Award by the US India Business Council. She has been a Director on our
Board since 2008.

i METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Mr. Vivek Gambhir

Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director

Qualification: Bachelor's degree in both Science and Arts from the Lafayette College,
Pennsylvania. He also holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Harvard
University.

Experience: More than ten years of experience in operations and strategy

Prior to joining the Company, he has worked with Bain & Company India Private Limited
and Godrej Industries Limited & associate Companies. He was a founding member of Bain's
consulting operations in India and led the firm's FMCG. He has been a Director on our
Board since 2018.

Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar

Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director

Qualification: Master's degree in Engineering from Stanford University. He also holds
Master's degree in business administration from Harvard University.

Experience: More than 16 years of experience in project development, marketing, and
operations management

Sanjay Bhatnagar has served as the Chairman of the American Chamber of Commerce in
India and as a Board member of the US India Strategic Partnership Forum . Prior to joining
the Company, he has worked with Enron India Private Limited, WaterHealth International
Inc. and the THOT Capital Group LLC. . He has been a Director on our Board since 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

Mr. Milind Sarwate

Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah

Qualification: Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the University of Bombay, He is also a
qualified Chartered Accountant, Company Secretary and Cost and Works Accountant.

Chairman and Executive Director Managing Director

Experience: More than three decades of experience in consumer products and services

Milind Shripad Sarwate is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India, the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the Institute of Costs and Works
Accountants of India. Prior to joining the Company, he has worked with Godrej Soaps
Limited and Marico Limited. He was also a participant at the Fulbright - ClI fellowship for
leadership in the management programme at the Carnegie Mellon Graduate School of
Industrial Administration, U.SA. He was a recipient of the Best Performing CFO award

by CNBC TV18 and was also inducted into the CFO India Hall of Fame by the CFO India
magazine. He was also awarded the ICAI Award 2011 in CFO - FMCG Sector category. He
is also a designated partner of Increate Value Advisors LLP. He has been a Director on our -
Board since 2018

Mr. Vijender Singh

Chief Executive Officer

Nilesh Jadavji Shah

Ms. Anita Ramachandran Group President & Head of Science & Innovation

Designation: Additional Non-Executive Independent Director
Qualification: MBA (Finance) from the Jamnalal Bajaj Institute
Experience: More than 35 years of experience as a management consultant

Anita Ramachandran began her career in the Management Consultancy division of AF
Ferguson & Co (the KPMG network company in India then) in Mumbai in 1976 as the first
woman consultant in the firm and worked in a wide range of areas from finance, industrial
market research, strategy, and human resources consulting. She founded M/s. Cerebrus
Consultants in the year 1995 to focus on HR advisory services, which has now established
itself as a specialist firm in the HR field. She has been involved with companies such

as the ICICI group, Bajaj Auto, Bharat Forge, Vodafone. Her wide general management
consulting experience and insights on HR has enabled her to be a strategic advisor to many
family groups. She supports many organizations in the social sector through pro bono
professional work and remains deeply committed to working with women.

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Ishita Medhekar

Chief Human Resource Officer
Mr. Hemant Sachdev

Designation: Additional Non-Executive Director
Qualification: BA (Political Science) from Delhi. An alumni of Harvard Business School
Experience: More than 20 years of experience

Mr. Hemant Sachdev is a BA in Political Science from Delhi and an alumni of Harvard
Business School. He is a first generation entrepreneur and has over 2 decades of
experience. He has his business interests in Retail, Distribution and Education.

Mr. Kannan A

Chief of Service Operations
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RAISING THE BAR
Breaking the chain by repeating excellence

Ms. Ameera Shah awarded as the EY Entrepreneur
2021 of the Year in Life Science and Healthcare

N

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal awarded at the 11th Annual CFO Awards
2021 for his Exceptional Contribution to the World of Finance

N

Metropolis Healthcare won the Leading Diagnostic Chain of the
2021 Year Award at the Elets Diagnostics Leadership Summit, 2021

Metropolis Healthcare won the GOLD Award in two categories
(COVID Diagnostic Brand Category and Health Awareness
2021 kCampaign) at India Health and Wellness Award 2020

Metropolis Healthcare won the Outstanding Logistics Unit
during Pandemic Award in the Healthcare Category, organised

—

2020 by Supply Chain And Logistics Excellence (SCALE) Awards
Ms. Ameera Shah, MD, Metropolis, listed as the Most Powerful
2020 Woman in India for the 4th consecutive year by Fortune India
Metropolis Healthcare Limited won the 2020 Indian Diagnostic Services
2020 Industry Company of the Year Award organised by Frost & Sullivan
Ms. Ameera Shah listed in Asia’s Power
2020 Businesswomen 2020 by Forbes Asia
Metropolis Healthcare Limited awarded for Health Impact
2020 Awareness Campaign at the 4th CSR Impact Awards for TooShyToAsk
Metropolis Healthcare Limited won the Excellence in Corporate Social
2020 Responsibility Award at the 8th India CSR Award for TooShyToAsk

H METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah
Chairman & Executive Director

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah
Managing Director

Mr. Milind Sarwate
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Vivek Gambhir
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Milind Sarwate
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar
Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Anita Ramachandran
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Hemant Sachdev
Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director Appointed w.e.f. May 27, 2021

DETAILS OF COMMITTEES

Audit Committee:

Mr. Milind Sarwate - Chairman
Mr. Vivek Gambhir - Member
Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar - Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Ms. Anita Ramachandran - Chairperson
Mr. Vivek Gambhir - Member
Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar - Member

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE

Mr. Vivek Gambhir - Chairman
Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah - Member
Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah - Member

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah - Chairman*
*Ceased to be a member w.e.f. May 27, 2021

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah - Chairperson
Mr. Milind Sarwate - Member
Mr. Vijender Singh - Member

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Ms. Anita Ramachandran - Chairperson

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah - Member

Mr. Milind Sarwate - Member

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah - Chairman and Executive Director

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah - Managing Director

Mr. Vijender Singh - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Rakesh Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Poonam Tanwani - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors
BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants

Internal Auditors
Suresh Surana & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants

Secretarial Auditors
M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries

Cost Auditors

M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS
Metropolis Healthcare Limited

CIN: L73100MH2000PLC192798; 250 D, Udyog Bhavan, Hind Cycle
Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400030, Maharashtra, India

Tel. No. : +91-22-6258-2810
Email address : secretarial@metropolisindia.com
Website : www.metropolisindia.com

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, LBS Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083

Tel. No.: 91 22 4918 6200, Fax No.: 91 22 4918 6195

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

BANKERS
HDFC Bank Limited ICICI Bank Limited
YES Bank Limited AXIS Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank, India Citi Bank, N.A.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
Global Economy

The global economic graph saw some of the worst plunges in
2020-21. However, the proactiveness shown by most of the
Governments through stimulus and aggressive vaccination
drives allowed most nations to tide over the worst and witness
rekindled growth going forward.

Prior to COVID-19 unsettling the world, the global economy was
already facing turbulent times. Growing instability in economic
trends, highly volatile oil prices and geographical tensions
between US and China, UK and other European nations were
some of the factors that arrested the growth. The sudden
outbreak of the COVID-18 pandemic only added misery to the
already existing woes.

While the economy was aniticipated to revive after a drop in
2019, the worldwide lockdowns, travel bans, trade restrictions,
logistics and supply chain disruptions, caused a contraction
of 3.3% in 2020. The CQOVID-19-induced pandemic forced
the world economy to witness a major shake up and exposed
various flaws in business operations. This led to a global
recession, the magnitude of which was surpassed only by
the two World Wars. Causing severe loss of life and jobs, the
pandemic pushed millions into extreme poverty.

Indian Economy

India has vast economic landscape and socio-economic
livelihood. It has been most resilient in the past to external
hazards of environment. However, the unexpected COVID-19
outbreak brought in ambiguity. It directly impacted the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) of the nation. Sustaining one of the
worst economic contractions in 2020, India's economy is,
however, showing decisive signs of a 'V-shaped’ recovery in
2021. India is now better prepared for a healthy recovery with
positive sentiments across the nation. With rapid changes in
Government policies torevive the economy, stimulus packages,
vaccination drives and eased lockdowns, the nation is slowly
recuperating. This has brought back consumer confidence,
robust financial markets, an uptick in manufacturing and
exports.

After a tough vyear, the Index of Industrial Production (IIP)
witnessed a growth of 22.4% in March 2021. On the other
hand, the retail inflation rate measured by the Consumer Price
Index (CPI), eased to 4.29% in April 2021, which was recorded
at 5.52% in March 2021. The GDP growth witnessed a positive
momentum in the last quarter of 2020-21. The Goods and
Services Tax (GST) collection for March 2021 touched an all-
time high of ¥ 1.23 lakh crores. Exports witnessed a growth of
56.93% to % 2,50,756.40 crores, as compared to % 1,59,784.62
croresin March lastyear, according to the data compiled by the
Department of Commerce.

The Government in Union Budget 2021-22 promoted
Atmanirbhar Bharat (self-reliant India) with duty hikes to
support its ‘Make in India’ campaign while also encouraging
overseas investments. Additionally, a slew of announcements

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

across sectors, such as healthcare and core infrastructure, is
further expected to boost the growth prospects.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Indian Healthcare

The Indian healthcare sector was adversely impacted in
financial year 2020-21 with the sudden outbreak of the
pandemic. An uncertainty engulfed the sector, adding distress
to the already exisiting economic slump. The virus outbreak
resulted in a 70-80% drop in footfall, test volumes. Despite
the initial blow, the healthcare system in India managed
to withstand the pandemic. The robustness of the Indian
healthcare system helped it to quickly innovate and adapt to
the rapid transformation. With steep fall in hospital footfalls,
the healthcare sector shifted to virtual care, remote medicine,
tele consultations and remote monitoring.

India’s healthcare industry has been recording a Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of around 22% since 2016, as per
Niti Ayog. At this rate, it is expected to reach USD 372 Billion in
2022. Healthcare has become one of the largest sectors of the
Indian economy in terms of revenue and employment. In 2017,
the Indian healthcare sector was the fourth largest employer
in the Indian economy. Moreover, the sector is witnessing
a growing emphasis on the emergence of Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) model. A relative cost competitiveness
and availability of skilled labour are making it an increasingly
favoured destination for Medical Value Travel.

Indian Diagnostics Industry

The Indian diagnostics industry has emerged as an attractive
arena in India's growing healthcare sector. It is one of the
fastest growing services in the country. The domestic
diagnostics industry is estimated at USD 9 Billion (around
% 675 Billion). It is expected to register a CAGR of ~10% over
the next 5 years. Growth will be primarily driven by change
in demographics, increase in lifestyle diseases, and higher
income levels across all strata of society, rise in preventive
testing, deeper penetration with asset-light expansion, and
spread of healthcare services and insurance. The diagnostics
segment is a critical component of the healthcare sector.
Globally, ~80% of physician diagnoses are a result of laboratory
tests.

The industry is broadly segregated into pathology testing
and imaging diagnostic services. Pathology testing (in-vitro
diagnosis)includes sample collectionin the form of blood, urine
and stool. This is followed by the sample’s analysation using
laboratory equipment and technology to derive useful clinical
information for assisting in patient treatment. The imaging
diagnostic segment consists of more complex tests such as
computed tomography (CT) scans and magnetic resonance
imaging (MRI). It also includes other highly specialised tests
such as positron emission tomography (PET)-CT scans. As per
estimates, the pathology segment contributes ~58% of the
total market revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Contd.)

Exhibit 1: Indian diagnostic industry - market structure

Diagnostic Industry
INR 675 Bn
\J 7 v

Hospitals Standalone centres Diagnostic chains
37% 47% 16%

Hospitals with own labs Small labs with basic tests Hub and spoke
models

Regional chains Pan India chains
% 6%

Indian diagnostic industry - Positioning

Exhibit 2: Indian diagnostic Exhibit 3: Referrals consti- Exhibit 4: Market mix
industry - Break-up tute lion’s share of Indian | between urban and rural
diagnostic industry

Rural,

. Corporate i
Radiology Pathology | clients58% Walkcins | _35% 4
42% L 58% 58%

Urban,

Referrals
55%

Source: Edelweiss Pr

Research

(Source:https://www.financialexpress.com/budget/bud-
get-2021-indian-medical-device-manufacturers-keep-their-ho
pes-high-for-a-level-play-to-contribute-for-affordable-acces-
sible-healthcare/2180561/)

COVID-19 Impact

Covid-19 made a massive dent in the diagnostics sector with
a steep fall in patient volumes since the beginning of 2020.
The pandemic developed an eerie sense of fear among people,
which eventually impacted hospital/clinic and lab visits. Reg-
ular checkups became cumbersome, stressful and time con-
suming. While the overall diagnostics sector seemed to have
suffered a decline, the area of home diagnostics was the silver
lining in the new scheme of things.

As the pandemic spread, regional Governments created high
awareness among people on the infections, diagnosis, and ef-
fective management of the virus. This ultimately accelerated
the diagnostic product approvals and testing processes across
the nation. Private laboratories increased their focus on home
collection services and witnessed a significant growth in home
collection for routine samples across all regions. Anywhere,
anytime services (home collection services) to offer free
round-the-clock lab services at the doorstep, including ECG,
were started by certain laboratories. Mobile testing vans and
drive-through sites for conducting routine pathological tests
and COVID-19 tests also led to a huge surge in demand for test-
ing.

The diagnosticindustry on the other hand saw a sharp uptickin
growth, benefiting from increased demand for COVID-19 test-
ing. However, towards the end of 2020, the non-COVID services
achieved normalcy gradually and the COVID-19 testing started
declining with the fall in case load. But with the second wave
of COVID-19, more workloads were witnessed, more COVID-19

testing facilities were being created all over India to meet the
demand that may arise due to the prolonged pandemic. With
non-COVID tests coming back on track, laboratories anticipate
a need for more capacity and facilities.

Outlook

A change in mindset, rising awareness, increased income
levels, access to insurance and lifestyle related diseases are
unitedly giving momentum to rise of healthcare sector in In-
dia. The Indian Government aims at increasing the spending
to 3% of the GDP by 2022, which stands at ~1.2% of the GDP.
The Government has issued new guidelines to make telemed-
icine a legal practice. To strengthen National Health Mission,
the Government has announced an outlay of ¥ 64,180 crores
for detection and for cure of new and emerging diseases,
the Ministry of AYUSH was allocated ¥ 2,970 crores up from
32,122 crores.

The Government has also launched the National Digital Health
Mission (NDHM) to address the country’s health crisis. The
major components of this mission encompass telemedi-
cine, health IDs, health records, along with e-pharmacy and
digi-doctor services. All this measures and efforts is seen to
usher in an era of digital and technological innovations in the
Indian healthcare system.

Post CQVID-19, testing for well-being is likely to increase as
people will be making a conscious effort to stay fit. However,
testing for sick care would still dominate the market. It is ex-
pected that preventive care well-being testing segment will
propel at a CAGR of approximately 20% over the next three fi-
nancial years.

MAJOR GROWTH DRIVERS
Aging pollution

The share of older people in the overall Indian population is ris-
ing. In many cases, an increase inage means anincrease in the
number and complexity of ilinesses. Thereby, resulting in more
demand for diagnostic services and preventive care.

Rising income level

The rise in per capita income has increased the disposable in-
come of people. This leads to high customer expenditure and
changes in consumption patterns. This has opened up doors
for healthy living and preventive care, whichin turnisan oppor-
tunity for the diagnostics sector.

Corporate screening

The corporate sector is promoting employees to undergo pre-
ventive and wellness tests. This is done majorly to support the
well-being of their employees and potentially to reduce absen-
teeism and health risk level. With employer covering the cost
of employees' health screening in the packages, the diagnos-
tic industry is surely going to witness a new source of income
from this segment.
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Convenience

The convenience provided to customers through online book-
ing, home collection of samples, and online reporting are the
driving factors behind diagnostic services. The success of
this model lies in the simple fact that it reduces the common
man's burden of travelling for any kind of diagnostic service.
This convenience has helped in tapping significant opportuni-
ties for entities with a strong network and high-tech lab. Thus,
increasing the revenue turnaround time by reporting a quick
result.

Public-private partnership (PPPs)

There is a lack of manpower, inadequate resources such as di-
agnostics, pathology and stock-outs in the public healthcare
institutions operating in rural areas. To bridge this gap, private
players come into play. They help deliver efficient services in
the Government-run hospitals through PPP model. Thus, using
private players to the advantage can help penetrate this un-
tapped market.

Government policy impact

The Government is making efforts with a proposal to ensure
minimum standards in the country’s diagnostics and wellness
services to regulate the industry. These rules and regulations
will help guarantee the delivery of quality diagnostics and
wellness services across the country. This will act as a pillar
of growth for all the transparent and ethical players of the in-
dustry.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Business performance

THREATS

Problem of ownership

Itis often found that doctors and professionals working at hos-
pitals and small labs lack entrepreneurial skills. They lack busi-
ness knowledge and can thus pose a threat to the diagnostic
services companies affiliated with them.

Policy deficiencies

India has definitely improved its standing on the list of ease of
doing business. However, the nation is still behind many coun-
tries because of its complicated regulatory frameworks and
time-consuming administrative work. This can be a potential
threat to the overall Indian diagnostic eco-system.

Company Overview

Metropolis Healthcare Ltd is a leading diagnostics company
in India with widespread presence in 19 states of the country.
It touches millions of lives each year by providing actionable
health insights to patients and doctors. Metropolis offers a
comprehensive range of 4,000-plus tests and profiles that
include advanced tests in diagnosis of cancer, neurological
disorders, infectious diseases, and an array of genetic abnor-
malities. Metropolis's commitment to quality and accuracy in
each test is reinforced by its consistent CAP proficiency score
of more than 98% over the past decade. This places it among
the top 1% laboratories worldwide for quality assurance. Me-
tropolis's philosophy rests on the pillars of technological supe-
riority, a warm patient-centric approach and reliable diagnos-
tic reports.

2019-20 2020-21
Revenue per patient 856 1,015
Revenue per test 436 524
Laboratory network 124 125
Service network 2,731 25565

Financial performance (in Zcrores)

2019-20 2020-21
Revenue from operation 856 998
EBITDA 232 288
Profit after Tax 124 183

' METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD




CORPORATE OVERVIEW

STATUTORY REPORTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MANAGEMENT DISCU

Key ratios of Metropolis

SSION & ANALYSIS (Contd.)

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 Variance
Debtors turnover 3.62 4.63 25.1%
Inventory turnover 33.90 30.7 -9.3%
Interest coverage ratio NA NA NA
Current ratio 2.33 3.0 27.9%
Debt equity ratio NA NA NA
Operating profit margin (%) 27.22% 28.86% 1.64%
Net profit margin (%) 14.95% 18.34% 3.39%
RISK AND CONCERNS

Risks Impact Mitigation

Competition The diagnostics industry in India is highly | We focus on higher exposure towards specialised

competitive with several companies present in
the market. Therefore, it is challenging to improve
market share and profitability. Competitors include
diagnostics healthcare service providers in India,
hospital based laboratories, independent clinical
laboratories, other smaller-scale providers of
diagnostics services and international service
providers, which may establish and expand their
operations in future.

test. Thereby helping us to be the frontrunnerin the
industry. The Company competes on the breadth
of test offerings, the geographical reach of its
network, ability to accurately process specimens
and report data in a timely manner and customer
relationships.

Technological
advancement

Technological advancement could lead to the
development of more cost-effective technologies
or non-invasive diagnostic healthcare tests, which
are more convenient or less expensive than the
teststhat offer. Theintroduction of such technology
and its subsequent use by existing and potential
patients could lead to a decline in the demand for
the Company’s services.

Advances in technology may lead to the
development of more cost-effective tests that
can be performed outside a commercial clinical
laboratory. Such tests, however, are restricted in
number and also the machines that can conduct
such tests come at a cost. Offering a diverse
range, the Company’'s tests are mare economical
and accurate as opposed to such tests. Also, our
detailed analysis helps the patient comprehend its
health, which insulates us from such disruptions.

Pricing pressures

Prices that the Company charge for services could
become subject to recommended or maximum fees
set by the Government or other authorities.

For example, the Government introduced ‘price
list' for COVID-19 test, which were mandatory, this
may result in guidance for the prices the Company
charge for diagnostic healthcare services.

We are present across the length and breadth of
diagnostic industry with presence across nation.
Our diverse test offerings help us mitigate any such
guidance by Governmernts over such tests. Also,
owing to our technological upgradations and unique
business model, the impact of such regulations is
limited to a smaller impact.

System failure

Information Technology (IT) systems are used
extensively in virtually all aspects of our business,
including clinical testing, test reporting, billing,
customer service, logistics and management of
medical data. Our success depends, in part, on
the continued and uninterrupted performance of
our IT systems. A failure or delay in our IT systems
could impede our ability to serve our customers
and patients and protect their confidential data.
Any disruption or failure of our IT systems could
have a material impact on our ability to serve our
customers and patients, including negatively
affecting our reputation in the marketplace.

Digitisation is one of our focus areas. We have
transformed ourselves to ride the wave of
digitisation. In this view we have developed
and practice an absolute security strategy.
Our comprehensive security program assures
prevention and detects such events at the early
stage of occurrence thereby helping us build
response and mitigate it.
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Skilled
shortages

personnel

Our people are a critical resource. The supply of
qualified personnel maybe limited and competition
forqualified employeesisstrong. We may lose, or fail
to attract and retain, key management personnel,
or qualified skilled technical or professional
employees. Our ability to attract and retain qualified
employees is critical to the success of our business
and the failure to do so may materially adversely

It is important that we continue to strengthen our
efficiency to promote our competitive position
and to enable us to mitigate the impact on our
profitability. This goal is fulfilled by a perfect match
of skilled personnel. Exploring recruits for the
right place is one of the constants at Metropolis.
The experienced leadership team underpins our
training programmes. This along with work-based

affect our performance.

remuneration framework has aided us to retain
employees and recruit enthusiastic millennials.

IT AND DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE

Qur core technology differentiator remains in the manner,
which allows us to fully integrate and automate the process
ranging from registration, bar-coding, and billing of specimens
to analysis and reporting of test results. This has helped us in
streamlining and optimising the operations as well as mini-
mising human errors. Our digital app enhances customer ex-
perience by allowing them to book appointments, complete
registration, and access test reports online. This strong IT and
digital infrastructure plays an integral role in helping us stay
ahead of the industry benchmark performance and ensure we
are the easiest place to do business.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Metropolis is made up of more than 4,500 highly skilled, mo-
tivated, and solution-driven individuals, who collectively rep-
resent our family. Built on the foundation of strong values, we
strive to provide a safe, challenging and rewarding environ-
ment for our employees. Wherein equal opportunity is provid-
ed to everyone, so that each individual regardless of their gen-
der, religion and caste can prosper. During their period at the
Company, employees are motivated through various skill-de-
velopment, engagement, and volunteering programs. As we
continue to grow organically, our HR functions are also evolv-
ing to provide most effective solutions. For eg., our new HR
Management System has automated the processes resulting
in improved productivity and ensuring availability of employee
data on demand.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an adequate internal controls system in
place. The policies and procedures, covering all financial and
operating functions, are also documented. The system con-
trols are designed to provide reasonable assurance for main-

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

taining proper accounting records. This reinforces reliability
of financial reporting, monitoring of operations, protection
of assets from unauthorised use or losses and compliance of
regulations.

The scope and coverage of audits include:

1. Reviewing and reporting of key process risks

2. Adhering to operating guidelines and statutory compli-
ances

3. Recommending improvements for monitoring and en-
hancing efficiency of operations

4. Ensuring reliability of financial and operational informa-
tion. The Audit Committee periodically monitors and re-
views the significant internal audit observations. It also
reviews compliance with accounting standards, risk man-
agement and control systems and profitability.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis describ-
ing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, expecta-
tions or predictions may be forward looking statements’ within
the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Ac-
tual results could differ materially from those expressed or im-
plied. Important

factors that could make a difference to the Company’s opera-
tions include global and Indian demand and supply conditions,
finished goods prices, input materials availability and prices, cy-
clical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets,
changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic de-
velopments within India and the

countries within which the Company conducts business and
other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations. The
Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify
or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any
subsequent development, information or events or otherwise.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 21st Annual Report on the business and operations of your Company along with the

Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The key highlights of the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 and comparison with the previous financial year ended March 31, 2020 are summarized below:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Fortheyear  Fortheyear Fortheyear  For the year
ended March endedMarch ended March ended March
31, 2021 31,2020 31,2021 31,2020

Revenue from Operations 81,610.83 66,530.71 99,798.70 85,640.54
Otherincome 4,864.76 2,931.79 1,204.52 856.66
Total Revenue 86,475.59 69,462.50 101,003.22 86,497.20
Less: Total expenses 61,870.80 53,010.76 76,570.92 67,119.25
Profit before exceptional items and tax 24,604.79 16,451.74 24,432.30 19,377.95
Exceptional items = 2,452.66 = 2,452.66
Profit before share of profit for equity accounted investees and 24,604.79 13,999.08 24,432.30 16,925.29
tax
Share of loss for equity accounted investees(net of tax) = - = (51.98)
Profit Before Tax 24,604.79 13,999.08 24,432.30 16,873.31
Less: Tax Expenses 4,849.28 2,793.65 6,097.43 4,118.09
Profit after Tax 19,755.51 11,205.43 18,334.87 12,755.22
Basic Earning per share of face value of ¥ 2/- each 38.81 22.32 35.97 25.36
Diluted Earning per share of face value of ¥ 2/- each 38.61 22.22 35.79 25.25
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & FUTURE OUTLOOK COVID-19

During the year under review, the Standalone income of
the Company increased to ¥ 86,475.59 Lakhs compared to
369,462.50 Lakhs in the previous year, registering growth of
24.49%. The Standalone profit after tax for the year increased
to ¥ 19,755.51 Lakhs as compared to ¥ 11,205.43 Lakhs in the
previous year registering growth of 76.30%.

During the year under review, the Consolidated income of the
Groupincreased to¥101,003.22 Lakhs compared to ¥ 86,497.20
Lakhs in the previous year, registering growth of 16.77%.
The Consolidated profit after tax for the group increased to
T 18,334.87 Lakhs as compared to ¥ 12,755.22 Lakhs in the
previous year registering growth of 43.74%.

The operating and financial performance of your Company
has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Report which forms a part of the Annual Report.

During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the COVID-19 pandemic
developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing Governments to
enforce lock-downs of all economic activities. The COVID-19
pandemic impacted India in its peak during the month of April
to September after which the conditions started to improve as
there was decline in the cases of COVID-19. Though again the
second wave was in force in the mid of March 2021.

The Company had arranged work from home for its employees
during the pandemic to ensure the health and well-being of the
employees. While most of the economic activities were at halt
during the lockdown period, the healthcare sector continued
operations under the Essential Services Maintenance Act,
1968.

The Company being in the industry of healthcare services
was declared as one of the essential services during the
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pandemic. Your Company operated by continuing the services
of pathology labs for its customers across channels. The
Government authorised the Metropolis Labs as one of the
authorised pathology labs for carrying out the COVID-19 tests
during the pandemic. With the best TAT, continuous medical
engagement with doctors and government authorities,
strong branding and customer equity that we enjoy, we were
successful in churning out COVID-19 tests. Initially the testing
lab was set up at our Global Reference Lab in Mumbai however
as volumes increased we set up Covid-19 facility at Thane and
subsequently at Chennai, Bengaluru, Pune and Delhi.

The Company ensured the safety of employees, who were
required to step out for home collection of samples and they
have been mandated to take all safety precautions. We have
curtailed the number of employees working at all the Offices
and currently majority of employees continue to work from
home.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated financial statements of your Company for
the Financial Year 2020-2021 are prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements read with Ind
AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Ind AS 31 - Interests in
Joint Ventures, and SEBI (Listing Obligations Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements form part of the Annual Report.

DIVIDEND

During the year under review, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on February 10, 2021 declared an interim dividend
of ¥ 8 per equity share (face value of ¥ 2/- each) on 5,11,16,813
fully-paid up equity shares aggregating to total outflow of
3 40,89,34,504/-.

The Interim Dividend was paid to those shareholders whose
names appeared in the Register of Members as on the record
datei.e., February 19, 2021.

In order to conserve the resources for business requirement,
your Board of Directors do not recommend final dividend for
FY 2020-2021.

The Dividend Payout is in accordance with the Company’s
Dividend Distribution Policy. The Dividend Distribution Policy
of the Company is available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed through the following web link:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-
conduct/MHL-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
RESERVES

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to
General Reserves for the financial year 2020-2021.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company between the
end of the financial year and date of this report. There has
been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

ACOQUISITIONS

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of your
Company have approved the following:

1. Acquisition of balance stake in two of its existing
Subsidiary Companies i.e. in Metropolis Histoxpert Digital
Services Private Limited (‘Histoxpert’) and Raj Metropolis
Healthcare Private Limited (Raj Metropolis’).

The Company has acquired the balance stake of 49% in
Raj Metropolis and with effect from November 5, 2020,
Raj Metropolis became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The Company had approved to acquire the balance stake
of 35% in Histoxpert in August 2020. However, due to the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic and resultant lockdown in
Netherlands, the head quarter of Koninklijke Philips N. V.
(‘Philips’), the JV partner of Metropolis Histoxpert Digital
Services Private Limited (‘Histoxpert’), the Company
could not complete the said acquisition till March 31, 2021
and is currently in the process of acquiring the balance
stake.

2. Acquisition of 100% stake in Dr. Ganesan’s Hitech Diagnostics
Centre Private Limited (Hitech)

The Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting
held on January 17, 2021 approved the acquisition of
100% stake in Hitech for a consideration to be discharged
partly by way of Cash Consideration and partly by way of
issuance of up to 495,000 equity shares of the Company
on a Preferential basis to the existing shareholders of
Hitech.

Further, the shareholders of the Company accorded their
consent to the above by passing a Special Resolution
through Postal Ballot on February 18, 2021.

The Company had also obtained the In-principle approval
from the Stock Exchanges but due to the bad health of
the sellers and the resultant lockdown in Chennai (the
residence of the shareholders of Hitech) the Company
could not complete the aforementioned acquisition as on
the date of approval of this report.

However, the Company is in continuous talks with the
Hitech shareholders to ensure closure of the the above
acquisition.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of the business or any
activity of business of the Company during the year under
review.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the paid up equity share capital of
the Company has increased to Rs. 10,22,33,626/- (Rupees Ten
Crores Twenty Two Lakhs Thirty Three Thousand Six Hundred
and Twenty Six Only) consisting of 5,11,16,813 equity shares of
Rs. 2 each as on March 31, 2021. The said increase in the paid
up equity share capital is pursuant to the allotment of equity
shares under the Metropolis Employee Stock Options Scheme
-2015(MESQS 2015), to the eligible employees of the Company
/ Subsidiaries.

The details of allotment made under MESOS during the year
under review is as follows:

Date of Allotment No. of Equity Shares allotted
under MESOS 2015

May 13, 2020 51,096

August 11, 2020 247,264

November 11, 2020 1,77,887

February 10, 2021 10,000

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any
shares with differential voting rights, has not bought back any
shares, it has neither issued sweat equity shares and does not
have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the equity
shares of the Company.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted/invited deposits from the
public falling within the ambit of section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

During the year, the Company has not taken any loan from the
promoter directors.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY

The Company has formulated a Policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries. The Company does not have any Material
Subsidiary as per the parameters laid down under the Policy.
The Policy is available on the website of the Company and can
be accessed through the following weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/
Investors/code-of-conduct/9+MHL_
Policy+for+determination+of+Material+Subsidiary.pdf

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Subsidiary Companies of your Company continued to
perform in their respective areas as per the plans and thus
contributed robustly to the overall growth of the Company
in terms of revenue and profits of the Company and overall
performance of the Group.

AsonMarch 31,2021, the Company had 11domestic subsidiaries
and 7 overseas subsidiaries (including five step-down overseas
subsidiaries), 1 Foreign branch (which is considered as foreign
Company in the respective country) and 1 overseas Associate
Company.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 a
Statement containing the salient features of the Financial
Statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures,
Associate Companies in the specified formati.e. Form AOC - 1
is annexed as "Annexure 1" to this Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of your Company
comprises of 6 (Six) Directors, of which 4 (Four) are Non-
Executive Directors & 2 (Two) are Executive Directors. The
constitution of the Board of the Company isin accordance with
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company
considering the vast knowledge, integrity and varied
experience and proficiency, on May 14, 2020 appointed Ms.
Anita Ramachandran (DIN: 00118188) as an Additional Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company for a period of
five years w.e.f. May 14, 2020. The said appointment was also
approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on September 16, 2020.

During the year, the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on May 29, 2020 re-appointed Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah (DIN:
00179918) as a Whole-time Director (designated as Chairman
and Executive Director) of the Company for a period of five
years w.e.f. September 4, 2020. The said re-appointment
was also approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 16,
2020.

Further, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
February 10, 2021 re-appointed Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah
(DIN: 00208095) as a Managing Director of the Company for a
period of five years with effect from March 18, 2021 subject to
the approval of the members of the Company at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the matter for re-
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appointment of Ms. Ameera Shah as a Managing Director for
a period of five years has been placed before the shareholders
for their approval and forms a part of the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

Further, pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration, the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on May 27, 2021 have approved the appointment of Mr. Hemant
Sachdev (DIN:01635195) as an Additional Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director of the Company liable to retire
by rotation, subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Accordingly,
the matter for appointment of Mr. Hemant Sachdev as a Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company has been
placed before the shareholders for their approval and forms a
part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors, none of the above directors are disqualified under
Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are also not
debarred by SEBI or any other Statutory authority for holding
office of a Director.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, there was no change in the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

As per the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on
March 31, 2021 were as under:

1. Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah, Managing Director;
Mr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah, Whole-time Director;
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer;

Mr. Vijender Singh, Chief Executive Officer; and

ok~ NN

Ms. Poonam Tanwani,
Compliance Officer.

Company Secretary and

DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made there under, out
of the total Directors, two-third of the Directors shall retire
by rotation every year and if eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the AGM.

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah, Chairman and Executive Director of
the Company is liable to retire by rotation and he being eligible,
has offered himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The Board of Directors
recommend his re-appointment and the matteris being placed
for seekingapproval of members at the ensuing Annual General

C1IN METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Meeting of the Company. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015 read with Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings,
brief details of Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah, are provided as an
Annexure to the Notice convening the 21st Annual General
Meeting.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and other
applicable provisions, if any, and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent
Directors are appointed for a term of b years and are not liable
to retire by rotation.

The Company has received declarations from the Independent
Directors confirming that they meet with the criteria of
Independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1{b) of the SEBI(Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their
status as Independent Directors of the Company.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of
the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company, other than receiving the Sitting fees,
Commission, if any, and reimbursement of expenses incurred
by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board /
Committees of the Company.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the SEBI Regulations, the Company has worked out
a Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors,
with a view to familiarise them with their role, rights and
responsibilities in the Company, nature of Industry in which the
Company operates, business model of the Company, etc.

Through the Familiarisation Programme, the Company apprises
the Independent Directors about the business model, corporate
strategy, business plans and operations of the Company. The
directors are also informed about the financial performance,
annual budgets, internal control system, statutory compliances
etc. They are also familiarised with Company’s vision, core
values, ethics and corporate governance practices.

Details of Familiarisation Programme of Independent Directors
with the Company are available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed through the following weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-
conduct/MHL_Familiarization-Programme-for-Independent-
Directors.pdf
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of
your Company have carried out Annual Performance evaluation
of:

(i) Their own performance as a whole;
(i) Individual Directors Performance; and

(iii) Performance of all Committees of the Board for the
Financial Year 2020-2021.

The performance of the Board as a Whole and of its
Committeeswas evaluated by the Board through structured
guestionnaire which covered various aspects such as
the composition and quality, meetings and procedures,
contribution to Board processes, effectiveness of the
functions allocated, relationship with management,
professional development, adequacy, appropriateness and
timeliness of information etc. Taking into consideration
the responses received from the Individual Directors
to the questionnaire, performance of the Board and its
Committees was evaluated. The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

In terms of requirements of Schedule IV Act, a separate
meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was
held on March 30, 2021 to review:

(a) The performance of Non- Independent Directors
(including the Chairperson);

(b) The performance of the Board as a whole and its
Committees thereof, taking into views of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors; and

(c) To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow
of information between the Management and the Board.

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was
done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director
being evaluated.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The brief on the policy on remuneration and other matters
provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Annual
Report of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is also available on the website of the Company and can
be accessed through the following weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-
conduct/MHL_Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

(a) Inpreparation of the Annual accounts for the year ended
March 31, 2021; the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

(b) They have selected such accounting policies as
mentioned in the notes to the Financial Statements
and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give true and fair view of the Statement of Affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the Profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date

(c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) They have prepared the Annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

(e) They have laid down internal finance controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal finance
controls are adequate and operating effectively;

(f)  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Business Responsibility Report as per clause (f) of sub
regulation (2) of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
Disclosures Requirements), Regulations, 2015 is applicable to
the Company.

Business Responsibility Report for the Financial year ended
2020-2021is presented in a separate section and forms part of
the Annual Report of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review, as stipulated under Requlation 34 of the (Listing
Obligations Disclosures Requirements), Regulations, 2015 is
presented in a separate section and forms part of the Annual
Report of the Company.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of your Company have formed various
Committees, as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Requlations, 2015 and as a part of the best
corporate governance practices, the terms of reference and
the constitution of those Committees is in compliance with
the applicable laws.

In order to ensure focused attention on business and for better
governance and accountability, the Board has constituted the
following committees:

a)  Audit Committee;

b)  Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee;

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

e) Risk Management Committee.

The details with respect to the Composition, powers, roles,
terms of reference, etc. of the aforesaid committees are given
in detailsinthe “Corporate Governance Report” of the Company
which is presented in a separate section and forms part of the
Annual Report of the Company.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, the Board met 6 (Six) times, the
details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS

No significant material orders have been passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on
the website of the Company and can be accessed through
the following weblink: https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/
Investors/Annual %20Reports/MGT-7_MHL_2020-21.pdf

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder are given in the note no. 49(a)to the
Financial Statements.

U7 METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY, REPORTED BY THE
STATUTORY AUDITORS:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not
reported any fraud under Section 143 (12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board has formulated and adopted a Related Party
Transactions Policy ("RPT Policy’) for the purpose of
identification, monitoring and reporting of related party
transactions. The RPT Policy as approved by the Board is
available on the Company's website and can be accessed
through the following weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-
conduct/MHL__Palicy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.pdf

All the Related Party Transactions entered into during the
financial year were entered in the Ordinary course of business
and at an arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant
Related Party Transactions made by the Company with its
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

Further, since the transactions with the related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and at arms length pricing and
not materialinaccordance with the Related Party Transactions
Policy, the particulars of such transactions with the related
parties are not required to be reported by the Company in Form
AOC-2.

All the Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis.

The members may refer to note no. 39 to the financial
statements which set out Related Party Disclosures.

AUDITORS AND REPORTS

Statutory Auditors

B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAlI Firm No.
101248W/W-100022) was appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the
17th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 18, 2017.

Further, in terms of Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017
notified w.e.f. May 7, 2018, the requirement for ratification of
appointment of the Statutory Auditors at every AGM is not
required and therefore, the matter is not placed before the
members for their approval.

The Auditors Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2021, does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark. Further, the Auditors have expressed an Unmodified
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Opinion on the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and
Consolidated)for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Pursuant to provisions of the Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial
Auditor have reported any incident of fraud to the Audit or the
Risk Committee during the year under review.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to Section 204 read with Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Directorshadappointed M/s.Manish Ghia& Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 312021. The Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed
Form No. MR-3 is attached as “Annexure 2" and forms a part
of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

The following are the clarifications to the observations given
by the Secretarial Auditor in their Audit report:

1. Some properties are yet to be mutated in the name of the
company, accordingly to that extent the same are not in
compliance with provisions of Section 187 of the Act;

Company Response: The Company is in the process
of getting the title deeds registered in the name of the
Company, since the said properties were acquired
under the scheme of amalgamation, the Company has
already filed necessary documents with the adjudication
authorities.

2. The requirement relating to having an Independent
Woman Director applicable to the company with effect
from April 1, 2020 under Regulation17(1) of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 was however
complied w.e.f. May 14, 2020;

Company Response: The Company had taken steps
and made to appoint a Woman Independent Director on
its Board within the stipulated time frame but however
due to strict lockdown from March 2020 in view of the
outbreak of COVID-19 and further Company’s active
involvement to build infrastructure for COVID-19 testing
during this turbulent time, the appointment of a Woman
Independent Director got little delayed.

The BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited levied a penalty of Rs. 2,53,700 (to be paid
to each Exchange) for non-appointment of a Woman
Independent Director for the period April 1, 2020 to May

STATUTORY REPORTS

13, 2020 after seeking for clarification from the Company
on the non-compliance of the same.

However, to meet the deadline for depositing the penalty
amount, the Company has simultaneously deposited the
amount of penalty levied by BSE on September 4, 2020
and by NSE on August 29, 2020 and filed the applications
with the exchanges for the waiver of fine. The application
for the waiver of fine was considered favourably and the
waiver of penalty was allowed by National Stock of India
Limited, and the said matter is still pending with BSE Ltd.

3. The Company has not spent in full the mandated
percentage of 2% average profits on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities; however the reasons for
not being able to spend has been duly disclosed in the
Report made under Section 135 of the Act and further
such unspent amount has been transferred to a separate
bank account within the stipulated time as the earmarked
spendingis related to ongoing projects;

Company Response: During the year, the Company
collaborated as an Industry partner in pursuance of
its CSR initiative with Delhi Skill & Entrepreneurship
University (DSEU') for the purpose of initiating aacademic
multi-year structured course of 3 (three)years leading to
a degree in the field of Medical Laboratory Science and
approved it as a multiyear ongoing project as the fresh
initiative under the current CSR platform MEDENGAGE
known as MEDENGAGE DSEU project.

However till the year ended March 31, 2021, the above
project could not be implemented and therefore, no
amount was spent on the said ongoing project during the
Financial Year 2020-2021.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has transferred the
total unspent amount relating to the Ongoing project in a
separate bank account within the stipulated time.

Internal Auditor

The Company has robust internal audit system for assessment
of audit findings and its mitigation. The Internal Audit function
covers all the labs, inventory audit, stock takes, audit for
project related accounts, corporate accounts etc.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, Suresh Surana
& Associates LLP, were appointed by the Board of Directors to
conductinternal audit reviews of the Company and the Internal
Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee for functional
matters.
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The Audit Committee in its quarterly meetings reviews the
internal audit and controls reports. The Company’s internal
controls are commensurate with the size and operations of the
business. Continuous internal monitoring mechanism ensures
timely identification and redressal of issues.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out quarterly
audits to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services(India) Limited (CDSL), along with the total
issued and listed equity shares capital. These audits confirm
that the total issued and paid-up equity share capital tallies
with the total number of equity shares in physical form, plus
the total number of dematerialised shares held by NSDL and
CDSL.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy wherein
all material risks faced by the Company are identified and
assessed. The Company has formed a Risk Management
Committee which defines the risk management approach
of the Company and includes collective identification of risks
impacting the Company's business and documents their
process of identification, mitigation and optimisation of such
risks. The Risk Management Policy is available on the website
of the Company and can be accessed through the following
weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-
conduct/MHL_Risk-Management-Policy.pdf

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has aninternal control system. All these controls
were operating effectively during the year. The Company has
adequate internal financial controls. Further, the members
of the Audit Committee interact with the Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditors and management in dealing with matters
within its terms of reference. During the year, such controls
were assessed to find out any weaknesses in them. Services
of professional consultants were obtained to remove such
weaknesses wherever required and ensuring that the internal
financial controls are robust and are operating effectively.

The Company is complying with all the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The accounting records are
maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in India. This ensures that the financial statements
reflect true and fair financial position of the Company.

The details of the internal financial control systems and their
adequacy are included in a detailed manner in Management
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Discussions and Analysis Report, which forms part of the
Annual Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Provisions of maintenance of Cost records as specified by the
Central Government under Section 148 (1) of Companies Act,
2013 are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, such Cost
accounts are made and the Cost records are maintained by the
Company in the prescribed format.

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 the Company is required to have the audit of its Cost
records. The aforementioned auditis required to be conducted
by a Cost Accountant. The Board of Directors of the Company
have on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment of M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates
(Registration No. 00240) as the Cost Auditors of the Company
to conduct Cost audit as prescribed under the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year
2021-2022. The Board of Directors on recommendation of
the Audit Committee have approved a remuneration of Rs.
1,00,000 plus applicable GST and reimbursement of travelling
and out of pocket expenses, subject to the ratification of their
remuneration by the Members of the Company at the ensuing
AGM.

M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates have, under Section 141 of the
Act and the Rules framed thereunder, furnished a certificate
confirming their eligibility and consent for appointment as
Cost Auditors of the Company.

M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, have vast experience in the field
of Cost audit and have conducted the audit of the Cost records
of the Company for the past several years.

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION OR COMMISSION RECEIVED
BY A MANAGING OR WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR FROM THE
COMPANY’S HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Managing Director and Whole Time Director have not
received any remuneration from the Company’s Subsidiary
Companies.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility)
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directorshave constituteda Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The details such as
Constitution, Terms of reference, etc. of the Committee and
the meetings held during the year are detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms a part of the Annual Report of
the Company. The contents of the CSR Policy of the Company
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as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the CSR
Committee are available on the website of the Company and
can be accessed through the following web link:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/CSR/MHL-
Revised+CSR+policy_wef+May+27-2021.pdf

The complete details on the CSR activities is enclosed as
“Annexure 3"

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate by the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part C
of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are provided in a separate
section and forms part of the Annual Report of the Company.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, CRISIL, a Credit Rating agency
has reaffirmed its Rating: CRISIL AA-/stable on the Non
Convertible Debentures and long term loan facility of the
Company.

Further, CRISIL has also reassigned its CRISIL Al+rating to the
short term bank facility of the Company.

The Company has not issued any NCD or availed any bank loan
(short-term/ long-term) for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS / RSU PLAN

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
of Directors of the Company, inter alia, administers and
monitors the Employees’ Stock Option Plan as well as the
Metropolis - Restrictive Stock Unit Plan, 2020, of the Company
inaccordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Requlations, 2014 ("SEBI
Regulations”). During the year under review, there was no
change in the ESOP scheme of the Company.

The Company has an operative Metropolis Employee Stock
Option Scheme 2015 (MESOS - 2015) as well as the Metropolis -
Restrictive Stock Unit Plan, 2020 (MHL-RSU Plan, 2020) which
provides for grant of Stock Options/Units to eligible employees
of the Company. The details of Employee Stock Options / Units
pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Requlations, 2014 are provided in ‘Annexure-4’ to
this Report.

During the year under review, the Company has allotted 51,096
equity shares on May 13, 2020, 2,47,264 equity shares on
August 11, 2020, 1,77,887 equity shares on November 11, 2020
and 10,000 equity shares on February 10, 2021, respectively
pursuant to the exercise of Options to the eligible employees
of the Company under the Metropolis Employee Stock Options
Scheme 2015 (MES0S-2015).

Further, during the year under review, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company has granted
2,086,700 RSU's on May 29, 2020, 7,400 RSU's on August 11,
2020, 22,750 RSU's on November 11, 2020 and 4,550 RSU’s on
February 10, 2021, respectively pursuant to the Metropolis -
Restrictive Stock Unit Plan, 2020 to the eligible employees of
the Company / Subsidiaries.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company's relations with all its employees remained
cordial and satisfactory during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details
as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
to this Report as “Annexure 5".

The statement containing names of top ten employees in
terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees
as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2)
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available for inspection
and any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the same
may write to the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

All the Shares of your Company are in Dematerialization mode.
The ISIN of the Equity Shares of your Company is INE112L.01020
except 2 Equity shares held in physical mode.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant
to Section 134(3Ym) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Rule 8(3) of The Companies(Accounts)Rules, 2014 is as follows:
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A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i) Steps taken or impact on Your Company accords highest priority to energy conservation and is committed for
conservation of energy energy conservation measures including reqgular review of energy consumption and
effective control on utilisation of energy. The Company has designed its facilities
keeping in view the objective of minimum energy loss. The Company has taken all steps
to conserve Energy in the work places by educating and training the employees to
conserve energy.
The Company has installed invertor AC in areas which are operating extended hours.
Energy saving LED lights are installed at various laboratories and collection centres.
Every year, energy audit is conducted at Central Laboratory of the Company which is
carried out by Independent Professional Agency.
ii) Steps taken by the Company for|The Company being in the service industry does not have any power generation units
utilising alternate sources of energy | @nd did not produce/generate any renewable or conventional power
iii) | Capital investment on energy The Capital investment on energy conservation equipment is insignificant.
conservation equipment
B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i) Efforts made towards technology | The Company being in Service Sector has adopted all new technology in terms of new
absorption software and hardware and latest machinery with automated processes available in the
current Techno-environment and commensurate to the size, scale and complexity of its
operations.
ii) Benefits derived from technology | Technology absorption has helped the Company to provide better and more accurate
absorption service to the Customers.
iii) | Details of Imported technology (last
three years)
-Details of technology imported Nil
-Year of Import N.A.
-Whether technology being fully N.A.
absorbed
-If not fully absorbed, areas where | N.A.
absorption has not taken place and
reasons thereof
iv) | Expenditure incurred on Research | Nil
and development
c FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (X in Lakhs)
i) Foreign Exchange inflow 1300.32
ii) | Foreign Exchange outflow 99.12

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLEBLOWER

The Company has in place a vigil mechanism as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI(Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for Director and employees to report their genuine concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s code of conduct, the details of which are givenin the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistleblower is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the
following weblink:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-of-conduct/MHL_Whistle-Blower-PolicyA.pdf
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition
and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace in line
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules framed thereunder. The Company has an Internal
Complaints Committee for providing a redressal mechanism
pertaining to sexual harassment of women employees at the
workplace, the details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report. During the year, 1(0ne) complaint was
received and the same has been resolved in accordance with
the Company’s policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal
of sexual harassment at workplace.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the

Place: Miami
Date: May 27, 2021

Company complies with all the applicable provisions of the
same during the year under review.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements in this Report, particularly those which relate
to Management Discussion and Analysis as explained in a
separate Section in this Report, describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may
constitute forward looking statements' within the meaning
of applicable laws and requlations. Actual results might differ
materially from those either expressed or implied in the
statement depending on the circumstances.

APPRECIATIONS

Your Directors acknowledge the valuable contribution of all
its employees at all levels in the continuous growth of the
Company and making it a dominant player in the market.

The Directors would also like to thank the Company’s Joint
Venture Partners, Banks and other Stakeholders for their
continued co-operation and support in the Company’'s growth
and inits operations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdr-

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah
Chairman & Executive Director
(DIN: 00179918)
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ANNEXURE “B"”: FORM AOC-I
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

PART “B"”: ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(Information in respect of each Associate/Joint Venture Companies presented with
amounts in Rs. for the year ended March 31, 2021)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Sr. | Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Star Metropolis Health Metropolis Histoxpert Digital

No Services Middle East LLC# Services Private Limited

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Unaudited March 31, 2021

2 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the Company on the year end

(i) Number 1020 1,950,000

(i) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 195

(iii) | Extend of Holding % 34% 65%

3 Description of how there is significant influence Shareholding Shareholding

4 Reason why the Associate/Joint Venture is not consolidated Non availability of financial N.A.
information

5 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest Audited Balance Sheet (17.84)

5 Profit /(Loss) for the year (11.33)

(i) Considered in Consolidation -

(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation (11.33)

1 Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations.- N.A.

2 Names of Associates or Joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the

year.- N.A.

# Entity no longer an Associate (Refer note no 50)

Note : This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Metropolis Healthcare Limited

L73100MH2000PLC192798

Dr. Sushil Shah

Chairman & Executive Director
DIN: 00179918

Place : Miami( USA)

Vijender Singh
Chief Executive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Ameera Shah
Managing Director
DIN: 00208095
Place : Dubai

Rakesh Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Poonam Tanwani

Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS 19182
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 27 May 2021




ANNEXURE - 2

STATUTORY REPORTS

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Metropolis Healthcare Limited

Mumbai

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Metropolis Healthcare Limited
(L73100MH2000PLC192798) and having its registered office
at 250 D, Udyog Bhavan, Worli, Mumbai-400030 (hereinafter
called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 37,
2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the
provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA)
and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)

(vi)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(lssue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Requlations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
and Listing of Debt Securities) Reqgulations, 2008
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period);

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and

dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit

period);

(h) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India(Buyback
of Securities) Reqgulations, 2018 (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period); and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Requlations, 2015;

The Clinical Establishments(Registration and Regulation)
Act, 2010 and rules made thereunder; Preconception and
The Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex
Selection) Act, 1994 and rules made thereunder; The
Atomic Energy Act 1962 and rules made there under; and
Bio Medical Waste (Management and Handling) Rules,
1988 framed under Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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beinglaws that are specifically applicable to the Company
based on their sector/industry.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Requlations, Standards,
Guidelines etc. mentioned above subject to the following
observations:

(a) some properties are yet to be mutated in the name of the
company, accordingly to that extent the same are not in
compliance with provisions of section 187 of the Act;

(b) the requirement relating to having an Independent
Woman Director applicable to the company with effect
from April 1, 2020 under Regulation17(1) of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 was however
complied w.e.f. May 14, 2020;

(c) the company has not spent in full the mandated
percentage of 2% of average profits on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities; however the reasons for
not being able to spend has been duly disclosed in the
Report made under Section 135 of the Act and further
such unspent amount has been transferred to a separate
bank account within the stipulated time as the earmarked
spending is related to ongoing projects.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors subject to our remarks
mentioned sub para “(b) of previous paragraph above. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance except for one meeting which was
held on shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards, guidelines
and directions.

We further report that during the audit period:

1. the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February
10, 2021 declared for payment an interim dividend (for the
financial year 2020-21) @ Rs.8 per share aggregating to
Rs.40,89,34,504 (subject to deduction of tax at source
wherever applicable) on the equity share capital of the
Company;

2. the Share Purchase and Shareholders Agreement
(SPSHA) dated January 16, 2020, entered into by the
company for the acquisition of 51% of stake i.e., 5,100
Equity Shares of M/s. Shraddha Diagnostic Centre (I)
Private Limited (SDCIPL) from its existing shareholders
at a consideration of Rs. 9,36,30,000/- was terminated
by the promoters/shareholders of SDCIPL due to their
inability to fulfil certain conditions precedent under the
SPSHA;

3. the Company has allotted in aggregate 4,86,247 fully paid
up Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each on various dates (51,096
Equity Shares on May 13, 2020; 2,47,264 Equity Shares on
August11,2020;1,77,887 on November 11,2020; and 10,000
Equity Shares on February 10, 2021) to the grantees upon
exercise of Stock Options granted pursuant to ‘Metropolis
Employees Stock Options Scheme - 2015

4. the company has granted in aggregate 2,41,400(2,06,700
on May 29, 2020; 7,400 on August 11, 2020; 22,750 on
November 11, 2020; and 4,550 on February 10, 2021)
Restricted Stock Units under the ‘Metropolis Restrictive
Stock Unit Plan, 2020 and 10,000 Stock Options under
‘Metropolis Employees Stock Options Scheme, 2015 on
May 29, 2020 to the eligible employees of the Company
and its Subsidiaries;

5. completed the acquisition of balance stake of 49% of
its subsidiary Raj Metropolis Healthcare Private Limited
on November 5, 2020 and by virtue of the same, Raj
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Metropolis Healthcare Private Limited became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company; and

the company has approved the acquisition of entire
stake i.e., 100% in Dr. Ganesan's Hitech Diagnostic Centre
Private Limited (along with its wholly owned subsidiary
Centralab Healthcare Services Private Limited) from
its shareholders (selling shareholders) for a total
consideration of Rs 617.42 crore to be payable in part
by way of cash amounting to Rs.511 crore and partly by
issuance of up to 4,95,000 fully paid-up Equity Shares of

share on preferential basis; the issue of Equity Shares
on preferential basis as above has received the approval
of the members of the company vide special resolution
passed through Postal Ballot on February 18, 2021; the
Company is in the process of completing the allotment
of aforesaid Equity Shares to the selling shareholders on

preferential basis.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is

annexed as ‘Annexure-A" and forms an integral part of this

Rs. 2/- each of the Company at a price of Rs.2,150.85 per report.
For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)
CS Mannish L. Ghia
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 27, 2021 M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531
UDIN: F006252C000363422 PR 822/2020
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To,

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members,
Metropolis Healthcare Limited

Mumbai

Qur report of even date is to read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. Wehave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provided a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7. 0Onaccount various restrictions imposed by the Government Authorities on opening of offices, travel and movement due to
Covid19 pandemic during the year under review, we for the purpose of completion of our audit have relied on documents and
papers provided in electronic form through email/other virtual means for verification of compliances.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)
CS Mannish L. Ghia

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: May 27, 2021 M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531

UDIN: F006252C000363422 PR 822/2020

I METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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ANNEXURE - 3

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

Giving backtothe societyisembeddedinthe value system
of Metropolis and we believe and aim to bring about a
positive change in the nation. For the past 3 decades,
Metropolis has been at the forefront in conducting
impactful camps and driving numerous workshops for
different sections of the Society. As an integral part
of our commitment to Good Corporate Citizenship, we
at Metropolis Healthcare Limited, believe in actively
assisting in improvement of the quality of life of people in

the communities, especially those from socially and
economically backward groups, the underprivileged and
the marginalized.

The CSR Policy (‘the Policy’) of the Company as approved
by the Board is available on the Company's website.
The Company’s CSR is in alignment with the initiatives
undertaken by it. The foundation set up by the Committee
is empowering & developing young girls who are below
poverty line and providing reproductive health education
to the masses. Also, various skills are being provided for

our communities. We believe, we not only exist for doing
good business but also, for ensuring the betterment of
the society.

financial independence and imparting knowledge and
training to the underprivileged.

For details of the CSR Policy along with projects and

We actively contribute to ensure that the people living in programs, kindly refer to the following weblink:

local areas around our business operations lead a good
quality life. Towards achieving long-term stakeholder
value, we shall always continue to respect the interests
of and be responsive towards our key stakeholders -

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/CSR/
MHL-Revised+CSR+policy_wef+May+27-2021.pdf

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Sr. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings of Number of meetings

No. Directorship CSR Committee held of CSR Committee
during the year attended during the year
1 Ms. Anita Ramachandran Non Executive Independent 4 3*
(Chairperson)* Director

Ms. Ameera Shah (Member) | Managing Director

Mr. Milind Sarwate (Member) | Non Executive Independent

Director
4 Mr. Vivek Gambhir* Non Executive Independent 4 1
(Chairperson) Director

*Mr. Vivek Gambhir, erstwhile Chairperson of the CSR Committee stepped down from the Committee w.e.f. July 15, 2020 and
Mrs. Anita Ramachandran was appointed as the Chairperson in place of Mr. Vivek Gambhir w.e.f. July 15, 2020.

3. PROVIDE THE WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE
BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY.

The details of the constitution of the CSR Committee, the CSR Policy and the CSR projects approved by the Board of Directors
is disclosed on the Company’'s website and can be accessed at https://www.metropolisindia.com/investors

4 PROVIDE THE DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE (ATTACH THE
REPORT).

The Company is not required to carry out the Impact Assessment as required as per sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21
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5. DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR, IF ANY

There is no amount available with the Company that can be set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

6. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5) FOR SPENDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021.
The average Net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (3) for the Financial Year 2020-2021 was Rs. 1,44,87,03,985

7. (A) TWO PERCENT OF AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5) FOR SPENDING DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021.

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) for the Financial Year 2020-2021is Rs. 2,90,00,000

(B) SURPLUS ARISING OUT OF THE CSR PROJECTS OR PROGRAMMES OR ACTIVITIES OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEARS.
Not Applicable

(C) AMOUNT REQUIRED TO BE SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY.
Not Applicable

(D) TOTAL CSR OBLIGATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (7A+7B-7C).
The Total CSR Obligation for the Financial Year 2020-2021was Rs. 2,90,00,000

8. (A)CSR AMOUNT SPENT OR UNSPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021:

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (inRs.)
for the Financial Year  yotal Amount (in Rs.) transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
(inRs.) Unspent CSR Account as per section Vil as per second proviso to section 135(5).
135(86).
Amount. Date of transfer. | Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer.
1,94,02,061 1,00,00,000 April 30, 2021 - - -

(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST ONGOING PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the year, the company collaborated as an Industry partner in pursuance of its CSR initiative with Delhi Skill &
Entrepreneurship University (DSEU’) for the purpose of initiating a academic multi-year structured course of 3 (three) years
leading to a degree in the field of Medical Laboratory Science and approved it as a multiyear ongoing project as the fresh
initiative under the current CSR platform MEDENGAGE known as MEDENGAGE DSEU project, however till the year ended March
31, 20217, the project could not be implemented and therefore, no amount was spent on the said ongoing project during the
Financial Year 2020-2021.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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(C) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT AGAINST OTHER THAN ONGOING PROJECTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr. | Name of the Item from Local Location of the Amount Mode of | Mode of implementation
No. Project the list of area project. spent for | implemen- | - Through implementing
activities in (Yes/ the project | tation - Di- agency.
schedule Vlito| No). (inRs.). | rect(Yes/
the Act. . No).
State. District. Name CSR
registration
number.
1 MedEngage Promoting Yes Pan India 92,11,710 Direct - -
Education
2 MetHealth Promoting Yes Pan India 17,86,452 Direct - -
health
awareness
3 Too Shy to Promoting Yes Pan India 72,67,269 Direct - -
ask health
awareness
4 Empoweress Promoting Yes Pan India 11,36,630 Direct - -
Women
Empowerment
Total 1,94,02,061
(D) AMOUNT SPENT IN ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEADS - NIL
(E) AMOUNT SPENT ON IMPACT ASSESSMENT, IF APPLICABLE - NOT APPLICABLE
(F) TOTAL AMOUNT SPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021(8B+8C+8D+8E)
The total amount spent for the Financial Year 2020-2021 was Rs.1,94,02,061
(G) EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY - NOT APPLICABLE
9. (A)DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL YEARS:
Sr. Preceding Amount Amount spent in the Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. | Financial Year. | transferred to reporting Financial specified under Schedule Vil as per remaining to
Unspent CSR Year (in Rs.). section 135(6), if any. be spentin
Account under Name of the | Amount Date of succeeding
section 135 (6) Fund (inRs). transfer. | financial years
(inRs.) (inRs.)
1. 2019-2020* - 76,97,212 - - - -
2. 2018-2019 - 79,45,000 - - - -
3. 2017-2018 - 47,72,909 - - - -
Total - 2,04,15,121 - - - -

*For financial year 2019-2020, the Company has transferred the unspent amount of Rs. 1,69,11,386 to WE Foundation to
specifically spend the funds donated by the Company on activities to combat the COVID-19 pandemic.

(B) DETAILS OF CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR FOR ONGOING PROJECTS OF THE PRECEDING FINANCIAL
YEAR(S): NOT APPLICABLE
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10. IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACOQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS RELATING TO THE ASSET SO CREATED
OR ACQUIRED THROUGH CSR SPENT IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR: NOT APPLICABLE

1. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER
SECTION 135(5).

During the year, the company collaborated as an Industry partner in pursuance of its CSR initiative with Delhi Skill &
Entrepreneurship University (DSEU’) for the purpose of initiating a academic multi-year structured course of 3 (three) years
leading to a degree in the field of Medical Laboratory Science and approved it as a multiyear ongoing project as the fresh
initiative under the current CSR platform MEDENGAGE known as MEDENGAGE DSEU project. However, due to the challenges
imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the project could not be implemented till the year ended March 31, 2021, and therefore, no
amount was spent on the said ongoing project during the Financial Year 2020-2021.

On April 30, 2021, the Company has transferred an amount of Rs. 1,00,00,000 to a separate bank account within the stipulated
time which remained unspent towards the Ongoing project as approved by the CSR Committee and the Board of Directors as
per the provisions of section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Sdr- Sd/-

Ameera Sushil Shah Anita Ramachandran

Member of CSR Committee Chairperson of CSR Committee
DIN: 00208095 DIN: 00118188

Place: Dubai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2021 Date: May 27,2021
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ANNEXURE - 4

DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 14 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 as on March 31, 2021

DESCRIPTION OF ESOP SCHEMES:
The Company views Employee Stock Options as instruments that would enable the Employees to share the value they would create

and contribute to the Company in the years to come.

The Company has framed and implemented the Metropolis Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015("MESOS 2015") as well as Metropolis
- Restricted Stock Unit Plan - 2020 ("RSU 2020") for eligible employees. In terms of the said schemes, options to the employees have
vest and shall continue to vest as given in the below table under point no. C.

A. Relevantdisclosuresinterms of the ‘Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based payments’issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) or any other relevant accounting standards as prescribed from time to time.
The disclosures are provided in the Note No. 46(c) to the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2021.

B. Diluted EPS on issue of shares pursuant to all the schemes covered under the regulations, in accordance with ‘Indian
Accounting Standard 33 - Earnings per Share’ issued by ICAIl or any other relevant accounting standards as prescribed
from time to time.

% 38.61

C. Detailsrelated to ESOP / RSU:

Sr. | Particulars MESOS 2015 RSU 2020
No.

(i) | Description of each ESOP /RSU that existed during the year, including the general terms and conditions:
1 Date of Shareholders’approval |« March 28, 2015 « April6,2020
« September 18, 2017
+ February 28, 2018
« September 10, 2018
. September 14,2018
2 Total number of options / units|12,21,324# options convertible into | 2,70,000 Units convertible into equivalent no.
approved under ESOP / RSU equivalent no. of equity shares. of equity shares.
3 Vesting requirement i) Options granted to Existingi) 15% atthe end of Year 10of the grant
employees (person who is in ji) 20% at the end of Year 2 of the grant

contmuousv employment with the iii) 25% at the end of Year 3 of the grant
Company since January 1, 2016 or

prior thereto) shall vest as below: iv) 40% at the end of Year 4 of the grant

a) 50% -onJanuary 1, 2018; However, the above is subject to the
o attainment of the performance of the

b) 25% -on January 1, 2019 and; individual as well as the Company as
c) 25% onJanuary1,2020. defined in the MHL RSU Plan 2020.
ii) Options granted to New employees

(person who is in continuous

employment with the Company

after January 1, 2016) shall vest as

below :

a) 50% of grant on completion of 2
years from date of joining;

b) 25% of grant on completion of 3
years from date of joining ; and

c) 25% of grant on completion of 4
years from date of joining.
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Sr. |Particulars MESOS 2015 RSU 2020
No.
4 Exercise price or pricing formula | ¥ 705.77 per option# As the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
may decide at the time of each grant.
5 Maximum term of options / units | The exercising period will commence| The exercising period will commence from the
granted(Years) from the date of vesting to the date of vesting to the Grantee. Accordingly, the

Grantee. Accordingly, the maximum maximum term of Units will be 4 (four) years
term of Options will be 4 (four) years from the date of vesting.
from the date of vesting.

6 Source of shares Primary Primary
7 Variation in terms of options /| There was no variation in terms of There was no variation in terms of Units
units Options outstanding during FY 2020+ outstanding during FY 2020-2021.
2021.
(ii) | Method used to account for Fairvalue Fair value
ESOP / RSU:
(iii) | Has the company has opted for expensing of the options using the Fair Value of the Options: Yes
1 Difference between the | N.A. N.A.

employee compensation cost
so computed and the employee
compensation cost that shall
have been recognized if it had
used the fair value

2 The impact of this difference | N.A. N.A.
on profits and on EPS of the
Company

(iv)  Movement during the year:

1 No.of options/unitsoutstanding | 5,60,315 2,70,000
at the beginning of the period

2 No. of options / units granted| 10,000 2,41,400
during the year

3 No. of options / units forfeited/ | 51,168 4,400

lapsed during the year

4 No. of options / units vested|22,100 -
during the year

5 No. of options / units exercised | 4,86,247 -
during the year

6 No. of shares arising as a result | 4,86,247 -
of exercise of options / untis

7 Money realized by exercise of |3 34,31,78,545/- -
options / untis (). If scheme
is implemented directly by the
Company

8 Loan repaid by the Trust during | N.A. N.A.
the year from exercise price
received

9 No. of options/units outstanding | 32,900 2,70,000
at the end of the year

10 | No. of options/units exercisable | 21,600 2,70,000
at the end of the year

(v) | Weighted-average exercise prices ("WAEP”) and weighted-average fair values("WAFV") of Options / Units

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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Sr. | Particulars MESOS 2015 RSU 2020

No.

1 Where the exercise price is less | Weighted Average exercise price is| Weighted Average exercise price is Rs. 2 &
than the market price of the|Rs. 705.77 & Weighted Average fairf Weighted Average fair value is Rs. 1,261.26
stock value is Rs. 1,174.34

2 Where the exercise price equals | N.A. N.A.
the market price of the stock

3 Where the exercise price ismore | N.A. N.A.
than the market price of the
stock

(vi) | Employee wise details (name of employee, designation, number of Options / Units granted during the year, exercise
price) of Options / Units

1 Senior Managerial Personnel Refer table below

2 Any other employee who Refer table below
receives a grant in any one year
of option amounting to 5% or
more of option granted during
that year

3 Identified employees who were N.A.

granted option, during any one
year, equal to or exceeding 1%
of the issued capital (excluding N.A.
outstanding  warrants  and
conversions) of the company at
the time of grant.

(vii) | A description of the method and significant assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair value of options
including the following information:

1 Weighted-average Values of
share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected option life

Expected dividends

The risk-free interest rate

Any other inputs to the model

2 The method wused and the N.A.
assumptions made to incorporate
the effects of expected early
exercise;

As provided in notes to| As provided in notes to
accounts no. 46(c) accounts no. 46(c)

3 How expected volatility was
determined, including an
explanation of the extent to
which expected volatility was
based on historical volatility;

4 Whether and how any other
features of the option grant
were incorporated into the
measurement of fair value, such
as a market condition.

#Post bonus and split during the Financial year 2018-2019.

Details of RSUs granted to Senior Management Employees and during the year:
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S r.| Name Designation No. of RSUs granted
No.
1. Mr. Vijender Singh Chief Executive Officer 91200
2. Mr. Rakesh Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 19500
3. Ms. Poonam Tanwani Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 1000
4, Mr. Avadhut Joshi Senior Vice President - BD and Operations (SBU Africa) 16000
5. Dr. Nilesh Shah President and Head of Science & Innovation 8900
8. | Mr. Ajit Vetha Chief Operating Officer - SBU South 12000
7. Ms. Ishita Medhekar Chief Human Resource Officer 8000
8. Dr. Kirti Chadha Senior Vice President - GRL Operations 6000
9. Mr. Kannan Alangadan Chief of Services and Operations 10000
10. | Mr. Abdur Razzaque Group IT Head 6000
Details of RSUs granted to employees amounting to 5% or more of RSUs granted during the year:
S r.| Name Designation No. of RSUs granted
No.
1. Mr. Vijender Singh Chief Executive Officer 91200
2. Mr. Rakesh Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 19500
Mr. Avadhut Joshi Senior Vice President - BD and Operations (SBU Africa) 16000

Place: Miami
Date: May 27, 2021

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Metropolis Healthcare Limited

Sd/-

Sushil Kanubhai Shah
Chairman & Executive Director
DIN: 00179918
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Disclosures required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

THE PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN THE MEDIAN REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

Median remuneration of employees of the Company as at the end of the year under review was Rs. 2,31,188 which increased by
9.19% over the previous year's median remuneration of Rs. 2,11,730.

THE RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021; AND

THE PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER, COMPANY SECRETARY OR MANAGER, DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-2021:

(% in Lakhs)
Sr. |Name Designation Remuneration | Percentage increase/ | Ratio to median

No for the (decrease)in remuneration

financial year remuneration in the (in times)
2020-2021 | fjpancial year 2020-2021
(%)
Non-Executive Directors*
1 Mr. Milind Sarwate Independent Director 19 1.23% 8.23
2 Mr. Vivek Gambhir Independent Director 13 -25.8% 5.63
3 Mr.Sanjay Bhatnagar Independent Director 12.50 10.91% 5.4
4 Ms. Anita Ramachandran® Independent Director& 7.25% N.A& 3.14%
Executive Directors
5 Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah~ Chairman and 182.10° 2.19%" 78.77
Executive Director
6 Ms. Ameera Shah® Managing Director 249.54@ -48.86%° 107.94¢
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Vijender Singh’ Chief Executive Officer 3,174.42 618.23%" 1,373.09°
Mr. Rakesh Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 65.75 114.35%" 28.44
Mr. Poonam Tanwani® Company Secretary & 25.56 612%° 11.06°
Compliance Officer

&Ms. Anita Ramachandran was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from May 14, 2020

“Includes Ex-gratia payment of Rs. 4.5 lakhs for the period October 2019 to March 2020 paid during the year

@®Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah waived part of her remuneration for the financial year 2020-2021

“Includes perquisites for exercise of ESOPs during the year

"Mr. Rakesh Agarwal was employed for part of the Financial Year 2019-2020

$Ms. Poonam Tanwani was employed for part of the Financial Year 2019-2020

The remuneration paid to Non Executive Directors comprises of Sitting Fees paid for attending the Meetings of the Board and/or
its Committees.
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4.  THE NUMBER OF PERMANENT EMPLOYEES ON ROLLS OF THE COMPANY: 3751

5. AVERAGE PERCENTILE INCREASE ALREADY MADE IN SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES OTHER THAN THE MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL IN THE LAST FINANCIAL YEAR AND ITS COMPARISON WITH THE PERCENTILE INCREASE IN THE MANAGERIAL
REMUNERATION AND JUSTIFICATION THEREOF AND POINT OUT IF THERE ARE ANY EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES FOR
INCREASE IN THE MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION.

The percentage increase in the gross salaries paid to employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial
year is 9.67 % as against an increase of -2.13 % in the salary of Managerial Personnel. The increment given to each individual
employee is based on the employee’s potential, experience and also their performance and contribution to the Company’s
progress during the year and is benchmarked against similar companies in India.

6. AFFIRMATION THAT THE REMUNERATION IS AS PER THE REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

The Company affirms that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah

Place: Miami Chairman & Executive Director
Date: May 27, 2021 (DIN: 00179918)
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COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Your Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is
based on holistic approach not only towards its own
growth but also towards maximization of benefits to the
shareholders, employees, customers, Government and
also the general public at large.

Your Company considers good Corporate Governance as
a pre-requisite for meeting the needs and aspirations of
all of its stakeholders. Transparency and accountability
are the fundamental principles of sound Corporate
Governance, which ensures that the organization is
managed and monitored in a responsible manner for
creating and sharing stakeholder’s value.

Your Company is committed to good Corporate
Governance and its adherence best practice at all times
andits philosophyis based on five basic elements namely,
Board's accountability, value creation, strategic-
guidance, transparency and equitable treatment to all
stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

As on March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of your
Company comprised of Six Directors with Four Non-

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Further, pursuant to the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company appointed Mr. Hemant Sachdev
as an Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director with effect from May 27, 2021, subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

The Board of your Company consists of a balanced
combination of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”), and Regulation 17 of the
Listing Regulations.

The Board composition represents an optimal mix of
professionalism, knowledge, expertise and experience
which enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities
and provide effective leadership to the business.

Brief profile of the Directors is available on the Company’s
website at https://www.metropolisindia.com/about-
metropolis/board-of-directors and also forms part of this
Annual Report.

Composition and category of the Board of Directors,
Other directorships and Committee memberships,
relationship between directors inter se, shareholding of

E%ecutive Independent Directors & Two Executive Directors in the Company as on March 31, 2021 are as
Directors. mentioned below:
Name of DIN Category Designa- |Sharehold-| No.of |No.of Committee Directorships in Other
Director tion inginthe | Direc- | positionsin Other listed entities
Company |torships | Public Companies
in Other | sopair— | SMem—  Nameofthe = Category
Public | 1o ber | Listed entity
Compa-
nies*
Dr. Sushil 00179918 Promoter |Chairman&| 24,47,325 - - - - -
Kanubhai Executive
Shah Director
Ms. Ameera | 00208095 | Promoter | Managing 1,81,845 3 - 4 Kaya Limited” | Independent
Sushil Shah Director Director
Torrent Independent
Pharmaceuti- Director
cals Limited
Shoppers Independent
Stop Limited Director
Mr. Milind 00109854 | Non-Execu- | Director - 6 4 3 Matrimony. | Independent
Shripad tive Indepen- com Limited Director
Sarwate dent SeQuent | Independent
Scientific Director
Limited
Mahindra & | Independent
Mahindra Director
Financial
Services
Limited
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Name of DIN Category Designa- |Sharehold-| No.of |No.of Committee Directorships in Other
Director tion inginthe | Direc- | positionsin Other listed entities
Company |torships | Public Companies
in Other | sopair— | SMem— | Nameofthe = Category
Public | 1o ber | Listed entity
Compa-
nies*
Mr. Vivek 06527810 | Non-Execu- | Director - - - - - -
Gambhir tive Indepen-
dent
Mr.Sanjay | 00867848 | Non-Execu- | Director - 1 - 1 EIH Limited | Independent
Bhatnagar tive Indepen- Director
dent
Ms. Anita 00118188 | Non-Execu- | Director - 9 1 6 Grasim Independent
Ramachan- tive Indepen- Industries Director
dran dent Limited
Rane (Madras) | Independent
Limited Director
Happiest Independent
Minds Director
Technologies
Limited
Mr.Hemant 01635195 |Non-Execu- | Additional - - - - - -
Sachdev* tive Non-In- Director
dependent

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah resigned as a Director from Kaya Limited with effect from May 19, 2021
*Mr. Hemant Sachdev was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from
May 27, 2021.

Notes:

*

The above list of other directorships includes Public Companies (listed and unlisted) but does not include Private Limited
Companies, Foreign Companies, directorship in Metropolis Healthcare Limited, Companies under Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and any alternate directorships.

s Membership includes memberships by Directors only in Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
public and listed Companies.

Membership and Chairmanship in a Committee are counted only once i.e. if a Director is a Chairman in a Committee, he/she
is not counted as Member separately.

As detailed in the table, none of the Directors hold directorships in more than 20 Companies (including limit of maximum
directorship in 10 Public Companies) pursuant to the provisions of Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’).

None of the Directors are members of more than ten Committees of the prescribed nature or hold Chairmanship of more
than five such committees across all listed or unlisted public limited Companies in which they are Directors, thereby
complyingwith the provisions of Requlation 26 of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015.

Further, no Director holds directorship in more than Eight (8) Listed Companies. None of the Independent Directors served
as Independent Directors in more than seven (7) Listed Companies. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee
positions have been made by the Directors. Further, none of the Directors who serves as Whole-time Director / Managing
Director in any listed entity serves as an Independent Director in more than three listed entities. The necessary disclosures
regarding their Directorships and Committee memberships have duly been made by them.

Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)b) of the SEBI Regulations read with
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they met the criteria as
mentioned under Regulation 16(1)b) and 25(8) of the SEBI Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Board Meetings & Attendance of Directors

The Board Meeting is conducted at least once in every
quarter to discuss the performance of the Company and
its Quarterly Financial Results, along with other Company
matters. The Board also meets to consider other
business(es), whenever required, from time to time.
Agenda of the business(es) to be transacted at the Board
Meeting along with notes thereto are drafted and
circulated well in advance to the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Company always ensures that Board
members are presented with all the relevant information
on matters affecting the working of the Company
including the information as inter-alia specified under
Part A of Schedule Il of Regulation 17(7) of the Listing
Regulations. Every Board Member is free to suggest the
inclusion of any item on the agenda and hold due
discussions thereto.

Six meetings were held during the year and the gap
between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The
dates of the meetings were as follows:

Sr. | Date of Meeting
No.

1 May 29, 2020
August 11, 2020
November 11, 2020
January 17, 2021
February 10, 2021

@D o1 | BTN N

February 24, 2021

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings
held during the year and at the last Annual General
Meeting is given below:

Name of the Particulars of atten- Atten-
Directors dance for the Board dance at
Meetings the last
Meetings Board AGMheld
held during | Meetings on
the Di ttended  ScPtem-
. 'e t|rec- attende ber 16,
or's tenure 2020
Dr. Sushil 6 6 Yes
Kanubhai Shah
Ms. Ameera Sushil 6 6 Yes
Shah
Ms. Anita 6 5 Yes
Ramachandran
Mr. Milind Shripad 6 6 Yes
Sarwate

STATUTORY REPORTS

Name of the Particulars of atten- Atten-
Directors dance for the Board dance at
Meetings the last
AGM held
Meetings Board €
T;Id I:){urlng Mtietlsg: Septem-
. ? t|rec- attende ber 16,
or's tenure 2020
Mr. Vivek Gambhir 6 6 Yes
Mr. Sanjay 6 6 No*
Bhatnagar

*Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar could not attend the 20" AGM of the
Company held on September 16, 2020 due to his pre-
occupation.

Since Mr. Hemant Sachdev was appointed as an Additional
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company
with effect from May 27, 2021, the details of his attendance
at the Board meetings / previous AGM are not applicable
for the Financial Year 2020-2021.

Independent Director and Familiarisation Programme

At the time of appointment, the Independent Directors are
made aware of theirroles and responsibilities through a formal
letter of appointment which stipulates various terms and
conditions. At Board and Committee meetings, the
Independent Directors are regularly being familiarized on the
business model, strategies, operations, functions, policies
and procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
Directors attend the familiarization programs as these are
scheduled to coincide with the Board meeting calendar.

The familiarization policy is hosted on the website of the
Company and can be accessed through the following weblink:
https://metropalisindia.com/newdata/lnvestors/code-of-

conduct/MHL _Familiarization-Programme-for-Independent-

Directors.pdf

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per
Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations, separate meeting
of Independent Directors of the Company was held on Tuesday,
March 30, 2021. All the Independent Directors attended the
meeting. The agenda was to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors (including the Chairperson), the entire
Boardand Committeesthereof, quality, quantityand timeliness
of the flow of information between the management and the
Board.

Based on the disclosures received from all the independent
directors and also in the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors fulfil the conditions specified in Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the
Management.

No Independent Director resigned before the expiry of his
tenure during the financial year.
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Matrix of Skills / Expertise/ Competencies of the Board of
Directors

The Board of the Company comprises qualified members with
the required skills, competence and expertise for effective
contribution to the Board and its Committee. The Board
members are committed to ensure that the Company is in
compliance with the highest standards of Corporate
Governance. The table below summarizes the list of core skills/
expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of Directors
for effectively conducting the business of the Company and
are available with the Board. The table also mentions the
specific areas of expertise of individual Director against each
skill/ expertise/ competence:

Core skills/ expertise/ | Name of Directors possess-

Competencies ing the requisite skill /
expertise / competency
Healthcare - Under- 1. Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah

standing the complexi- ' 2 Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah
ties of the healthcare

sector and expertise in
the field of diagnostics.

1. Ms Ameera Sushil Shah
2. Mr. Milind Sarwate

3. Mr. Vivek Gambhir

4. Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar

Finance, Accountancy &
Audit - In-depth
knowledge in the field
of accounts and ability
toread, understand and
analyse the financial
statements, financial
controls, risk manage-
ment and other
business projections.

Law - Experience in 1. Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah
understanding the 2. Mr.Milind Sarwate
dynamics of thelegal 15 =\ i o Gambhir
and regulatory aspect at
aglobal level. 4. Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar
5. Ms. Anita Ramachandran
6

Mr. Hemant Sachdev

Information Technology | 1. Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah

—P;oviding su;laportand 2. Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar
uidance in relation to . )

ignformation technology 3. Mr. Vivek Gambhir

Up gradat|on Of the 4. Mr. Hemant SaChdeV

organisation as a whole.

Risk Management - Ex- |1. Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah

perience inmitigation |9 Mr. Milind Sarwate

of risk by actively 3. Mr. Vivek Gambhir

getting involved in the ’ '

risk management of the | 4 Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar

organisation.
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Core skills/ expertise/ | Name of Directors possess-
Competencies ing the requisite skill /
expertise / competency

Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah
Mr. Vivek Gambhir

Strategy & Marketing 1.
2
3. Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar
4
5

- Exposure in managing
the sales and marketing
needs of the sector

adequately. Mr. Milind Sarwate

Ms. Anita Ramachandran

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors has constituted various Committees. These
Committees are entrusted with such powers and
functions as detailed inits respective terms of reference.
Besides, the Committees help focus attention on specific
matters of the organisation. There are total 5 Committees
as on March 31, 2021.

Committees as mandated under the Companies Act,
2013 and the Listing Regulations

1. Audit Committee;

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Stakeholders'Relationship Committee;

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;
5. Risk Management Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted
as per Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, read with
the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
All the Members of the Audit Committee are financially
literate and capable of analysing Financial Statements of
the Company.

Mr. Milind Shripad Sarwate is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Statutory Auditors are invited to Audit
Committee Meetings. The Committee members invite
the Internal Auditor or any other concerned officer of the
Company in the meetings, whenever required on case-
to-case basis. The Audit Committee acts as a link
between the Management, Statutory Auditors, Internal
Auditors and the Board of Directors and oversees the
financial reporting process. The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
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Terms of Reference of Audit Committee are as follows:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia,
includes the following functions:

1.

Oversight of the Company's financial reporting
process, examination of the financial statement and
the auditors'report thereon and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that its financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommendationforappointment, re-appointment,
replacement, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment of statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:

a. Mattersrequiredtobeincludedinthe Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-
section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

c.  Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d.  Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
and

g. Modified opinion(s)in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
half-yearly and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board of Director for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of
uses/ application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.),
the statement of funds utilised for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of

16.

20.

STATUTORY REPORTS

proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor's
independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modifications of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,
wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through
public offers and related matters;

Reviewing with the management, the performance
of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if
any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with the internal auditors on any
significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board;

Discussion with the statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends)and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial
Officer or any other person heading the finance
function ordischarging that function afterassessing
the qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate;
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21.  Carrying out any other terms of reference as may be
decided by the Board or specified/ provided under
the Companies Act, 2013 or the SEBI Listing
Regulations or by any other reqgulatory authority;
and

22. Review of (1) management discussion and analysis
of financial condition and results of operations; (2)
statement of significant related party transactions
(as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management; (3) management letters/letters of
internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors; (4)internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses; (5) the appointment, removal
and terms of remuneration of the chief internal
auditor shall be subject to review by the audit
committee; (6) statement of deviations including (a)
quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report
of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s)in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and  Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, asamended;(b)annual statement
of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in
terms of Regulation 32(7) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

23. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances
from/investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision.”

Composition and Attendance of the members of the
Audit Committee

In the Financial Year 2020-2021, Six Audit Committee
meetings were held. The meetings were held on May 29,
2020, August 11, 2020, November 11, 2020, January 17,
2021, February 10, 2021 and February 24, 2021. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the AGM held
during the FY 2020-2021i.e. on September 16, 2020. The
Board accepted all recommendations made by the audit
committee. The details of composition of Audit
Committee and attendance of each Committee Member
are as follows:
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Name of the Designa- Particulars of
Members tionin the attendance
Committee No. of No. of
meetings | meetings
held attended
during by the
the Member
Member’s
tenure
Mr. Milind Shripad | Chairman 6 6
Sarwate
Mr. Vivek Gambhir | Member 6 6
Mr. Sanjay Member 6 6
Bhatnagar

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
constituted in compliance with the requirements of
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations read with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends
the nomination of Directors and carries out evaluation of
performance of individual Directors. Besides, it
recommends remuneration policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management of the
Company.

Terms of Reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes the
following:

a) Formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommending to the board of
directors a policy, relating to the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

b) Formulating of criteria for evaluation of the
performance of the independent directors and the
board of directors;

c) Devisinga policy on diversity of board of directors;

d) Identifying persons who qualify to become directors
or who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommending to the board of directors their
appointment and removal, and carrying out
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evaluations of every director's performance. Our m) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and whatever form, payable to senior management.”

the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report; Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings

e) Determining whethertoextend or continue the term
of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;

During the financial year under review, four meetings of

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held

i.e., on May 29, 2020, August 11, 2020, November 11, 2020

and February 10, 2021.

f)  Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human
resource and compensation matters;

Mr. Vivek Gambhir, was the Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. He stepped down as the

g) Determining the Company's policy on remuneration Chairman with effect from February 10, 2021 and Ms.
and any compensation payment, for the chief Anita Ramachandran was appointed as the Chairperson
executive officer, the executive directors, key of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with
managerial personnel including pension rights and effect from February 10, 2021.
determination of remuneration packages of such

Mr. Vivek Gambhhir and Ms. Anita Ramachandran
attended the AGM held during the FY 2020-2021 i.e. on
h)  Determining compensation levels payable to the September 16, 2020.
senior management personnel and other staff (as
deemed necessary), which shall be market-related,
usually consisting of a fixed and variable component

and in accordance with the remuneration policy The details of Composition of Nomination and
approved by the board of directors; Remuneration Committee and attendance of meetings

by each of the Committee Member is as follows:

personnel;

The Board accepted all recommendations made by the
Nomination and Remuneration committee.

i) Reviewing and approving compensation strategy

from time to time in the context of the then current Name of the Designation Particulars of
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws; Members inthe attendance
Committee
j)  Perform such functions as are required to be No. of No. of
performed by the compensation committee under me:etll:gs ';1:::‘:'::
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share duringthe | by the
Based Employee Benefits) Requlations, 2014; Member's | Member
tenure
k)  Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure
: : : Mrs. Anita Chairperson 3 3
thatvthere is n(.J V|o|§t|0n, by an er.nployeje of any Rarmachandran®
applicable laws in India or overseas, including:
Mr. Vivek Gambhir* | Member 4 4

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, Mr. Milind Shripad Member ] ]

Sarwate#
1992
Mr. Sanjay Member 4 4
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Bhatnagar

(Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices relating to the Securities Market)
Regulations, 2003

# Mr. Milind Shripad Sarwate stepped down as a member
of the Committee w.e.f. July 15, 2020 and Ms. Anita
Ramachandran was appointed as the member of the

I} Performing such other activities as may be Committee with effect from July 15, 2020.
delegated by the board of directorsand/or specified/

provided under the Companies Act, 2013 together
with the rules framed thereunder, as amended and
to the extent notified, or the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a
amended, or by any other requlatory authority. Secretary to the Committee.

*Mr. Vivek Gambhir stepped down as the Chairman of the
Committee w.e.f. February 10, 2021 and Mrs. Anita
Ramachandran was appointed as the Chairperson of the
Committee w.e.f. February 10, 2021.
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Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent
Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company carried out an
annual evaluation of its own performance, of committees,
of the Board and individual directors pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regulations. The performance evaluation is conducted
through structured questionnaires which cover various
aspects such as the Board composition and structure,
effectiveness and contribution to Board processes,
adequacy, appropriateness and timeliness of information
andthe overall functioning of the Board etc. The Individual
Directors response to the questionnaire on the
performance of the Board, Committee(s), Directors and
Chairman, were analysed. The Directors were satisfied
with the evaluation process and have expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

In compliance with Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors has formulated criteria for evaluation of the
Company's Independent Directors’ performance. The
performance evaluation of Independent Directors is
carried out on the basis of their role and responsibilities,
effective participation in the Board and Committee
meetings, expertise, skills and exercise of independent
judgment in major decisions of the Company.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Directors

Sitting Fees

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees
for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and
Committees thereof. Sitting fees paid to non-executive
Directors are within the prescribed limits under the
Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of
Directors from time to time.

Commission

The shareholders of the Company at their annual general
meeting held on 10" September, 2018 approved payment
to Independent Directors of the Company on annual
basis, by way of commission, the aggregate of which shall
not exceed one percent of the net profits of the Company
per annum computed in the manner prescribed under
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, in such amount
and proportion and in such manner as may be determined
by the Board of Directors from time to time, in addition to
the sitting fees as determined by the Board of Directors
from time to time.

v/2 METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Reimbursement of expenses

The non-executive directors are also entitled to
reimbursement of expenses for participationin the Board
and other meetings in terms of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of sitting fees and commission paid during
the year are as under:
Amountin?

Names of Non-Executive | Sitting Fees | Commission
Directors

Mr. Vivek Gambhir 13,00,000 -
Mr. Milind Sarawate 12,00,000 7,00,000
Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar 12,50,000 -

Mrs. Anita Ramachandran 7,25,000 -

During the year, there was no pecuniary relationship or
transaction between the Company and any of its Non-
Executive Directors apart from sitting fees and
commission. The Company has not granted any stock
options to any of its Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management:

The Company has paid remuneration to its Managing
Director and Whole-time Director, by way of salary and
perquisites, within the limits stipulated under the
Companies Act, 2013 and as per the approval sought from
the shareholders of the Company

Details of the remuneration paid to the Executive
Directors and KMP of the Company during the financial
year 2020-2021 are as follows:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Name Designation Remuneration
for Financial
Year 2020-2021
Dr. Sushil Whole-time 182.107
Kanubhai Shah Director
Ms. Ameera Managing 249.548
Sushil Shah Director
Mr. Vijender Singh | Chief Executive 3174.42*
Officer
Mr. Rakesh Kumar | Chief Financial 65.75
Agarwal Officer
Ms. Poonam Company 25.56
Tanwani Secretary and
Compliance
Officer

ARemuneration includes an ex-gratia amount of Rs. 4.5
lakh pertaining to the period October 2019 to March 2020
paid during the year.
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SMs. Ameera Sushil Shah waived off part of her
remuneration for the Financial Year 2020-2021

*Remuneration includes Perquisites on exercise of equity
shares allotted pursuant to the existing ESOP Scheme of
the Company

The performance criteria of the above-mentioned
Directors and KMP are laid down by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Policy
for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management of the Company. There is no
change in the Policy in FY 2020-21.

The objective of the Remuneration Policy is as follows:

. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and
removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management;

. To evaluate the performance of the members of the
Board and provide necessary report to the Board for
further evaluation of the Board;

. To recommend to the Board on remuneration
payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management;

. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

The term of the executive directors & independent
directors is for a period of b years from the respective
dates of appointment.

The Company does not have any service contract with
any of the directors.

Service Contracts, Severance Fees and Notice Period

The appointment and remuneration of the Executive
Chairman and Whole-time Director, Managing Director is
subject to the provisions of the Act and the Resolution
passed by the Board of Directors and Members of the
Company which cover the terms and conditions of such
appointment. There is no separate provision for payment
of severance fee under the resolutions governing the
appointment of Executive Chairman and Whole-time
Director, and Managing Director.

Employee Stock Options

The Company has implemented Metropolis Employee
Stock Option Scheme 2015 (MESOS - 2015). The details of
“Metropolis Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015
(MESOS- 2015)" including the number of outstanding
options are given in the Annexure to the Board's Report.

STATUTORY REPORTS

Metropolis-Restrictive Stock Unit Plan, 2020

The members of the Company have approved the
Metropolis-Restrictive Stock Unit Plan, 2020 ("Metropolis
RSU Plan)’ for the employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (if any) on April 6, 2020 through a Postal
Ballot. The details of Metropolis RSU Plan including the
number of options granted are given in the Annexure to
the Board's Report.

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the
Company is constituted in line with the provisions of
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Requlations read with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

1. Considering and resolving grievances of security
holders of the Company, including complaints
related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-
receipt of Annual Report and non-receipt of
declared dividends;

2. Investigating complaints relating to allotment of
shares, approval of transfer or transmission of
shares, debentures or any other securities;

3.  Toreview the measures taken for effective exercise
of voting rights by shareholders.

4. To review the adherence to the service standards
adopted by the listed entity in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

5. Issuing duplicate certificates and new certificates
on split/consolidation/renewal; and

6.  Carrying out any other function as may be decided
by the board of directors or prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Requlations, 2015, as amended, or by
any other regulatory authority.

7. Review of the various measures and initiatives
taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt
of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the company.”
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings

During the year ended March 31, 2021, one meeting of
Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on May
29,2020. The Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
committee attended the AGM held during the FY 2020-21
i.e.on September 16, 2020

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a
Secretary to the Committee.

Name of the Designa- Particulars of
Members tionin the attendance
Committee No. of No. of
meetings | meetings
held attended
during the | by the
Member's | Member
tenure
Mr. Vivek Gambhir Chairman 1 1
Ms. Ameera Sushil Member 1 1
Shah
Dr. Sushil Kanubhai | Member 1 1
Shah

The composition and attendance of each Member is as
follows:

The details of investor complaints received / redressed
during the financial year 2020-21is as under:

Complaintsas | Received | Resolved | Pending as on
on 01.04.2020 during during 31.03.2021
the year | the year

Nil 1 Nil 1

Name, Designation and address of Compliance Officer

Ms. Poonam Tanwani

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
250-D, Udyog Bhavan,

Hind Cycle Marg, Worli,

Mumbai- 400030

Tel. No.: 9122 6258 2810

Fax No.: NA
Email:secretarial@metropolisindia.com/
investor.relations@metropolisindia.com

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
COMMITTEE:

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of
the Board was constituted in compliance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company is focused on stakeholder value creation,
especially for the shareholders and local communities by
contributing to the social and environmental needs. The
Board accepted all recommendations made by the
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee during the
year.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee, inter alia, includes the
following:

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR
Policy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as per the Companies
Act, 2013;

. To formulate and recommend to the Board an
Annual Action Plan (‘AAP)in line with the CSR Palicy
of the Company

. To review and recommend the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be
undertaken by the company;

. To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from
time to time;

e Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem
appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors
oras may be directed by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

The detailed CSR Policy is available on the website of the
Company and can be accessed through the following
weblink:
https://metropaolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/CSR/
MHL-Revised+CSR+policy_wef+May+27-2021.pdf

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings

During the financial year under review, four meetings of
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held
on May 29, 2020, August 11, 2020, November 11, 2020 and
February 10, 2021.

The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee as at March 31, 2021 and the details of
Members' participation at the Meetings of the Committee
are as under:

Name of the Designation Particulars of
Members inthe attendance
Committee No. of No. of
meetings | meetings
held attended
duringthe | by the
Member's | Member
tenure
Mrs. Anita Ramach- | Chairperson 3 3
andran*
Mr. Vivek Gambhir* | Chairman 1 1
Ms. Ameera Sushil Member 4 4
Shah
Mr. Milind Shripad Member 4 4
Sarwate
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* Mr. Vivek Gambhir stepped down as member and
Chairperson w.e.f. July 15, 2020 and Mrs. Anita
Ramachandran was appointed as member and
Chairperson in his place w.e.f. July 15, 2020

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (RMC) COMMITTEE:

The Risk Management Committee of the Board was
constituted in compliance with the provision of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Reqgulations.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

. oversee and quide in developing a structured/
defined framework for identifying and assessing
and reporting of both existing and new risks
associated with the Company so as to facilitate
timely and effective management of risks and
opportunities  for achieving the Company's
objectives;

. periodic review of Risk Management Framework
(‘the Framework’)comprising of policies, procedures
and practices of the Company and to assess the
effectiveness of the same and initiate corrective
actions wherever required including any change
that may be required to the framework in the light of
various external and internal factors (whether
political, sociological or technical or other) which
will have impact on the business of the company;

. adopt and review periodically best business
practices and policies;

. review and monitor compliance with the regulatory
framework and the statutory requirements;

. set/define standardised approach for minimization
and mitigation of identified risks;

. review and guide the senior management from time
to time in setting up a work culture which would
encourage staff/team of the Company at all levels to
identify risks and opportunities and respond them
effectively;

STATUTORY REPORTS

e review reports on any material breaches of risk limits/

parameters and the adequacy of the proposed action;

e before a decision to proceed is taken by the board,

advise the board on proposed strategic transactions
including acquisitions or disposals, ensuring that a
due diligence appraisal of the proposition is
undertaken, focusing in particular on risk aspects and
implications for the risk appetite and tolerance of the
Company, and taking independent external advice
where appropriate and available;

Composition and Attendance of the members of the
Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee is constituted in
compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015.

SEBI had granted relaxation vide its Circular No SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/48 to convene Risk Management
Committee meeting for the Financial year 2019-20. The
Company held 1t Risk Management Committee meeting
on June 30, 2020 for the Financial year 2019-20. Further,
the Company held 2" Risk Management Committee
meeting on March 29, 2021 for the Financial Year 2020-
2021.

The Composition and attendance of each Committee
Member is as under:

Name of the Designation Particulars of
Members inthe attendance
Committee
No. of No. of
meetings | meetings
held attended
during the | by the
Member's | Member
tenure
Ms. Ameera Sushil Chairman 2 2
Shah
Dr. Sushil Kanubhai | Member 2 1
Shah
Mr. Vijender Singh Member 2 2
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of Annual General Meetings convened during the last three years are as follows:

Particulars

F.Y.2017-18

F.Y.2018-19

F.Y.2020-21

Date September 10, 2018 August 6, 2019 September 16, 2020
Time 4:00 p.m. 9.00 a.m. 9:00 a.m.
Venue 250-D, Udyog Bhavan, Hind Hall of culture, Nehru Centre, | Video Conferencing /Other

Cycle Marg, Worli, Mumbai-
400030

Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018
Maharashtra, India

Audio Visual Means

Special Resolutions

a) Change in Designation of
Mr. Mihir Jagdish Doshi
from Independent
Director to Non-
Executive Director

b) Offerand Issue of Equity
Shares for consideration
other than cash on
Preferential / Private
Placement Basis

c) Revisionin terms of
appointment of Ms.
Ameera Sushil Shah,
Managing Director of the
Company

d) Revisioninterms of
appointment of Dr. Sushil
Kanubhai Shah, Chairman
and Executive Director of
the Company

e) Approval for fixing
commission on profits to
Non-Executive Directors
and Independent
Directors

f) Approval for fixing
commission on profits to
Non-Executive Directors
and Independent
Directors

g) Amendment to the terms
of issue of convertible
warrants

No Special Resolution was
passed

a) Approval for re-
appointment of Dr. Sushil
Kanubhai Shah (DIN:
00179918), as Whole Time
Director of the Company

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

No Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held during the year under review.

Postal Ballot

Pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, during the year under review, two resolutions were passed by members of the Company through Postal Ballot

process.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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The details of Postal Ballot Process during the financial
year 2020-2021is as under:

Resolutions for which approval was sought from the
members through the Postal Ballot:

1. Approval for increase in limit to provide loan,
guarantee or security in respect of loan to any
person or Body Corporate or to make investment in
any other Body Corporate.

2. To issue, offer and allot equity shares on a
Preferential Basis.

Date of Dispatch of | January 19, 2021
Postal Ballot Notice:

From January 20, 2021, (9:00
a.m.) to

February 18, 2021(5:00 p.m.)

Voting period:

Date of declaration | February 20, 2021
of result:

M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Practising Company
Secretaries were appointed as the Scrutinizers for
conducting the E-voting process in a smooth and
transparent manner. The scrutinizers submitted their
report to the Company on February 19, 2021 and the
results were declared by the Company on February 20,
2021.

Currently, there are no forseen businesses that may be
transacted through Postal Ballot. Special resolutions, if
any, required to be passed in future through Postal ballot
would be decided at the relevant time and would be
accordingly communicated to the stakeholders.

DISCLOSURES

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the company

All related Party Transactions as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 were in the ordinary course of
business and on at Arm’s Length basis. The Board has
approved a policy for Related Party Transactions which
has been uploaded on the Company's website viz.

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/lnvestors/code-
of-conduct/MHL__Policy-on-Related-Party-Transaction.

pdf

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties,
strictures imposed on the company by stock
exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on
any matter related to capital markets, during the last
three years

STATUTORY REPORTS

The BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited levied a penalty of Rs. 2,53,700(to be paid to
each Exchange) for non-appointment of a Woman
Independent Director for the period April 1, 2020 to May
13,2020 after seeking the clarification from the Company
on the non-compliance of the same.

The Company had suitably replied to the clarification
sought by BSE Limited ('BSE’) and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited ('NSE') respectively and has
informed them on the steps taken and efforts made by
the Company to appoint a Woman Independent Director
on its Board within the stipulated time frame, however
due to strict lockdown from March 2020 in view of the
outbreak of COVID-19 and further Company's active
involvement to build infrastructure for CoVID-19 testing
during this turbulent time, the appointment of a Woman
Independent Director got little delayed.

However, to meet the deadline for depositing the penalty
amount, the Company has simultaneously deposited the
amount of penalty levied by BSE on September 4, 2020
and by NSE on August 28, 2020 and filed the applications
with the exchanges for the waiver of fine. The application
for the waiver of fine was considered favourably and the
waiver of penalty was allowed by National Stock of India
Limited and the said matter is still pending with BSE Ltd.

Other than as mentioned above, no other penalties/ fines
were imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter related
to Capital Markets.

Policy for determining material subsidiaries

The Company does not have any material un-listed Indian
Subsidiary as defined under Regulation 24 of the SEBI
Regulations.

The Company has formulated a policy for determining
material subsidiaries in terms of the Listing Regulations.
This Policy has been posted on the website of the
Company at the web link:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/3+MHL _
Policy+for+determination+of+Material+Subsidiary.pdf

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements
and in particular, the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiary companies. The minutes of the Board
meetings of the subsidiaries are placed at the meeting of
the Board of Directors of the Company. The management
of the unlisted subsidiary periodically brings to the notice
of the Board of Directors of the Company a statement of
all significant transactions and arrangements entered
into by the unlisted subsidiary, if any.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 Bwy/
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Disclosure of vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy
and access to the chairman of the audit committee

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and
has established the necessary vigilmechanism as defined
under Regulation 22 of the SEBI Regulations to provide a
formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to
report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of
Ethics. The said policy has been put up on the Company's
website viz.

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/MHL_Whistle-Blower-PolicyA.pdf

Details of concerns and grievances raised in fiscal 2021
are as follows:

Nature Complaints | Complaint
Received Resolved

Whistle Blower Palicy 5 4

Sexual Harassment at 1 1

Work place

Code of Conduct 5 5

Total n 10

Code of Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information

In order to restrict communication of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information (UPSI), the Company has adopted
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information in compliance
with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 as amended by SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The said Code is
available on the website of the Company at the Web link:

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/Code-of-Fair-Disclosure-for-UPS|-Revised-

May-13-2019.pdf

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for
maonitoring adherence to the said Regulations.

Code of Business Conduct & Ethics

The Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics
requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly,
ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in a
professional, courteous and respectful manner. The
Code is displayed on the Company's website at the Web
link:

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

https://metropaolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/MHL_Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-and-
Senior-Management.pdf

Conflict of Interest

On an annual basis, each Director informs the Company
about the Board and the Committee positions he
occupies in other Companies including Chairmanships
and notifies changes during the year. Members of the
Board, while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of
interestin the decision-making process. The members of
the Board restrict themselves from any decision and
votingin a transaction that they have concern orinterest.

Policy on materiality and dealing with related party
transactions

The Company has adopted a Policy for Determining
Materiality of Events / Information in line with the
requirements of Section 177(4)(iv)and 188 of the Act, read
with Rules framed thereunder and as defined under
Regulation 30 of the SEBI Requlations. This Policy has
been posted on the website of the Company viz.

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/MHL_Policy-for-determination-of-
materiality-of-events.pdf

Policy on dividend distribution

The Company has adopted Dividend Distribution Policy
for distributing the profits of the Company to the
shareholders as defined under Regulation 43A of the
SEBI Regulations. The said policy is available on the
Company's website viz.

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/MHL-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf

Policy on Preservation of Documents and Archival
Policy

The Company has adopted a Preservation of Documents
and Archival Policy for preservation of documents as
defined under Regulation 9 of the SEBI Requlations. The
said policy has been put on the Company’s website viz.

https://metropolisindia.com/newdata/Investors/code-
of-conduct/MHL_Policy-on-Preservation-of-
Documents-and-Archival.pdf

Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate
Governance report

One instance of non-compliance of Regulation 17 of the
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SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 relating to Non-appointment of a
Woman Independent Director with effect from April 1,
2020.

The Company has complied with the above with effect
from May 14, 2020.

Proceeds of public, rights and preferential issues

The Company hasnot raised any fund through Preferential
Allotment or Qualified Institutions Placement as specified
under Regulation 32 (7A) of the SEBI Requlations, during
the financial year ended 31 March 2021 other than as
mentioned in the Board Report in “Change in share
capital”.

Total fees paid by the company and its subsidiaries, on
a consolidated basis to B S R & Co. LLP, Statutory
Auditor and all entities in its network firm/network
entity, during the financial year 2020-2021

Particulars Amount (in Rs.
including GST)
Audit Fees 11,664,000
Other Services/ certifications 972,320
Reimbursement of expenses 577,720
Total 13,114,040

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice

A certificate from M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates,
Company Secretaries in Practice have been obtained
certifying that none of the directors on the board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by
Securities and Exchange Board of India/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority and the
same forms part of this Report.

Disclosure in relation to Sexual Harassment of Women
at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013

The Company has complied with provisions relating to
the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 [14 of
2013]. The details of complaints received and redressed
during the financial year 2020-21are as under: -

STATUTORY REPORTS

a) number of complaints filed
during the financial year : One

b) number of complaints disposed
of during the financial year : One

c) number of complaints pending
asonend of the financial year : Nil

Disclosure on Compliance with Corporate Governance
Requirements

There was one instance of non-compliance of Regulation
17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Non-
appointment of a Woman Independent Director with
effect from April 1, 2020.

The Company has complied with the above with effect
from May 14, 2020.

Compliance with mandatory requirements:

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory
requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations as on March
31, 2021. Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporate
Governance, in the prescribed format, duly signed by the
Compliance Officer is submitted with the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

Accounting treatment

The Financial Statement of the company for FY 2020-
2021 has been prepared according to the applicable
accounting principles in India and the Indian accounting
standards (Ind As) prescribed under section 133 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 read with therules made thereunder.

Adaption and Compliance of Non-mandatory
Requirements:

a. Audit Qualifications:

There were no qualifications in the Standalone and
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial year ended March 31,
2021.

b. Internal Auditors:

The Internal Auditors directly report to the Audit
Committee of the Company.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial Results

The Company communicates to the Stock Exchanges about the annual, half yearly and quarterly
financial results immediately from the conclusion of the Board Meeting in which the same is approved.
The results are usually published in (Financial Express/Free Press Journal) English newspaper having
country-wide circulation and in (Loksatta/Navshakti) Marathi newspaper where the registered office
of the Company is situated. These results were also placed on the Company's website at www.
metropolisindia.com

Annual Report

- Annual Report containing inter alia Audited Financial Statement, Consolidated Financial
Statements, Board's Report, Auditor's Report, and other important information is sent to the
shareholders is circulated to shareholders and others entitled thereto. The Management's
Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Board's Report in the Annual Report. The Annual
Report is displayed on the Company’s website at www.metropolisindia.com.

Communication to
shareholders on
Email

- As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) documents like Notices, Annual Report,
ECS advices for dividends, etc. were sent to the shareholders at their email address, as registered
with their Depository Participants/ Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agents(RTA), which helpedin
prompt delivery of document, reduce paper consumption, save trees and avoid loss of documents
in transit.

Website

All the information and disclosures required to be disseminated as per Regulation 46(2) of the Listing
Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 are being posted at Company’s website: www.metropolisindia.
com.

The official news releases and presentations to the institutional investors or analysts, if made any are
disseminated to the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com and the same is
also uploaded on the website of the Company www.metropolisindia.com

Designated E-mail
address for investor
services

The Company has organised investor conference calls to discuss its financial results, where investor
queries were answered by the Executive Management of the Company. The transcript of the
conference call is posted on the website of the Company viz. www.metropolisindia.com.

To serve the investors better and as required under Listing regulations, the designated e-mail address
forinvestors complaints is investaor.relations@metropalisindia.com

SEBI Complaints
Redress System
(SCORES):

- The investor complaints are processed in a Centralised web-based complaints redress system.
The salient features of this system are: Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of
Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions
taken on the complaint and its current status.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)is L73100MH2000PLC192798.

Annual General Meeting for FY 2020-2021

AGM date, time and venue

August 11, 2021at 9:30 a.m. (IST) Through Video Conferencing

Financial Year

April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021

Book Closure Date

Interim Dividend

Declared on February 10, 2021

Registered Office

250-0, Udyog Bhavan,
Hind Cycle Marg,

Worli, Mumbai -400030
Tel.: 022 6258 2810

Email Id: secretarial@metropolisindia.com/ investor.relations@
metropolisindia.com

Website: www.metropolisindia.com

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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Name and Address of Stock Exchanges where National Stock Exchange of India Limited Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Company's securities are listed Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra(East), Mumbai - 400 051 Trading Symbol
- METROPOLIS
BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
Scrip Code: 542650

Listing fees The Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2020-2021 have been paid
to the respective Stock Exchanges.

Share Registrar and Transfer Agents Link Intime India Private Limited C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, Vikhroli
(West), Mumbai - 400083, Maharashtra, India Tel No.: +91-22-4918 6270
Fax No.: +91-22-4918 6060

Investor query
registration: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Company Secretary & Compliance officer Ms. Poonam Tanwani

7. MARKET INFORMATION:
Share Capital Structure as on May 27, 2021

Authorised Share Capital N
295754015 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 59,15,08,030
Paid up Capital

51128913 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 10,22,57,826

Comparison of Company’s share price on BSE with SENSEX

The high and low prices and volumes of your Company's shares at BSE for the financial year 2020-2021 are as under:

Month BSE Sensex No. of Shares
(2020-21) High Low High Low Transacted
April, 2020 1387.00 1152.50 33887.25 27500.79 84,07,214
May, 2020 1396.25 1150.00 32845.48 29968.45 37,77
June, 2020 1499.00 1338.65 357086.55 32348.10 39,06,883
July, 2020 1644.00 1340.00 38617.03 34927.20 7,72,032
August, 2020 1915.00 1519.20 40010.17 36911.23 1,26,021
September, 2020 2039.00 1687.25 39359.51 36495.98 3,22,782
October, 2020 2146.50 1770.00 41048.05 38410.20 1,45,240
November, 2020 2321.00 1810.25 44825.37 39334.92 90,37
December, 2020 2268.00 1820.70 47896.97 44118.10 1,21,415
January, 2021 2319.60 1960.05 50184.01 46160.46 1,01,931
February, 2021 2296.90 1917.65 52516.76 46433.85 111,674
March, 2021 2344.95 1846.50 51821.84 48236.35 1,31,990
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Metropolis Healthcare Price Movement Chart—BSE

Metropolis - Sensex Movement
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Comparison of Company'’s share price on NSE with NIFTY

The high and low prices and volumes of your Company’'s shares at NSE for the financial year 2020-2021 are as under:

Month NSE Nifty No. of Shares

(2020-21) High Low High Low Transacted

April, 2020 1,383.00 1,151.00 9,889.05 8,055.80 8373666
May, 2020 1,399.00 1,176.00 9,598.85 8,806.75 1795667
June, 2020 1,547.90 1,338.90 10,553.15 9,544.35 3443993
July, 2020 1,646.00 1,339.00 11,341.40 10,299.60 2453294
August, 2020 1,918.00 1,515.20 11,794.25 10,882.25 2865158
September, 2020 2,040.00 1,675.00 11,618.10 10,790.20 2944168
October, 2020 2,144.90 1,770.00 12,025.45 11,347.05 2536873
November, 2020 2,323.00 1,821.50 13,145.85 11,657.40 2232711
December, 2020 2,264.95 1,822.00 14,024.85 12,962.80 2653342
January, 2021 2,320.00 1,961.45 14,753.55 13,596.75 2085487
February, 2021 2,298.00 1,915.00 15,431.75 13,661.75 1929817
March, 2021 2,348.00 1,848.00 15,336.30 14,264.40 2808806
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*Metrpolis Healthcare Price Movement Chart—NSE
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*Price movement is based upon Monthly higher closing price vs. Nifty Monthly Higher Closing

8. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

Nomination Facility for Shares held in physical form

Shareholders who hold shares in physical form and wish to make/ change a nomination in respect of their shares in the
Company, as permitted under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, may submit request to Registrar and Transfer Agent
(RTA)the prescribed Forms SH-13/SH-14.

Shares held in Electronic Form

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form may please note that instructions regarding change of address, bank details,
email address, nomination and power of attorney should be given directly to the Depository Participant (DP).

Number of Shares held in Physical Form
As on 31t March 2021, 2(Two) shares were held in physical form.

Distribution of shareholding as on 315t March 2021

Range Holders % to Total Holders Holding Amount (Rs.) % to Capital

1t0 500 30508 98.0082 975872 1951744 1.9091
501t0 1000 199 0.6393 148414 296828 0.2903
1001t0 2000 124 0.3984 184282 368564 0.3605
2001to0 3000 44 0.1414 108448 216896 0.2122
3001to 4000 24 0.077 85668 171336 0.1676
4001105000 18 0.0578 81036 162072 0.1585
5001to 10000 55 0.1767 40041 800822 0.7833
10001 & Above 156 0.5012 49132682 98265364 96.1184
Total 31128 100 51116813 102233626 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




MTEhTPRhCI)PS@!__IS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contd.)

Shareholding pattern as on 31t March 2021

Sr. | Category of Shareholders No. of Shares % to Total
No Holding
A. | PROMOTERS 25752991 50.38
B. |PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
1. Alternate Investment Funds 201539 0.39
2 Clearing Members 146760 0.29
3 Financial Institutions 169 0.00
4 Foreign Company 0 0.00
5 Foreign Portfolio Investors and Foreign Institutional Investors 13922811 27.24
6 Hindu Undivided Family 60139 0.12
7 Insurance Companies 936405 1.83
8 Mutual Funds 6904300 13.51
9 Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 26349 0.05
10 | Non Resident Indians 67067 0.13
N Other Bodies Corporate 1078396 2.1
12 | Public 2019832 3.95
13 | Trust(Employees) 65 0.00
Total 51,116,813 100.00
Top ten equity shareholders of the Company (other than promoters) as on 31t March 2021:
Sr. | Name of the Shareholder Number of equity shares | Percentage of
No. held of ¥ 2/- each holding
1 Smallcap World Fund, Inc. 38,72,946 7.58
2 Uti Flexi Cap Fund 11,86,624 2.32
3 Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited A/C Aditya Birla Sun Life 9,20,890 1.80
Flexi Cap Fund
4 Bright Star Investments Pvt Ltd 8,91,.274 1.74
5 Grandeur Peak International Stalwarts Fund 6,83,405 1.34
6 Fundsmith Emerging Equities Trust Plc 6,24,462 1.22
7 Wasatch International Opportunities Fund 5,99,587 1.17
8 Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. 5,12,166 1.00
9 Destinations International Equity Fund, A Series of Brinker Capital Desti- 4,62,886 0.9
nations Trust
10 | Franklin India Prima Fund 4,52,925 0.89

9. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company has established connectivity with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) for dematerialisation of shares and the same are available in electronic segment under ISIN:
INET12L01020 Equity Shares representing 100% of the Company's Share Capital are dematerialised as on March 31, 2021 except
as shown below
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10.

n

12.

13.

The shares of the Company are regularly traded at both
the Stock Exchanges where they are listed, which
ensures the necessary liquidity to shareholders.

Physical and Dematerialised Shares % of Total

Shares as on March 31, 2021 Issued
Capital

No. of Shares held in 18,33,462 3.59

dematerialised form in CDSL

No. of Shares held in 49,283,349 96.41

dematerialised form in NSDL

No. of Physical Shares 2 0.00

Total 51,116,813 100.00

OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY
CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION DATE AND
LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY

As on March 31, 2021, there are no GDR/ ADR/ Warrants or
any Convertible Instruments pending conversion or any
otherinstrumentslikely to impact the equity share capital
of the Company.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company has taken suitable steps from time to time
for protecting it against foreign exchange risk(s). The
Company does not enter into hedging activities.

As such, the Company is not exposed to any commodity
price risk, and hence the disclosure under Clause 9(n) of
Part C of Schedule V in terms of the format prescribed
vide SEBI Circular, dated 15th November, 2018, is not
required to be made.

EQUITY SHARES IN THE SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

The Company does not have any equity shares in the
suspense account.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/UNPAID AMOUNT TO THE
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROVIDENT FUND

The Company had not declared dividends during the FY
2013-2014, hence no unpaid/unclaimed dividend for
FY2013-2014 is required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Provident Fund.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

PLANT LOCATION

Since the Company provides services, the Company does
not have any manufacturing plant. It operates from
Registered & Corporate Office and branches located at
different places throughout India.

Our laboratory network consists of 125 labs (including
Global Reference Lab in Mumbai and 13 Regional
Reference Labs)and 2,555 Patient Service Centres.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, CRISIL, a Credit Rating
agency has reaffirmed its Rating: CRISIL AA-/stable on
the Non Convertible Debentures and long term loan
facility of the Company.

Further, CRISIL has also reassigned its CRISIL Al+ rating
to the short term bank facility of the Company.

The Company has not issued any NCD or availed any bank
loan(short-term /long-term)for the year ended on March
31,2021.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer (CEQ
&CFO0) of the Company have certified to the Board with
regard to the compliance made by them in terms of
Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI
Listing Regulations and the said certificate forms part of
this Report.

DECLARATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 26(3) READ
WITH SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS

In accordance with Regulation 26(3) read with Schedule V
of SEBI Listing Regulations, the CEO has declared that
the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code
of Conduct as applicable to them for the financial year
March 31, 2021 which forms part of this Report.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS

Certificate from the Auditors, M/s Manish Ghia &
Associates, Company Secretaries, confirming compliance
with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, and the said certificate forms part of
this Report.
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19. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: B. Company’'s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
A. Registered Office Address: Address:

Metropolis Healthcare Limited Link Intime India Private Limited

250-D, Udyog Bhavan, C 101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),

Hind Cycle Marg, Mumbai - 400 083, Maharashtra, India

Worli, Mumbai -400030 Tel No.: +91-22-4918 6270

Tel.: +916258 2810 Fax No.: +91-22-4918 6060

Fax: NA Investor query registration:

Email Id: secretarial@metropolisindia.com / investor. rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

relations@metropolisindia.com
Website: www.metropolisindia.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah

Place: Miami Chairman & Executive Director
Date: May 27, 2021 (DIN: 00179918)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015)

To

The Members

Metropolis Healthcare Limited

250 DB, Udyog Bhavan, Worli, Mumbai - 400030

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Metropolis
Healthcare Limited having CIN: L73100MH2000PLC192798 and having registered office at 250 D, Udyog Bhavan, Worli,
Mumbai-400030 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of
India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers,
We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st
March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr.No |Name of Director DIN DIN Date of Appointment in Company
1 Mr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah 00179918 August 17, 2005

2 Ms. Ameera Sushil Shah 00208095 May 6, 2008

3 Mr. Milind Shripad Sarwate 00109854 September 7, 2018

4 Mr. Sanjay Bhatnagar 00867848 September 7, 2018

5 Mr. Vivek Gambhir 06527810 September 7, 2018

6 Ms. Anita Ramachandran 00118188 May 14, 2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)

CS Mannish L. Ghia

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 27, 2021 M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531
UDIN: F006252C000363521 PR 822/2020
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

To,
The Board of Birectors,
Metropolis Healthcare Limited

We, the undersigned to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year 2020-2021 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to
the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the step we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.  We haveindicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:
1. significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during this year;

2. significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies this year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

3. instances of significant fraud, if any, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Vijender Singh Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I, Vijender
Singh, Chief Executive Officer of the Company hereby declare that the Board members and the Senior Management Personnel of
the Company have affirmed the compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Sd/-
Date: May 27, 2021 Vijender Singh
Place: Gurugram Chief Executive Officer
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ANNEXURE TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To

The Members

Metropolis Healthcare Limited
Mumbai - 400030.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Metropolis Healthcare Limited, for the year ended
on 31st March 2021 as stipulated under Regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 ('Listing Regulations).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been limited
to areview of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of
the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Listing Regulations.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the representations
made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the mandatory conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in relevant regulation(s) of above mentioned Listing Regulations.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)

CS Mannish L. Ghia

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: May 27, 2021 M. No. FCS 6252, C.P. No. 3531
UDIN: F006252C000363510 PR 822/2020
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Pursuant to Requlation 34(2) (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of
Directors presents the Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2021.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L73100MH2000PLC192798

Name of the Company Metropolis Healthcare Limited

Registered address 250 D, Udyog Bhavan, Hind Cycle Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 030,
Maharashtra, India

Website www.metropalisindia.com

E-mail id secretarial@metropolisindia.com

Financial Year reported April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021

Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity Section: Human health and social work activities

code-wise) Description: Activities of independent diagnostic/pathological

laboratories
Industrial activity code: 86905*

List three key products/services that the Company The Company provides Diagnostic Services in the area of

manufactures/ provides (as mentioned in balance sheet) Pathology.

Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company:

Number of International Locations The Company has its business operations in 6 International
locations.

Number of National Locations The Company has presence in around 220 Locations across
India.

Markets served by the Company - Local/State/National/ International Locations: Kenya, Ghana, Mauritius, Zambia,

International Tanzania and Sri Lanka.

National Locations: PAN India

* As per National Industrial Classification made by Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY
(Amount in Lakhs)

Paid up Capital 1022.33
Total Income 86,475.59
Total profit after taxes 19,755.51
Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as 1.84%

percentage of profit after tax (%)

List of activities in which expenditure as stated above has been | Please refer to the “Report on CSR Activities” attached as
incurred annexure to the Board's Report forming part of the Annual Report.

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies?

Yes, as on March 31, 2021, the Company has 18 subsidiary companies (including foreign step down subsidiaries), the details of
the same have been provided in another section of the Annual Report.

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate the
number of such subsidiary company(s)?

All the subsidiary companies as mentioned above participate in the BR initiatives of the Company i.e. Metropolis Healthcare
Limited.

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More
than 60%]

No, there is no such participation by any other entity/entities
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (CONTD.)

SECTION D: BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY INFORMATION
1.  Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

a) Details of the Director / Director responsible for implementation of the Business Responsibility policy/policies:

Sr.No. |Name DIN Designation

1 AMEERA SUSHIL SHAH 00208095 Managing Director
b)  Details of the Business Responsibility Head

DIN 00208095

Name AMEERA SUSHIL SHAH

Designation Managing Director

Telephone Number 022 62582810

E-mail ID md.office@metropolisindia.com

2. Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines [NVGs]) BR Policy/policies

The NVGs on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These principles (P1-P9) are as follows:

P1- Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.
P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.
P3 - Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

P6 - Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7- Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.
P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.
(a) Details of compliance

Sr. | Questions Pl P2 P3| P4 P5 P6  P7 | P8 | P9
No.
1. Do you have a policy/ policies for Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2. Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the relevant | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
stakeholders?

3. Does the policy conform to any national / international standards? | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
If yes, specify?* (50 words)

Yes. The policies are based on the ‘National Voluntary
Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic
Responsibilities of Business issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India’.

4. Has the policy being approved by the Board? If yes, has it been| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ appropriate Board Director?

5. Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

B. Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? MHL_Business-Responsibility-policy.pdf
(metropolisindia.com)

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD
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Sr. | Questions P1 | P2 | P3 P4 | P5 P6 P7 | P8 P9
No.

7. Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant internal | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
and external stakeholders?

The Policy has been communicated to the relevant
internal and external stakeholders.

8. Does the company have in-house structure to implement the| Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
policy/policies?

9. Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanismrelated | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders’ grievances related
to the policy/ policies?

Yes.
The grievances can be reported in respect to

violation of the policy to the Compliance Officer of
the Company.

10. | Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of the | Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
working of this policy by an internal or external agency?

*The policies formulated by the Company are materially in compliance with all mandatory/applicable laws, rules, regulations,
quidelines and standards.

(b) If answer to the question at serial number 1against any principle, is'No', please explain why: Not Applicable

Sr. | Questions Pl P2 | P3| P4 |  P5 P6 P7 | P8 | P9
No.
1. The company has not understood the Principles - - - - - - - - -

2. The company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a position to| - - - - - - - - -
formulate and implement the policies on specified principles

3. The company does not have financial or manpower resources| - - - - - - - - -

available for the task

4. Itis planned to be done within next 6 months

5. Itis planned to be done within the next 1year

6. | Any other reason (please specify)

3. Governance related to BR SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Principle 1: Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
Committee of the Board or CEQ to assess the BR 1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption
performance of the Company. cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the
The Management on quarterly basis monitors the BR Group/Joint  Ventures/  Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/
initiatives and BR performance of the Company to be Others?
compiled in the BR report, which shall form part of Annual The policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption is
Report every year and shall be placed before the Board for primarily applicable to the Company and its Subsidiaries.

] However, the Company encourages the contractors,

theirapproval, every year. suppliers and others to comply with the same, wherever

(b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability possible.

Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report?
How frequently it is published?

The Company shall publish its Business Responsibility
Report on an annual basis in the Annual Report of the
Company and its website at www.metropolisindia.com.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received
in the past Financial Year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management?

The Company has not received any complaint from any
stakeholders relating to ethics, bribery and Corruption.
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Principle 2: Product Life Cycle Sustainability

1.

Principle 3: Business should promote the well-being of all employees

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design
has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks
and/or opportunities.

Our company provides pathology services (single
segment) and does not have environmental risks or
concerns. We recognise that our operations indirectly
impact the environment. Our safety protocol affirms our
commitment of reducing impact on the environment. We
do this through responsible environmental management,
conservation, and protection across all our operations.

»  Metropolis utilises services of Agencies authorised
by the Pollution Control Board for collecting Bio-
medical waste from our labs and we follow the
quidelines issued by the local municipal governing
bodies of different cities and states.

»  Metropolis maintains power factor (PF) up to 0.97
(unity).

» Sewage Water Processing (SWP) installed at our
biggestlab(The Global Reference Labin Mumbai)and
treated water is used for toilet flush and Gardening.

»  LED lights are being used instead of conventional
lights for energy saving exercise at all our corporate
offices and labs.

For each such product, provide the following details in
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.)
per unit of product (optional):

The Company is engaged into providing pathology

services and it does not undertake any activity of
manufacturing of a product.

Does the company have procedures in place for
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? If yes,
what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably?
Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company has built a healthy and strong relationship
with its vendors and suppliers. We make sure that our
vendors are selected carefully by evaluating multiple
aspectsincluding quality, ethics and their capabilities.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods
and services from local & small producers, including
communities surrounding their place of work? (a) If yes,
what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and
capability of local and small vendors?

Yes. At our lab and network centres across the country,
we procure goods and services from local vendors and
mid-size businesses which meets our criteria of quality
and cost.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of
products and waste (separately as 10%). Also, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company does not have any mechanism for recycling
Bio-medical waste. However, Bio Medical Waste is
disposed-off with the help of agencies authorised by the
Pollution Control Board.

All employees are covered under Group Personal Accidental Insurance Coverage and Group Hospitalization Policy. Additionally,
employees can avail free of cost testing as well as testing at a subsidized level. We urge employees to keep a regular check on their
wellness.

Total number of employees 4146
Total number of employees hired on temporary/ contractual/casual basis 435
Number of permanent women employees 1661
Number of permanent employees with disabilities Nil
Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management Yes
What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee association? 3.54%

Details of the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment, are as

follows:

No. | Category

No of complaints
pending as on end of

No of complaints filed
during the Financial

Year the Financial year
1. Child labour/forced labour/ involuntary labour Nil Nil
2. | Sexual harassment 1 Nil
3. | Discriminatory Employment Nil Nil
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What percentage of your under mentioned employees
were given safety & skill upgradation training in the last
year?

Category Percentage (%)

a) Permanent Employees 13%

b) |Permanent Women Employees 18%

c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual 14%
Employees

d) Employees with Disabilities Nil

Principle 4: Stakeholder Engagement

1.

Has the company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders?

Yes

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so?

As a socially responsible organization, the Company fully
realizes the need to integrate its business and operations
to benefit the community in which the Company
operates. The CSR Programs of the Company are focused
on women's health and well-being, education and skill
development, and women empowerment.

Principle 5: Human Rights

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover
only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/ Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The Commitment to human rights is covered in the Code

of Conduct adopted by the Company.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received
in the past Financial Year and what percent was
satisfactorily resolved by the management?

Type of Complaints | Received | Resolved | Pending

Shareholder Related 1 Nil 1
Employee Related 11 10 1
Customer Related 15215 15215 Nil
Total 15,227 15,225 2

Principle 6: Environment

1.

Does the policy relate to Principle 6 cover only the
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/ NGOs/others?

The Company’s policy on Environment, Health and Safety
and Standard Operating Procedures are applicable to the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address
global environmental issues such as climate change,
global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for
webpage etc?

The company does not have any specific initiative to
reduce environmental issues such as climate change
or global warming. However, the Company undertakes
the environmentally responsible actions that includes
utilisation of LED lighting system at corporate offices
and labs, recycling water at the biggest laboratory of the
Company i.e., the global reference laboratory in Mumbai
and reducing the usage of paper across all offices and
centres of the Company.

Does the company identify and assess potential
environmental risks?

As a responsible Company in the Healthcare industry,
the Company takes utmost care for safe disposal of
biomedical waste. The Company uses services of
authorized agencies for safe disposal of bio-waste. These
agencies are authorized by the Pollution Control Board.

Does the company have any project related to Clean
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether any
environmental compliance report is filed?

No.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on -
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy
etc.? If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

No.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
Financial Year being reported?

Yes. Allemissions/waste generated are within permissible
limits.

Number of show cause/legal noticesreceived from CPCB/
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction)
asonend of Financial Year.

The Company has not received any Show Cause Notice or
Legal Notices from CPC / SPCB during the financial year
under review.

Principle 7: Policy Advocacy

1.

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:

Yes, the Company is a member of NATHEALTH -
Healthcare Federation of India and Cll - Confederation of
Indian Industries.
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Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations
for the advancement or improvement of public good?
Yes/No; If yes, specify the broad areas (drop box:
Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms,
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water,
Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

The Company has partnered with NATHEALTH -
The Healthcare Federation of India to represent the
Healthcare industry and the multiple challenges the
industry is facing during the COVID-19 pandemic. This
helped the industry navigate challenges and to serve the
public more efficiently.

Principle 8: Equitable Development
1.

Does the company have specified programmes/
initiatives/ projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 87 If yes details thereof.

The Company’s CSR Policy is aimed at inducing growth
and equitable development of all stakeholders. The
Company has also implemented Employee Stock Option
Scheme 2015 and Metropolis-Restrictive Stock Unit Plan,
2020 and accordingly, issued ESOPs and RSUs to its
employees, resulting in value creation for the employees.

The company has taken various initiatives for Equitable
Development in the areas mentioned below:

»  Quality Education: Our MEDENGAGE program is
focused on nurturing the medical and scientific
talent in the country. Through Medengage, we
identify and provide scholarship, observership,
skills training and facilitate research for medical and
para medical students across the country.

»  Gender Equality: Our app Too Shy to Ask is India’s
only gender education, adolescent and reproductive
sexual health education app in the country that
is targeted towards adolescents, teachers and
parents. Through the app, users can also post
anonymous queries and get their queries resolved
in a safe manner. The content has been written by a
highly qualified medical team.

»  Our initiative EMPOWERESS helps women micro-
entrepreneurs scale their businesses through
focused mentoring and networking sessions.

» Good Health and well-being: Our initiative
METHEALTH is committed to create wide spread
education amongst high risk groups to prevent life
threatening disorders.

» Food Box Project 2020: The Company, in
association with WE foundation, launched and
executed the Food Box Project for COVID Warriors
(doctors and healthcare workers). This initiative is
focused towards providing nutrition to the medical
taskforce working tirelessly in COVID hospitals.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

We distributed nutrition boxesamong 6000+ doctors
and other health workers across 100+ hospitals and
municipal corporations in Mumbai and Pune. We
distributed over 6000 boxes in Maharashtra and
9000 boxes in Surat, Delhi, Bengaluru, and Chennai.

» Healthcare Heroes Awards 2021: The Company
in association with WE Foundation launched
Healthcare Heroes Awards 2021, a CSR Initiative
that recognizes and honours doctors, institutions,
healthcare workers and municipal officers who have
made a difference during the COVID-18 pandemic
and brought hope to humanity.

The award focusses on recognition of efforts
by healthcare heroes and COVID warriors in the
country.

The Company received 200+ application for the first
edition and we awarded 19 frontline warriors across
8 different categories.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/government
structures/ any other organization?

The Company's CSR Activities are executed by the in-
house team

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Assessment Process: The Internal Team of the Company
continuously monitors and assesses the impact of all its
CSR projects. During the Financial Year 2020-21, through
the company’'s multiple online and offline awareness
programs, we reached out to over 70,000 plus women
from 115 cities. We have conducted 82 offline workshops
and 36 online webinars and counselling sessions where
young girls can directly speak to our experts regarding
their health concerns. We have had 100+ experts who have
participatedin these sessions to provide timely guidance.
In addition to that, we secured a weekly editorial column
for our initiative Too Shy To Ask in one of India’s leading
newspaper. We also secured an opportunity with a radio
channel for Too Shy To Ask. So far, the app has over
1,00,000 downloads.

We have updated the TSTA application and have added
self- training modules for teenagers. TSTA has won over
2 (two) National Awards during the FY 2020-21. We have
secured a weekly O&A Column with Mid-Day - Popular
qguestions along with answer appeared in the health page
of the newspaper. We have also secured an opportunity
for Dr. Duru Shah, Gynaecologist and Founder and
President of the PCOS Society India, with Radio Mirchi for
the application during the year.

What is your company’s direct contribution to community
development projects-Amount in " and the details of the
projects undertaken.
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Details of Company’s contribution are mentioned below:

(In%)
Sr. | CSRProject or activity Identify | Expenditure up
No. to the reporting
period

1. Promoting education including 1,82,65,431

continuing medical Education

and promoting Health

Awareness
2. | Women Empowerment and 11,36,630

Employment Enhancement and

vocational skills among children.

Total 1,94,02,061

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community
development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community?

Yes, the Company ensures that its initiatives are
successfully adopted by the final beneficiaries.

For eg: The Company’'s app, Too Shy To Ask (TSTA), the
Company has enlisted the help of research agency to
gauge the level of understanding amongst its users and
further enhance the app to ensure that the initiative
has maximum impact for its users. In addition, our
team answered over 20,000+ queries on the app from
adolescents on various sexual, gender and reproductive
health topics. The Too Shy To Ask application is an effort
by the Company to speak to the young adolescents about
sexual and reproductive health which otherwise may not
be taughtin the school curriculum.

We have updated the TSTA application and have added
self- training modules for teenagers. We have secured
a weekly Q&A Column with Mid-Day - Popular questions
along with answer appeared in the health page of the
newspaper.

Empoweress is an initiative by the Company, where
we regularly provide mentoring session, networking
opportunities and access to bigger networks and industry
leaders to women entrepreneurs. In the past we have
had mentoring sessions with EFG Store, Repos Energy,
StyleDotMe, Kriya Med, Niramai, Lean Agri and so on.

We conducted closed door focus group meetings for
Empoweress community members through Video
Conferencing. Further, we conducted the closed-door
meeting with 10-12 business owners on Fortnight basis.
We scheduled the Leadership and entrepreneur talks for
the benefit of community members where we conducted
sessions with known leaders namely Revathi Roy, Vishal
Gondal, Ayushi Gudwani and Sasha Mirchandani, etc.

Empoweress is an initiative by the Company, where
we regularly provide mentoring session, networking
opportunities and access to bigger networks and industry

leaders to women entrepreneurs. In the past we have
had mentoring sessions with EFG Store, Repos Energy,
StyleDotMe, Kriya Med, Niramai, Lean Agriand so on.

We conducted closed door focus group meetings for
Empoweress community members through Video
Conferencing. Further, we conducted the closed-door
meeting with 10-12 business owners on Fortnight basis.
We scheduled the Leadership and entrepreneur talks for
the benefit of community members where we conducted
sessions with known leaders namely Revathi Ray, Vishal
Gondal, Ayushi Gudwani and Sasha Mirchandani, etc.

Principle 9: Customer Value

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer
cases are pending as on the end of Financial Year?

There are no customer complaints/consumer cases
pending as on the end of the Financial year.

Does the company display product information on the
product label, over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? Yes/ No/N.A. /Remarks(additional information)

The Company is engaged into providing pathology
services. Hence, the above requirements are not
applicable to the Company.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the
company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/ or anti-competitive behaviour during the
last five years and pending as on end of Financial Year?

There are no cases filed by any stakeholder against the
company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/ or anti-competitive behaviour.

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction trends?

The Company adopts the Net Performance Score to
gauge customer satisfaction levels. The Net Promoter
Score is an index ranging from -100 to 100 that measures
the willingness of customers to recommend a company’s
productsor servicestoothers. Itisused asatool to gauge
the customer’s overall satisfaction with a company’s
product or service and the customer’s loyalty to the
brand.

A feedback link is sent to each customer availing our
service. The link requests the customer’s likeliness
to promote services of Metropolis to their friends and
family. Basis the customer’s feedback, customers are
differentiated as Promoters, Passives and Detractors.

Passives are those neutral to the score and detractors
are the once who have had an unpleasant experience.
Our customer experience team reaches out to them
to understand their concern and take feedback. The
feedback is used continually to tweak our processes
and systems in our relentless pursuit of Customer
Satisfaction.
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To the Members of

Metropolis Healthcare Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of
Metropolis Healthcare Limited (“the Company’), which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2021,
and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), standalone statement of
changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, includingasummary of the significantaccounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
theserequirementsandthe Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial
statements.

Statements section of our

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A JOINT VENTURE

See note 5 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has long-term investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture (collectively “the investments”) aggregating Rs.
12,884.69 lakhs as at 31 March 2021. The Company records the
investments at cost less any provision for impairment loss.

Changes in business environment could have a significant
impact on the valuation of these investments. As such, the
investments are tested for any triggers forimpairment. If triggers
are identified, the recoverable amounts of the investments are
determined and if the amount is lower than the carrying value of
the investments, impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount is based on the value in use model, has
been derived from discounted forecast cash flow model.

We identified the assessment of impairment indicators
and resultant provisions, if any, in respect of investment in

subsidiariesand ajoint venture as a key audit matter considering:

. The significance of the value of these investments in the
Standalone Balance Sheet.

Our audit procedures included:

Understanding the process followed by the Company in respect
of the annual impairment analysis.

Evaluating the design and implementation and testing the
operating effectiveness of key internal controls related to the
Company’s process relating to review of the annual impairment
analysis, including controls over determination of discount rate
and terminal growth rate.

Challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, particularly
forecasted revenue growth rate and related costs based on our
knowledge of the Company and market. Assessing historical
accuracy by comparing past forecasts to actual results achieved.

Involving the valuation professionals with specialised skills and
knowledge to assist in evaluating the impairment model used and
assumptions (including discount rate and terminal growth rate
applied by the Company by comparing it to a range of rates that
were independently developed using publicly available market
indices and market data for comparable entities).

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD




CORPORATE OVERVIEW
STATUTORY REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Contd.)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

. Performance and net worth of these entities and

. The degree of judgement involved in determining the

recoverable amount of these investments including:

- Valuation assumptions such as discount rate and

terminal growth rate.

- Business assumptions such as revenue growth rate,
related costs and the resultant cash flows projected to

be generated from these investments.

Testing data used to develop the estimate for completeness and
accuracy.

Performing a sensitivity analysis to evaluate the impact of change
in key assumption individually or collectively to the recoverable
value.

Assessing the adequacy of disclosuresin the standalone financial
statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT'S AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the
Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management
and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significanceinthe audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order,
2016 (“the QOrder”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. A)Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) Wehavesoughtand obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement
of changes in equity and the standalone statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) Onthe basisof the writtenrepresentationsreceived
from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act; and

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B".
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B)

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigationsasat 31March2021onitsfinancial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note
4] to the standalone financial statements;

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required tobe transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial
statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8
November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been
made in these standalone financial statements
since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 March 2021.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2021

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’
Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger

Partner

Membership No: 105003

ICAI' UDIN: 21105003AAAACMb5469
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ANNEXURE A 1o THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

(Referred to in paragraph 1under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets(Property, plant and equipment).

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets (Property, plant and equipment) by
which all fixed assets (Property, plant and equipment) are verified once in three years. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. During the
previous year, the Company had physically verified all its fixed assets (Property, plant and equipment) and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company as disclosed in Note 3 to the
standalone financial statements, except for the following:

Description Total number Whether Gross block Net block Remarks
of cases leasehold/ as on 31March as on 31March
freehold 2021(% Lakhs) 2021(X Lakhs)
Land 1 Freehold 1,035.40 1,035.40 Title deeds are in the names
Building 4 Freehold 1,092.87 844.08 of the entities which got
merged with the Company
in the past.
(i) Inventory has been physically verified by management (vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account

(iii)

at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between physical
stocks and the book records were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vii) (a)

maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in
respect of the Company’s services and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have
not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/
accrued in the books of account in respect of

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us and based on the audit undisputed statutory duesincluding Provident fund,
procedures conducted by us, the Company has complied Employees’State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act, Service tax and other material statutory dues have
with respect to investments made by the Company. been generally regularly deposited during the year
The Company has not granted any loans or provided with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
any guarantees or security to the parties covered under the Company did not have any dues on account of
section 185 and 186 of the Act. Sales tax, Value added tax, Duty of excise and Cess.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and Accordingto the information and explanations given

explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

to us, there are no undisputed amount payable,
in respect of Provident fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service tax and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021(CONTD.)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, except as stated below, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales
tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise and Value added tax as at 31 March 2021 which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount
(% Lakhs)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 113.93

Amount paid

Period to which
the amount relates

Forum where dispute
is pending

- AY 2014-15 ITAT

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
bank or Government nor has it issued any debentures.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii)of the Orderis not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not raised any moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and has not obtained any term loans
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the current year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to

(xiv

(xv)

(xvi

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2021

us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by applicable accounting

standards.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order
isnot applicable to the Company.

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger

Partner

Membership No: 105003

ICAI UDIN: 21105003AAAACM5469
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ANNE XURE B 10 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (A) (F) UNDER ‘REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS’ SECTION
OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements of Metropolis Healthcare
Limited (“the Company’) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction

with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India(the “Guidance Note").

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controlsbased on theinternal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’'s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act”).
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
auditinaccordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were established and maintained and whether
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Ouraudit of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposesinaccordance with generally
acceptedaccounting principles. Acompany’sinternal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
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maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger

Partner

Membership No: 105003

ICAI' UDIN: 21105003AAAACMb5469

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2021
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
(Zin L akhs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
31March 2021 31March 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 9,331.82 9,747.43
Right-of-use assets 43(3) 7.821.68 4,868.29
Goodwill 4 4,880.90 4,880.90
Other intangible assets 4 3,094.96 2,081.13
Intangible assets under development 4 = 298.89
Financial ts
i) Investments
a) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture 5 12,884.69 12,802.36
b) Other investments 5 175.28 175.28
ii) Loans 6 923.63 450.66
iii) Derivatives 7 - 27.77
iv) Other non current financial assets 8 159.88 1,105.28
Other non-current assets 9 33.62 519.88
Deferred tax assets (net) 36(d) 895.25 475.43
Non-current tax assets (net) 10 1,5605.37 1,189.39
Total Non-current ts 41,707.08 38,622.69
Current ts
Inventories 11 3,346.36 1,745.84
Financial Assets
i) Investments 12 1.35 -
ii) Trade receivables 13 12,265.55 12,439.86
iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14(a) 31,713.28 6,743.18
iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14(b) 1,829.05 6,457.74
v)Loans 15 1,176.27 2,037.77
vi) Other current financial assets 16 350.11 168.28
Other current assets 17 954.86 614.39
Total Current assets 51,636.83 30,207.06
TOTAL ASSETS 93,343.91 68,829.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 1,022.33 1,012.61
Other equity 19 69,870.20 50,225.85
Total Equity 70,892.53 51,238.46
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 43(4) 5,933.29 3,660.22
ii) Other non-current financial liabilities 20 17.11 106.55
Provisions 21 701.31 458.69
Total Non current liabilities 6,651.71 4,225.46
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 43(4) 2,563.23 1,693.59
i) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22 196.42 670.81
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 22 8,811.94 6,418.89
i) Other current financial liabilities 23 1,632.07 2,328.22
Other current liabilities 24 1,160.21 1,714.01
Provisions 25 488.69 411.28
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 947.11 129.03
Total Current liabilities 15,799.67 13,365.83
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 93,343.91 68,829.75
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR&Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Metropolis Healthcare Limited
Chartered Accountants L73100MH2000PLC192798
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger Dr. Sushil Shah Ameera Shah Poonam Tanwani
Partner Chairman & Executive Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 105003 DIN: 00179918 DIN: 00208095 Membership No: ACS 19182
Place : Miami( USA) Place : Dubai Place : Ahmedabad
Place : Mumbai Vijender Singh Rakesh Agarwal
Date: 27 May 2021 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Date : 27 May 2021
Place : Gurugram Place : Mumbai
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STATUTORY REPORTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
(%in Lakhs)
Particulars Notes Forthe yearended Forthe year Ended
31March 2021 31March 2020
Il. INCOME
Revenue from Operations 27 81,610.83 66,530.71
Otherincome 28 4,864.76 2,931.79
Total Income 86,475.59 69,462.50
Il. EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 21,251.24 16,724.71
Laboratory testing charges 30 674.00 649.76
Employee benefits expense 31 15,684.44 14,766.62
Finance costs 32 577.56 656.01
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 3,619.74 3,084.51
Other expenses 34 20,063.82 17,129.15
Total Expenses 61,870.80 53,010.76
lll. Profit before tax and exceptional items (I- II) 24,604.79 16,451.74
IV. Exceptional ltems 35 = 2,452.66
V. Profit before tax (llI-1V) 24,604.79 13,999.08
Income tax expense: 36
1. Current Tax 5,306.00 3,933.00
2. Deferred Tax(income)/ expenses (344.94) (909.62)
3. Tax adjustments for earlier years (111.78) (229.73)
VI. Total Income tax expenses 4,849.28 2,793.65
VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 19,755.51 11,205.43
VIIl. Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 46(a) (297.49) (201.67)
Income tax on above. 36 74.88 50.76
(222.61) (150.91)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (222.61) (150.91)
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII-VIII) 19,532.90 11,054.52
Earnings per equity share 37
Equity shares of face value of ¥ 2 each
Basic earnings per share 38.81 22.32
Diluted earnings per share 38.61 22.22
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR&Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Metropolis Healthcare Limited
Chartered Accountants L73100MH2000PLC192798
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger Dr. Sushil Shah Ameera Shah Poonam Tanwani
Partner Chairman & Executive Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 105003 DIN: 00179918 DIN: 00208095 Membership No: ACS 19182
Place : Miami( USA) Place : Dubai Place : Ahmedabad
Place : Mumbai Vijender Singh Rakesh Agarwal
Date: 27 May 2021 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Date : 27 May 2021
Place : Gurugram Place : Mumbai
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 24,604.79 13,999.08
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,619.74 3,084.51
Interest on lease Liabilities 562.46 581.81
Provision for impairment of non-current investments = 195.00
Provision for impairment of current investments = 336.48
Write-off of Property, Plant and Equipment = 37.91
Loss on derivative assets 27.77 55.48
Provision for bad and doubtful debts(net) 1,762.88 3,144.53
Provision for doubtful advances (net) 100.00 241.04
Share based payment expenses (Refer Note 31) 778.73 72.38
Interest on deferred purchase consideration 15.10 2413
Foreign exchange loss/(gain)(net) 28.84 (307.38)
Interest Expenses paid on borrowings = 50.07
Sundry balances written back (net) (12.75) (43.90)
Interest & other income (713.93) (326.22)
Interest income on income tax refund (1.35) -
Dividend income from related parties and mutual funds (4,000.00) (2,205.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes 26,772.28 18,939.94
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (1,600.52) 224.79
Decrease in loans (current and non-current) 422.55 283.32
(Increase)in other current assets (Current and non current) (406.62) (146.31)
(Increase)in trade receivables (1,588.57) (3,757.83)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current financial assets (1.81) 779.28
Increase in provisions 22.54 80.01
Increase in trade payables 1,902.56 3,067.09
(Decrease)in other current financial liabilities (26.82) (141.83)
(Decrease)/ Increase in other current liabilities (553.80) 1,045.67
Cash generated from operating activities 24,941.79 20,374.13
Income tax paid (net) (4,692.12) (4,761.15)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 20,249.67 15,612.98
B CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets (Including capital (2,496.48) (2,274.01)
advances and capital creditors)
Purchase consideration paid towards acquisition of business (142.00) (335.26)
Purchase of investments (83.67) -
Loans Given to Related Parties (net) = (95.71)
Interest Income received 501.24 242.25
Dividend Income received 4,000.00 2,205.00
Investment in term deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 5,574.09 (4,854.86)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) 7,353.18 (5,112.59)
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTD.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020

C CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings (net) = (1,734.47)
Principal payment of lease liabilities (1,412.73) (1,073.77)
Proceeds from issue of shares to ESOP holders (refer note 46(c)) 3,431.78 3,189.28
Payment of Dividend (4,089.34) (4,014.29)
Payment of Dividend Distribution Tax = (371.97)
Interest on lease Liabilities (562.46) (581.81)
Interest expense paid on borrowings - (50.07)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2,632.75) (4,637.04)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 24,970.10 5,863.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,743.18 879.83
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer notel4(a)) 31,713.28 6,743.18

1 The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard - 7
“Statement of Cash Flows”

2 Thefiguresin the brackets indicate outflow of cash and cash equivalents.

3 The movement of borrowing as per Ind AS 7 is as follows:

4 The above Standalone Statements of Cash Flows include ¥ 363.13 lakhs (31 March 2020 76.97 lakhs) towards Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR) activities, refer note 48(a)

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year = 1.734.47
Cashflows = (1,734.47)

Balance as at the end of year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Tarun Kinger
Partner
Membership No: 105003

Place : Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2021

Dr. Sushil Shah

DIN: 00179918
Place : Miami( USA)

Vijender Singh
Chief Executive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Chairman & Executive Director

Ameera Shah
Managing Director
DIN: 00208085
Place : Dubai

Rakesh Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Metropolis Healthcare Limited
L73100MH2000PLC192798

Poonam Tanwani
Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS 19182
Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 27 May 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21




MTEhTPRhCI)PS@!__IS

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (*SOCIE’)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (REFER NOTE 18)

(A)

Particulars Number of shares Amount
(% in Lakhs)
Balance as at 1 April 2019 5,01,78,680 1,003.57
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Issued under Metropolis Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 (Refer Note 46(c)) 4,51,886 9.04
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5,06,30,566 1,012.61
Issued under Metropolis Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 (Refer Note 46(c)) 4,86,247 9.72
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,11,16,813 1,022.33
OTHER EQUITY (REFER NOTE 19)
(% in Lakhs)
Fully Reserves & Surplus Other Total other
convert- compre- equity
ible share hensive
warrants income
(ocl)
Securities | General Capital | Employee | Retained | Remea-
premium | reserve | redemp- stock earnings | surements
tion options of the
reserve reserve defined
benefit
plans
Balance as at 1 April 2019 -/ 8700.73 1,684.07 - 258.78 | 29,868.60 24.65| 40,536.83
Profit for the year - - - - - 11,205.43 - 11,205.43
Profit on re-measurement of - - - - - - (150.91) (150.91)
defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income - - - - -| 1,205.43 (150.91)| 11,054.52
Interim Dividend - - - - -1 (4,014.29) - (4,014.29)
Tax on Interim dividend - - - - - (371.91) - (371.91)
Share options exercised under - 3,180.24 124.10 - - - - 3,304.34
MESOS 2015 (Refer Note 46('c))
Share based payments - - - - (51.72) - - (51.72)
(Refer Note 46(c))
Impact of IND AS 116 for Opening - - - - - (231.91) - (231.91)
balance
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 1,880.97 1,808.17 - 207.06 | 36,455.91 (126.26)| 50,225.85
Profit for the year - - - - - 19,755.51 - 19,755.51
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - (126.26) 126.26 -
Profit on re-measurement of - - - - - (222.61) - (222.61)
defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income - - - - -| 19,406.64 - 19,406.64
Interim Dividend - - - - - (4,089.34) - (4,089.34)
Tax on Interim dividend - - - - - - - -

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD




STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (‘SOCIE’) (CONTD.)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
(% in Lakhs)
Fully Reserves & Surplus Other Total other
convert- compre- equity
ible share hensive
warrants income
(ocl)
Securities | General Capital | Employee | Retained | Remea-
premium | reserve | redemp- stock earnings | surements
tion options of the
reserve reserve defined
benefit
plans
Share options exercised under - 3,422.06 133.53 - - - 3,555.59
MESOS 2015 (Refer Note 46(c))
Share based payments - - - 645.20 - - 645.20
(Refer Note 19 & 31)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 15,303.03 1,941.70 - 852.26 | 51,773.21 - 69,870.20
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR&Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Metropolis Healthcare Limited
Chartered Accountants L73100MH2000PLC192798
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger Dr. Sushil Shah Ameera Shah Poonam Tanwani
Partner Chairman & Executive Director Managing Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 105003 DIN: 00179918 DIN: 00208085 Membership No: ACS 19182
Place : Miami( USA) Place : Dubai Place : Ahmedabad
Place : Mumbai Vijender Singh Rakesh Agarwal
Date: 27 May 2021 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Date : 27 May 2021

Place : Gurugram

Place : Mumbai
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

1 BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF
OPERATION

Metropolis Healthcare Limited (the ‘Company’), was
incorporated in India as Pathnet India Private Limited
in the year 2000 and is engaged in the business of
providing pathology and related healthcare services.
The registered office of the Company is located
at 250-D, Udyog Bhavan, Hind Cycle Marg, Worli,
Mumbai. The Company got listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE)
on 15 April 2019 through sale of equity shares by Dr.
Sushil Kanubhai Shah and CA Lotus Investments.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement
a  Statement of compliance:

The standalone Balance Sheet of the Company as
at 31 March 2021 and the standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and the standalone Statement of Cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and summary of
significant accounting policies and other financial
information (together referred as ‘standalone
Financial Statements’) has been prepared under
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

The standalone financial statements of the Company
for year ended 31 March 2021 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 27th May 2021.

b Current vs non-current classification:

All the assets and liabilities have been classified into
current and non current.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any

of the following criteria:

a) itisexpectedtobe realisedin, orisintended for
sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being
traded;

c) it is expected to be realised within twelve
months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is
restricted from being exchanged or used to

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

Amount (% in Lakhs)

settle a liability for at least twelve maonths after the
reporting date.
Liabilities:
Aliability is classified as current when it satisfies any of
the following criteria:

a) itisexpected to be settled in the Company’s normal
operating cycle;
b) itisheld primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the
reporting date; or

d)  the Company does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

Operating cycle:
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the company normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of services
and the time taken between acquisition of assets/
inventories for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the
classification of assets and liabilities into current and
non-current.

d Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on
accrual and going concern basis and the historical
cost convention except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or
revalued amount:

. Certain financialassetsand liabilities(including
derivative instruments) measured at fair value

. Assets and liabilities assumed on business
combination measured at fair value

. Equity settled share-based payments
measured at fair value

. Net defined benefit asset / liability - Fair value
of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations.

e Key estimates and assumptions

In  preparing these financial statements,
management has made judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The areasinvolving critical estimates or judgements
are:

i Determination of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangibles; (Note 2.2(b))

ii.  Impairment of non-financial assets
(Note 2.2(d))

iii. Recognitionof deferredtaxassets;(Note2.2(n))
iv.  Recognition and measurement of provisions
and contingencies; (Note 2.2(i))

v.  Fairvalue of financial instruments (Note 2.2(e))
vi. Impairment of financial assets(Note 2.2(e))

vii. Measurement of defined benefit obligations;
(Note 2.2(1)

viii. Fairvaluation of employee share options; (Note
2.2(1)

ix. Fair value measurement of consideration
and net assets acquired as part of business
combination (Note 2.2(a)).

X.  Leases - Critical judgements in determining
the discount rate
f Measurement of fair values

Company’s accounting policies and disclosures
require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values
(including Level 3 fair values). The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices(unadjusted)in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability,
eitherdirectly(i.e. as prices)orindirectly(i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset
or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized
inits entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy

2.2

as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting year during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in the following notes

- Financial instruments (Note 38)

- Share-based payment arrangements (Note 46(c))

- Business combination

Significant accounting policies

a)

Business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers or
interests in entities that are under the control of
the shareholders that controls the Company are
accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred
at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented or, if later, at the date that
common control was established; for this purpose
comparatives are revised, The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts.
The identity of the reserves is preserved and they
appearin the standalone financial statements of the
Companyinthe same formin which they appearedin
the standalone financial statements of the acquired
entity. The difference, if any, between the net assets
acquired and cancellation of share capital of the
acquired entity is transferred to other equity.
Common Control:

Business combinations involving entities that are
ultimately controlled by the same part(ies) before
and after the business combination are considered
as Common control entities and are accounted
using the pooling of interest method as follows:

- The assets and liabilities of the combining
entities are reflected at their carrying
amounts.

- No adjustments are made to reflect the fair
values, or recognise new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are made to harmonise
accounting palicies.

- The financial information in the financial
statements in respect of prior periods is
restated as if the business combination has
occurred from the beginning of the preceding
period in the financial statements, irrespective
of the actual date of the combination.
The balance of the retained earnings
appearing in the financial statements
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

b)

of the transferor is aggregated with the
corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the transferee
or is adjusted against general reserve.
The identity of the reserves are preserved and
the reserves of the transferor become the
reserves of the transferee.

The difference if any, between the amounts
recorded as share capital plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other
assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferoris transferred to capital reserve and
is presented separately from other capital
reserves.

Property plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement:

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other
than freehold land are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Freehold land is carried ar cost and is not
depreciated. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, (after deducting trade discounts
and rebates), any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment is included in
statement of profit and loss when the item is
derecognized.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and that the cost of the item
can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit
and loss during the reporting year in which they are
incurred.

I’ METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

c)

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment,
other than leasehold improvements, is provided
under the written down value method in the manner
prescribed under Schedule Il of the Act, except in
the following case where the life is different than as
indicated in Schedule Il of the Act which is based on
the technical evaluation of useful life carried out by
the management:

Particulars Manage- Useful
ment's life as per

estimate of | Sched-
useful life ulell

Laboratory Equipment's 13 years 10 years

(Plant & Equipment's) :

(Electrical Machinery,

X-ray & diagnostic

equipment's namely Cat-

stan, Ultrasound , ECG

monitors.)

Computers 6 years Jyears

Furniture and Fixtures 15 years 10 years

Vehicles 10 years 8 years

Leasehold improvement are depreciated

over the tenure of lease term.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill that arises on a business combination
is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses on testing of
impairment

Other Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their
fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization:

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost
of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, and is recognized in
statement of profit and loss.
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d)

e)

The estimated useful lives for current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Computer software - 5 years
Brand - 10 years
Customer relationship - 5 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted, if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’'s non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset
(or where applicable, that of cash generating unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs) is the higher of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets
for which impairment loss has been recognised
in prior periods, the Company reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any indication
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such areversal is made only to
the extent that the asset's carryingamount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial instruments also include derivative
contracts such as call options to buy out stake in
subsidiary.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognized
when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets other than those measured
subsequently at fair value through profit and
loss, are recognized initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement,
financial assets are classified in four
categories:

. Amortized cost,
. Fair value through profit (FVTPL)

. Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

Amortized cost :

A financial instrument is  measured
at the amortized cost if both the
following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and
contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method.

Fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’):

All financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or fair value
through  other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through profit
or loss with all changes recognized in the
standalone statement of profit and loss.
Interest income (basis EIR method), from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit
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and loss within finance income/ finance
costs separately from the other gains/
losses arising from changes in the fair value.
Derivative financial instruments (call option
over shares of subsidiaries) are classified as
financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair
value. They are subsequently re-measured at
their fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (‘FVOCI’)

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if both
the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both

- collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and

- contractual terms of the asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on
the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, these assets
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends, Interest income under effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment losses are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive Income.

Derecognition:

Afinancial asset(or, where applicable, a part of
a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets)is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’'s balance sheet)
when:

The contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligationto pay the received cash
flowsinfullwithoutmaterialdelaytoathirdparty
undera’pass-through’arrangement; and either
-(a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or

METROPOLIS HEALTHCARE LTD

-(b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all
equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) and
debtinstruments(otherthan debtinstruments
measured at FVOCI) are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses
in respect of debt instruments measured at
FVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company
applies Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the financial assets measured
at amortized cost and debt instruments
measured at FVOCI.

Loss allowances on trade receivables are
measured following the ‘simplified approach’
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. In respect of other financial
assets, the loss allowance is measured at
12 month ECL only if there is no significant
deterioration in the credit risk since initial
recognition of the asset or assetis determined
to have a low credit risk at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized
when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liability is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined
with reference to the classification of the
respective financial liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value

through Profit or Loss  (FVTPL):

A financial liability is classified as Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)if it is classified
as held-for trading or is designated as such
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on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes
therein, including any interest expense, are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities
otherthan those which are classifiedas FVTPL
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate("EIR") method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
amortization done using the EIR method is
included as finance costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
moadification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value
through profit or loss account. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Offsetting of financial instrument
Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount is reported
in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

f)

g)

h)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures:

Investments representing equity interest in
associates and joint
carried at cost less any provision for impairment.
Investments are reviewed for impairment if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable.

subsidiaries, ventures

Inventories

Inventories comprise of reagents, chemicals,
diagnostic kits, medicines and consumables.
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises the cost of
purchase and all other costs attributed to bring the
goods to that particular condition and location.Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and
cash flow statement includes cash at bank and on
hand, deposits held at call with banks, with original
maturities less than three months which are readily
convertible into cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

A provision is recognized when the enterprise has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the current management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognized as
finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of
possible obligations that arise from past events but
their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Acontingentassetisapossibleassetthatarisesfrom
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
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i

k)

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity. Contingent Assets are
not recognized till the realization of the income is
virtually certain. However the same are disclosed
in the financial statements where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control
of the service to the customer. Revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services is net of indirect
taxes, returns and discounts;

Revenue comprise of revenue from providing
healthcare services such as health checkup and
laboratory services. Pathology service is the only
principal activity and reportable segment from
which the Group generates its revenue.

Revenueisrecognised once the testing samplesare
processed for requisitioned test, to the extent that
itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and revenue can be reliably measured.

Contract liabilities - A contract liability is the
obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration
fromthe customer. If acustomer pays consideration
before the Company transfers services to the
customer, acontractliability isrecognised when the
paymentis made. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

Otherincome
Interest income

Forall financial instruments measured at amortized
cost, interestincomeisrecorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate which exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
When calculating the EIR the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar
options); expected credit losses are considered
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition
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Dividend income

Dividends are recognized in statement of profit and
loss on the date on which the Company’s right to
receive payment is established.

Employee Benefits
(i) Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex
gratia including non-monetary benefits that
are expected to be settled wholly within twelve
months after the end of the year in which the
employees render the related service are
classified as short term employee benefits
and are recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as the related
service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated
absences. The employees are entitled to
accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for
future encashment or availment. The liability
is accrued based on the number of days of
unavailed leave at each Balance Sheet date. It
is measured at the balance sheet date on the
basis of an independent actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
full in the standalone statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they occur. The
Company also offersashort termbenefitin the
form of encashment of unavailed accumulated
compensated absences above certain limits
for all of its employees and same is recognised
as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet
date.

(iii) Share-based payments

The cost of equity settled transactions is
determined by the fair value at the grant date
which is based on the Black Scholes model.
The grant date fair value of options granted
to employees is recognized as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase
in equity under “Employee Stock Options
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(iv)

Reserve”, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the
options.

The expense so determined is recognised
over the requisite vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. As at
each reporting date, the Company revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest, if required.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are
moadified, in addition to the expense pertaining
to the original award, an incremental expense
is recognised for any modification that
results in additional fair value, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Post-Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which a
Company pays specified contributions to
a separate entity and has no obligation to
pay any further amounts. The Company
makes contribution to provident fund in
accordance with Employees Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and
Employee State Insurance. Contribution paid
or payable in respect of defined contribution
planis recognized as an expense in the year in
which services are rendered by the employee.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a
defined benefit plan. The liability is recognised
inthe balance sheetinrespect of gratuityisthe
present value of the defined benefit/obligation
at the balance sheet date less the fair value of
plan assets (being funded portion), together
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial
gain losses and past service costs. The
defined benefit/obligation are calculated at
balance sheet date by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling

m)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income
(ocl).

Leases
Ind-As 116:
As alessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the group.
Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for which
the group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less incentives receivables

- Variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date

- amount expected to be payable by the
company under residual value guarantees

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option, and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the group,
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Company:

. where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by Value Ind AS Retail Limited,
which does not have recent third party
financing, and makes adjustments specific
to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the condition that triggers those payments occurs.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

. any initial direct costs, and
. restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line
in the statement of financial position. The lease
liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method)
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made. The Company remeasures
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n)

the lease liability (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever

. theleasetermhaschangedorthereisachange
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate.

. the lease payments change due to changes
in an index or rate or a change in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the
lease payments change is due to a change in
afloating interest rate, in which case a revised
discount rate is used).

. a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate
line in the statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost
which comprises of the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the
Companyincurs an obligation for costs to dismantle
and remove aleased asset, restore the site on which
it is located or restore the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, a provision is recognised and measured.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Income-tax

Income tax expense /income comprises current tax
expense income and deferred tax expense income.
[tisrecognizedinstatement of profitandloss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive
Income, in which case, the tax is also recognized
directly in equity or other comprehensive income,
respectively.
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Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable
or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to (or
recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
applicable tax rates and tax laws.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

i) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable

entity.

. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset o) Foreign currency transactions

only if, the Company has a legally enforceable Functional and Presentation currency

right to set off the recognized amounts; and The Company’s financial statements are prepared
+  intends either to settle on a net basis, or in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also company’s

to realize the asset and settle the liability functional currency.

simultaneously. Transactions and balances
Deferred Tax Foreign currency transactions are recorded on

initial recognition in the functional currency using
Deferred Income tax s recognized in respect the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
of temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities for financial Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
reporting purpose and the amount considered for foreign currencies are translated into the functional
tax purpose. currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items that are measured

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
losses, unusedtax creditsand deductible temporary translated using the exchange rate at the date of
differences to the extent that it is probable that the initial transaction. Non-monetary items that
future taxable profits will be available against which are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
theycanbeutilized. Deferredtaxassetsarereviewed translated using the exchange rate at the date the
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent fair value is determined.
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable Exchange differences arising on the settlement
profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or translation of monetary items are recognized in
or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized such statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
reductions are reversed when it becomes probable arise except exchange differences arising from the
that sufficient taxable profits will be available. translation of items which are recognised in Other
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed comprehensive income.
at each reporting date and recognized to the extent p) Dividend
that it has become probable that future taxable The Company recognises a liability for any dividend
profits will be available against which they can be declared but not distributed at the end of the
recovered. reporting period, when the distribution isauthorized
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
expected to be applied to temporary differences the Company on or before the end of the reporting
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or period.
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting q) Earnings per share:

period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
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r)

s)

the equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted to take into account:

. The after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

. Weighted average number of additional equity
shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as
defined in Ind AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’ for
allocating resources and assessing performance.
As per IND AS-108, if a financial report contains both
the consolidated financial statements of a parent
that is within the scope of Ind AS-108 as well as the
parent’s separate financial statements, segment
information is required only in the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, information
required to be presented under IND AS-108 has been
given in the consolidated financial statements.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
Recent Pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule
IIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments
revise Division [, Il and Il of Schedule Il and are
applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments
relating to Division Il which relate to companies
whose financial statements are required to comply
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

. Lease liabilities should be separately
disclosed under the head financial liabilities’,

duly distinguished as current or non-current.
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t)

. Certainadditional disclosuresin the statement
of changes in equity such as changes in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and
restated balances at the beginning of the
current reporting period.

. Specified format fordisclosure of shareholding
of promoters.

. Specified format for ageing schedule of
trade receivables, trade payables, capital
work-in-progress and intangible asset under
development.

. If @ company has not used funds for the
specific purpose for which it was borrowed
from banks and financial institutions, then
disclosure of details of where it has been used.

. Specific  disclosure  under  ‘additional
regulatory requirement’ such as compliance
with approved schemes of arrangements,
compliance with number of layers of
companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans
and advances to promoters, directors, key
managerial personnel (KMP) and related

parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of Profit and Loss:

. Additional disclosures relating to Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed
incomeandcryptoorvirtualcurrency.specified
under the head ‘additional information’ in the
notes forming part of Standalone Financial
Statements. The amendments are extensive
and the Company will evaluate the same to
give effect to them as required by law.

Rounding off amounts

All amounts disclosed in financial statements
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
thousands as per the requirement of schedule Ill,
under otherwise stated;
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n PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 March 2021

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Freehold | Building | Laborato- | Furniture | Vehicles | Office Com- | Leasehold Total

land ry equip- | & fixtures equip- | puters | improve-
ment ment ment

Cost as at 1April 2020 1,035.40 | 4,983.19 4,191.31 127174 223.33| 1,007.89| 626.82 320.28 | 13,659.96
Additions during the year - 46.03 514.65 84.22 - 117.80 104.36 66.04 933.10
Disposals during the year - - - (2.14) - - - - (2.14)
Cost as at 31 March 2021(A) | 1,035.40 5,029.22 4,705.96 1,353.82| 223.33 1,125.69 731.18 386.32 | 14,590.92
Accumulated depreciation - 907.18 | 1,328.44 548.40 116.08 | 545.99 322.51 143.93| 3,912.53
as at 1 April 2020
Depreciation charged - 205.66 607.72 109.48 27.09 194.09 110.08 94.59 | 1,348.7
during the year
Disposals during the year - - - (2.14) - - - - (2.14)
Accumulated depreciation -/ 1M2.84 1,936.16 655.74 143.17| 740.08| 432.59 238.52 | 5,259.10
as at 31March 2021(B)
Net carryingamountasat | 1,035.40 3,916.38 2,769.80 698.08 80.16| 385.61 298.59 147.80 | 9,331.82

31March 2021(A)-(B)

Changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2020:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Freehold | Building | Laborato- | Furniture | Vehicles | Office Com- | Leasehold | Total
land ry equip- | & fixtures equip- | puters | improve-
ment ment ment

Cost as at 1 April 2019 1,035.40 | 4,983.19| 3,865.64| 1,183.96| 223.33| 896.37| 799.07 157.02 | 13,143.98
Additions during the year - - 841.14 119.48 - 281.35 93.63 190.45| 1,526.05
Disposals during the year - - (515.47) (31.70) -1 (169.83)| (265.88) (27.19)| (1,010.07)
Cost as at 31March 2020 (A) 1,035.40 | 4,983.19 4,191.31 1,271.74| 223.33 1,007.89| 626.82 320.28  13,659.96
Accumulated depreciation - 691.80 1,232.41 463.13 80.82 510.86 | 449.72 89.73 | 3,518.27
as at 1April 2019
Depreciation charged - 215.38 580.57 113.73 35.26 196.84 131.85 80.40| 1,354.03
during the year
Disposals during the year - - | (484.54) (28.46) - (181.51)| (259.086) (26.20)| (959.77)
Accumulated depreciation -/ 907.18| 1,328.44 548.40 116.08| 545.99 322.51 143.93 3,912.53
as at 31March 2020 (B)
Net carryingamountasat | 1,035.40 | 4,076.01 2,862.87 723.34| 107.25| 461.90 304.31 176.35 9,747.43

31March 2020 (A)-(B)

Note : The title deeds of freehold land gross block aggregating to ¥ 1,035.40 lakhs (Net block : 1035.40 lakhs) (2019-20 : Gross block
1,035.40 lakhs, Net block : 1,035.40 lakhs ) and Freehold buildings gross block aggregating to ¥ 1,092.87 (Net block : 844.08 lakhs)
lakhs(2019-20 : Gross block : 1,092.87 lakhs, Net block : 888.50 lakhs) are in the process or perfection of title
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Changes in the carrying value of intangibles for the year ended 31 March 2021:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Goodwill Total Other Intangible Assets
Computer Brand Customer Total
Software Relationships
Costasat 1 April 2020 4,880.90| 4,880.90| 1,632.37| 1,170.00 311.00|  3.113.37
Additions during the period - - 1,682.97 - - 1,682.97
Disposals during the period - - - - - -
Cost as at 31March 2021(A) 4,880.90| 4,880.90 3,315.34| 1,170.00 311.00  4,796.34
Accumulated amortisation 464.78 370.50 196.96 | 1,032.24
Amortisation recognised during the period - - 489.95 117.00 62.19 669.14
Disposals during the period - - - - - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2021(B) - - 954.73 487.50 259.15| 1,701.38
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2021(A) - (B) 4,880.90 | 4,880.90 2,360.61 682.50 51.85 3,094.96
Changes in the carrying value of intangibles for the year ended 31 March 2020:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Goodwill Total Other Intangible Assets
Computer Brand Customer Total
Software Relationships
Costasat 1April 2019 4,880.90| 4,880.90 932.02| 1,170.00 311.00| 2,413.02
Additions during the year - - 700.35 - - 700.35
Disposals during the year - - - - - -
Cost as at 31March 2020 (A) 4,880.90| 4,880.90 1,632.37| 1,170.00 311.00 3,113.37
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2019 - - 240.87 253.50 134.77 629.14
Amortisation recognised during the year - - 223.91 117.00 62.19 403.10
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2020 (B) - - 464.78 370.50 196.96  1,032.24
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020(A) - (B) 4,880.90| 4,880.90 1,167.59 799.50 14.04| 2,081.13
Intangible assets under development
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2019
Opening as at 1 April 2019 577.30
Addition 421.94
Capitalised during the year 700.35
Closing amount as at 31 March 2020 298.89
Addition 1,384.08
Capitalised during the year 1,682.97
Closing amount as at 31 March 2021 -

Goodwill with indefinite useful life

Carrying amount of goodwill which is allocated to the pathology division as at 31 March 2021 is ¥ 4,880.90 lakhs. This goodwill is
acquired on account of business acquisition of Sanjeevani Pathology Laboratory and on account of merger of Golwilkar Metropolis
Health Services(India) Private Limited( erstwhile subsidiary company)i.e. goodwill as appearing in consolidated financial statement
of the Company on account of merger.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units (CGU), which benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition.

Cash Generating Unit

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Sanjeevani Pathology Laboratory 4,593.90 4,593.90
Golwilkar Metropolis Health Services (India) Private Limited 287.00 287.00
4,880.90 4,880.90

The recoverable amount of a CGU is based onits value inuse. The value in use is estimated using discounted cash flows over a period
of b years. We believe b years to be most appropriate time scale over which to review and consider annual performance before
applying a fix terminal value multiple to year end cash flow.

Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past experience and
after considering the financial budgets/ forecasts approved by management. Other key assumptions used in the estimation of the
recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of future
trends in the relevant industries and have been based on historical data from both external and internal sources.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations

Assumptions How determined

Budgeted EBITDA growth rate Budgeted EBITDA has been based on past experience adjusted for the following:

-Revenueinthe diagnostic serviceis expected togrow onaccount of changinglifestyle
and food habit. Revenue and EBIDTA are factored by focused approach towards B2C
division, network expansion , operational efficiencies and automation.

Terminal value growth rate Long-term growth rate used for the purpose of calculation of terminal value has been
determined by taking into account nature of business, long term inflation expectation
and long term GDP expectation for the Indian economy

Tax risk adjusted discount rate The discount rate applied to the cash flows of company’s operations is generally
based on the risk free rate for ten year bonds issued by the government in India. These
rates are adjusted for a risk premium to reflect both the increased risk of investing in
equities and the systematic risk of of the company.

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Post tax discount rate 11.50% 12.00%
Terminal value growth rate 5.00% 5.00%
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 5%-15% 5% -15%

These assumptions are reviewed annually as part of management’s budgeting and strategic planning cycles. These estimates may
differ from actual results. The values assigned to each of the key assumptions reflect the Management’s past experience as their
assessment of future trends, and are consistent with external / internal sources of information.

As at 31 March 2021 the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and accordingly, no impairment
was recognized.

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis calculations on the projections used and discount rate applied. Given the
significant headroom that exists, and the results of the sensitivity analysis performed, it is concluded that there is no significant risk
that reasonable changes in any key assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed its value in use.
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BN NoN curreNT INVESTMENT

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

31March 2021

31March 2020

Investment in subsidiaries

Unquoted equity shares at cost

Desai Metropolis Health Services Private Limited
100,000(31 March 2020: 100,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 100
each (Fully paid up)

4,210.30

4,210.30

Sudharma Metropolis Health Services Private Limited
1,350(31 March 2020: 1,350) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 5,000 each
(Fully paid up)

1,678.03

1,678.03

R.V.Metropolis Diagnostics & Health Care Center Private Limited
3,375(31March 2020: 3,375) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 100 each
(Fully Paid up)

2,461.24

2,461.24

Dr. Patel Metropolis Healthcare Private Limited
50,000(31March 2020: 50,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10 each
(Fully Paid up)

1,512.57

1,5612.67

Micron Metropolis Healthcare Private Limited
100,000(31March 2020: 100,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully Paid up)

799.52

799.52

Ekopath Metropolis Lab Services Private Limited
306,000 (31 March 2020: 306,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully Paid up)

30.60

30.60

Metropolis Healthcare Mauritius Limited
225,100 (31 March 2020: 225,100) Equity shares of Face value of USD 1each (Fully Paid
up)

127.49

127.49

Amins Pathology Laboratory Private Limited
100,000(31 March 2020: 100,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully Paid up)

10.00

10.00

Raj Metropolis Healthcare Services Private Limited
18,150 (31 March 2020: 9,256) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10 each
(Fully Paid up) (Refer Note 439)a))

118.03

35.70

Bokil Golwilkar Metropolis Healthcare Private Limited
10,10,000 (31 March 2020: 10,10,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully paid up)

483.73

483.73

Lab One Metropolis Healthcare Services Private Limited
133,000 (31 March 2020: 133,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 100
each (Fully Paid up)

1,442.14

1,442.14

Metropolis Healthcare Lanka Pvt. Ltd, Sri Lanka
250,000 (31 March 2020: 250,000) Equity shares of Face value of Sri Lankan Rupee 10
each (Fully paid up)

11.04

11.04

Total Investment in subsidiaries (A)

12,884.69

12,802.36

Investment in joint ventures

Unquoted equity shares at cost

195.00

195.00

Metropolis Histoxpert Digital Services Private Limited
1,950,000(31March 2020: 1,950,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully paid up)
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(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Less : Provision for impairment (195.00) (195.00)
Total Investment in joint ventures (B)
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (A+B) 12,884.69 12,802.36
Investment in Others
Unquoted equity shares at Fair Value through other comprehensive income
Textiles Traders Co-op Bank Ltd 0.28 0.28
1,100(31 March 2020: 1,100) equity shares of Face value Indian Rupees 25 each (fully
paid up)
Centre for Digestive and Kidney Disease (India) Private Limited 175.00 175.00
1,750,000 (31 March 2020: 1,750,000) Equity shares of Face value of Indian Rupees 10
each (Fully Paid up)
Unquoted equity shares at cost
Star Metropolis Health Services Middle East LLC, Dubai 129.85 129.85
1,020(31 March 2020 1,020) Equity shares of Face value of AED of 1,000 each (Fully
Paid up)(Refer Note 50)
Total Other Investment 305.13 305.13
Less : Provision for impairment - Star Metropolis Health Services Middle East LLC, (129.85) (129.85)
Dubai
Total Investment in Others (C) 175.28 175.28
Total value of investments 13,059.97 12,977.64
The aggregate amount and market value of quoted and unquoted non-current
investments are as follows:
Aggregate amount of quoted investments = -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments = -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 13,059.97 12,977.64
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 324.85 324.85
n NON CURRENT LOANS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 847.07 373.82
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 39) 76.56 76.84
923.63 450.66
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Security deposits
- credit impaired 86.28 86.28
86.28 86.28
Less : Provision for deposits which are credit impaired (86.28) (86.28)
923.63 450.66

There is no amount due from director, other officer of the Company or firms in which any director is a partner or private companies

in which any director is a director or member at anytime during the reporting period.
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DERIVATIVES

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Call options on shares of subsidiary* = 27.77
- 27.77

* During the previous year the Company has call option on shares held by minority shareholders of its subsidiaries which gives the
company right to buy such shares in future from the minority shareholders as per the agreed terms. The above values reflect the fair

value of these options as on balance sheet date.

n OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Fixed Deposits with banks” 159.88 1,105.28
159.88 1,105.28
M ncludes % 159.88 lakhs (31 March 2020 1,105.28 lakhs) of fixed deposits pledged against bank guarantee
n OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Unsecured, considered Good)
Capital advance 33.26 485.67
Prepaid expenses 0.36 34.21
33.62 519.88
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Capital advance
- credit impaired 34.86 34.86
34.86 34.86
Less : Provision for capital advances which are credit impaired (34.88) (34.86)
33.62 519.88
m NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Advance taxes (net of provision for taxes ¥ 947.11 lakhs (31 March 2020 Rs 12,880.00 1,505.37 1,189.39
lakhs)
1,505.37 1,189.39
n INVENTORIES
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials (Reagents, chemicals, diagnostic kits, medicines and consumables) 3,346.36 1,745.84
3,346.36 1,745.84
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m CURRENT INVESTMENTS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Non-trade, Unquoted, at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss)
Investments in mutual funds
HDFC Cash Management Fund(Liquid Fund Inv) 1.35 -
Unquoted at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Investments in Commercial Papers
Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited 480.68 480.68
100 (31 March 2020 - 100) Units of Face Value ¥ 5,00,000 each
482.03 480.68
Less : Provision for impairment (480.68) (480.68)
1.35 -
The aggregate amount and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as
follows:
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 1.35 -
Aggregate market value of guoted investments 1.35 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 482.03 480.68
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 480.68 480.68
m TRADE RECEIVABLES
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured* 12,265.55 12,439.86
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 4,401.33 5,013.91
16,666.88 17,453.77
Less: Provision for debts which are credit impaired (4,401.33) (5,013.91)
12,265.55 12,439.86

*Includes amount receivable from related parties - Refer Note 39

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director

oramember.

L7 (A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 3,450.37 6,632.62
-in EEFC account 32.90 56.03
- in fixed deposits accounts with maturity within 3 months 28,124.56 -
Cash on hand 105.45 54.53
31,713.28 6,743.18
i/’8 (B) BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Investmentin Term deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 1,829.05 6,457.74
12 months of reporting date **
1,829.05 6,457.74

*Includes ¥ 0.38 lakhs (31 March 2020 % 943.13 lakhs) fixed deposits pledged against bank guarantee

Mncludes % 759.38 lakhs (31 March 2020 ¥ 759.38 lakhs) fixed deposits under lien
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N currenT Loans

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 210.33 905.51
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 39) 905.70 1,069.55
Advances to related parties (Refer Note 39) 60.24 62.71
1,176.27 2,037.77
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Credit impaired
Advances to related parties (Refer Note 39) 44.02 44.02
Other advances 42.33 42.33
86.35 86.35
Less : Provision for advances which are credit impaired (86.35) (86.35)
1,176.27 2,037.77

There is no amount due from director, other officer of the Company or firms in which any director is a partner or private companies

in which any director is a director or member at anytime during the reporting period.

m OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Other receivables * 1.81 -
Interest accrued but not due
- From related parties 347.55 1567.03
- From bank deposits 0.75 11.25
350.11 168.28
*Other receivables includes amount receivable from related party
(74 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid Expenses 161.88 147.72
Advance to employees 99.72 97.72
Advance to Suppliers 308.30 76.13
Other advances (Retainership fees, etc) 384.96 292.82
954.86 614.39
(Unsecured, considered doubtful)
Advance to employees 43.80 43.80
Advance to Suppliers 49.75 49.75
Other advances 238.43 148.83
331.98 242.39
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (331.98) (242.39)
954.86 614.39
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BN courty sHaRre capiTaL

(a) Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital

(% in Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity shares of the par value of ¥ 2 each (31 March 2020 par value  29,57,54,015 5,0815.08 29,57,54,015 5,915.08
of Rs 2 each)
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid up
Equity Shares of the par value Rs 2/- each (31 March 2020 par 5,11,16,813 1,022.33  5,06,30,566 1,012.81
value of Rs 2 each)
5,11,16,813 1,022.33 5,06,30,566 1,012.61
(b) Reconciliation of number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
(% in Lakhs)
31March 2021 31March 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning 5,06,30,566 1,012.61 5,01,78,680 1,003.57
Issued under Metropolis Employee Stock Option Scheme 2015 4,86,247 9.72 4,571,886 9.04
(Refer Note 46(c))
Outstanding before sub-division of shares 5,11,16,813 1,022.33 5,06,30,566 1,012.61
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,11,16,813 1,022.33 5,06,30,566 1,012.61
(c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares held
Name of Shareholder 31March 2021 31March 2020
Number* | Percentage Number Percentage
Dr. Sushil Kanubhai Shah # 37,25,245 7.29% 37,25,245 7.36%
CA Lotus Investments 71,79,579 14.05% 71,79,579 14.18%
Smallcap World Fund, Inc 27,80,746 5.44% 27,80,746 5.49%
Metz Advisory LLP ## 1,56,91,216 30.70% 1,56,91,216 30.99%
Dr. Duru Sushil Shah 92,09,230 18.02% 92,09,230 18.19%

# Includes five Equity Shares each held by Mayur Shah (jointly with Meera Shah) and Dr. Nilesh Shah as nominees of Dr. Sushil

Kanubhai Shah

## Includes five Equity Shares held by Ameera Sushil Shah as nominee of Metz Advisory LLP

(d)

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

(e)

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of
Directors, will be subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

- Issue of 3,85,990 (before spilt with face value of Rs. 10 each) bonus shares during the year ended 31 March 2019
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- During the year ended 31March 2019, 1share(before split with face value of 10 each)has been allotted to the Shareholders
of Bacchus Hospitality Services and Real Estate Private Limited pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation.

- During the year ended 31 March, 2019, 64,596 shares (before split with face value of ¥ 10 each) have been allotted as
consideration for swap of shares with the shareholders of subsidiary companies on acquisition of further stake (Refer

Note 49(a))

- Buy-back of 320,484 shares (before split with face value of ¥ 10 each) which was brought back pursuant to section 68 of

the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended 31 March 2016.
(f) Dividends

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Declared during the year
Interim dividend for 2020-21: Rs 8 per equity share (FY 2019-20: Rs 8.74 per 4,089.34 4,386.20
equity share (including dividend distribution tax of Rs 0.74 per equity share)
4,089.34 4,386.20
*dividend distribution tax of ¥ Nil( 31 March 2020: 371.91 lakhs)
m OTHER EQUITY
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars 31March 2021 31March 2020
Securities Premium 15,303.03 11,880.97
General Reserve 1,941.70 1,808.17
Employee stock options reserve 852.26 207.06
Retained Earnings 51,773.21 36,329.65
69,870.20 50,225.85
Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,880.97 8,700.73
Share options exercised under MESOS 2007/2015 (Refer Note 46(c )) 3,422.06 3,180.24
Balance at the end of the year 15,303.03 11,880.97
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 1,808.17 1,684.07
Transfer from ESOP exercised during the year (Refer Note 46¢) 133.53 124.10
Balance at the end of the year 1,941.70 1,808.17
Employee stock options reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 207.06 258.78
Transfer to General Reserve on account of ESOP exercised during the year (Refer (133.53) (124.10)
Note 46¢c)
Share based payments (Refer Note 31) 778.73 72.38
Balance at the end of the year 852.26 207.06
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 36,329.65 29,893.25
Less: Impact of IND AS 116 net of Deferred Tax (Refer Note 43) - (231.97)
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss 19,755.51 11,205.43
Less: Interim Dividend (4,089.34) (4,014.29)
Less: Tax on Interim dividend = (371.91)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan(net of tax